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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FHBEWAS W

Emperor Culture Group Limited (the "Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in entertainment, media and cultural
development business, particularly in Greater China, which
include (i) cinema development and operation; (i) investment
and production of films, TV programmes and other media
related projects; (iii) investment in a variety of cultural events
including music concerts, live shows and theatrical performances
etc.; and (iv) investment in securities.

MARKET REVIEW

Over the past decade, film market in China has been growing
rapidly. In 2016, the growth of box office in Mainland China
moderated to 3.7% year-on-year, to RMB45.5 billion, reinforcing
its position as the second-largest film market in the world. In
the first half of 2017, the box office even reached RMB25.5
billion, increased by 3.8% as compared with the corresponding
period last year. The China’s movie market is widely projected to
overtake the United States and become the world’s largest film
market in the near future.

Along with the growth of film market, the number of cinemas
and screens in China increases rapidly in recent years. As of 31
December 2016, there were about 7,900 cinemas and 41,500
screens in Mainland China, growing by folds within 5 years
and surpassing those of the United States. In 2016, a massive
number of 8,400 screens was newly added in Mainland China,
translating to the opening of 23 new screens per day. This
underlines the growing popularity of cinemas and lays a solid
foundation for the sustained growth of China’s film industry.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results

During the year ended 30 June 2017 (the “Year"”), the Group's
continuing operations reported a revenue of HK$44.9 million
(2016: HK$24.3 million), representing an increase of 85.3%
when compared with last year. Loss for the Year from continuing
operations amounted to HK$69.1 million (2016: HK$48.7
million). Such loss mainly resulted from the impairment loss of
film rights and investments in film production of HK$65.3 million
during the Year.

Loss for the Year attributable to the owners of the Company
amounted to HK$62.3 million (2016: HK$106.0 million after
taking into account the results from discontinued operation)
while the basic loss per share was HK$0.03 (2016: HK$0.05).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THB RS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Capital structure and use of proceeds from equity
fund raising

Upon completion of subscription of 1,000,000,000 shares of
the Company by Giant Lead Profits Limited (“Giant Lead"”)
(now known as “Emperor Culture Group Holdings Limited”) at
a subscription price of HK$0.19 per share on 23 March 2017
(the “Subscription”), the Company’s issued share capital
was increased from HK$22.1 million to HK$32.1 million while
its share premium was increased from HK$733.0 million to
HK$912.8 million. Details of the Subscription were set out in the
announcements jointly made by Giant Lead and the Company
dated 22 December 2016 and 23 March 2017, and the circular
of the Company dated 3 March 2017.

Net proceeds raised from the Subscription amounted to
HK$189.8 million. During the Year, the Group used part of the
net proceeds of HK$7.4 million as intended for enhancement
and expansion of cinema operation in certain locations of
Greater China. At the end of the reporting period, the remaining
proceeds of HK$182.4 million was retained at bank.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group funded its operations and capital expenditure by
cash generated internally from its operations as well as the net
proceeds from the Subscription. As at 30 June 2017, the Group’s
cash and bank balances at the end of the reporting period
amounted to HK$452.6 million (2016: HK$398.5 million) which
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.

Total borrowings of the Group as at 30 June 2017 was HK$60.9
million (2016: HK$37.8 million) comprising the amounts due
to non-controlling interests and related companies of HK$44.9
million and HK$16.0 million (2016: HK$37.8 million and Nil)
respectively, which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The gearing ratio (expressed as a percentage of total borrowings
over net asset value) was 6.7% (2016: 4.9%).

Exposure to fluctuation in exchange rates and
related hedges

The Group’s cash and bank balances, income and expenditure
are primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
The carrying amount of the Group’s Renminbi denominated
monetary net assets was only less than 10% of its net assets at
the end of the reporting period. Hence, the Group's exposure to
fluctuations in exchange rates is insignificant.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBIWES W
BUSINESS REVIEW

Cinema operation

During the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$31.8
million (2016: HK$12.9 million) from cinema operation. It was
contributed from a cinema located at Hefei in China which was
opened in 2015. The cinema, with 13 screens, is equipped with
advanced technologies including IMAX theater system, 4DX
motion system, D-Box seats and Dolby Atmos audio system. The
cinema also features a luxury VIP house and a VIP lounge where
the audiences can enjoy premium and exclusive entertainment
services.

Film and TV programme production and
investment and others

During the Year, this segment generated a revenue of HK$26.3
million (2016: HK$14.5 million) to the Group which was mainly
contributed by licensing of certain film rights and release of
certain co-invested films during the Year.

As of 30 June 2017, the carrying amounts of the Group's film
and TV programme rights and their production in progress were
HK$12.0 million and HK$215.5 million (2016: HK$50.5 million
and HK$108.2 million) respectively. The carrying amount of
the investments in film production was HK$1.7 million (2016:
HK$15.6 million). Due to worsen marketability of certain films,
total impairment loss of film rights and investments in film
production of HK$65.3 million (2016: HK$26.6 million) was
recognised for the Year.

During the Year, the Group stepped into the production,
distribution and licensing of animated TV episodes and theatrical
films through the acquisition of certain subsidiaries. Details of
such acquisition were set out in the section headed “Other
Information — Acquisition of Subsidiaries” below.

Event investment and others

The “Event investment and others” segment derived a revenue
of HK$0.9 million for the Year, as compared with HK$0.7 million
for the last year. Revenue of this segment was contributed by
a co-invested concert which was held in the second half of the
Year. The Group continues to keep cautious in the selection of
events to be invested.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THB RS

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Investment in securities

During the Year, the Group transacted certain investments in
listed securities and bond and resulted in a net loss on disposal
of HK$14.1 million (2016: HK$3.8 million). In addition, the
Group recognised dividend income and bond interest income
in total of HK$6.2 million (2016: HK$7.7 million). Based on the
stock market price of such portfolio of investment in securities,
the Group recorded a decrease in the fair value of HK$7.1
million (2016: HK$21.6 million) for securities investment for the
Year. At the end of the reporting period, the Group continues
to hold certain investments in listed securities with the carrying
amount of HK$52.4 million (2016: HK$63.4 million).

FUTURE BUSINESS PROSPECTS AND PLANS

Accompanying the rapid economic development and
improvement of people’s living standard, China’s film industry
showed exponential development in the past decade. As
pace of growth has turned mild recently, the Chinese film
market is transforming into a phase of rational and sustainable
development.

Along with the growth in China’s film market, the Group
continues to dedicate its efforts in expanding its film exhibition
network. A pipeline of new cinemas is planned and under-
construction in Hong Kong and famous cities in Mainland
China including Beijing, Chongging, Chengdu and Shenzhen.
The board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or the
“Directors”) expects that these new cinemas will commence
business in 2018 and they will not only bring in new income
stream and stable return to the Group, but also develop a strong
platform for film exhibition in Greater China.

The income from the film investment remains one of the major
revenue streams for the Group. However, whether audiences
find the film products attractive present certain challenges,
thus the Group is cautious in the selection of stories and scripts
for the film investment. Currently, the Group has certain film
investment projects in pipeline which are expected to be released
in the near future.

The Group aims to respond to forthcoming market opportunities
with flexibility and decisiveness, and to expand according to a
strategy that is both disciplined and forward thinking. The Group
is cautious but optimistic about long-term sustainable growth of
China’s film and entertainment market and will put more efforts
in extending its cinema coverage in first tier and second tier
cities of Mainland China as well as Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBIWES W
OTHER INFORMATION

Acquisition of subsidiaries
Jade Dynasty Multi-Media Limited (“JDMM")

On 21 July 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of
approximately 78.64% of the issued share capital of JDMM
from 2 vendors (who are independent third parties) and the
shareholder’s loan owed by JDMM to one of the vendors
at a cash consideration of HK$142.6 million. JDMM and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “JDMM Group”) are
principally engaged in production, distribution and licensing
of animated TV episodes and theatrical films in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and overseas countries. Details of the
acquisition were set out in the Company’s announcements dated
4 May 2016 and 21 July 2016.

Disposals
(i) TVB Pay Vision Holdings Limited (“TVBP")

On 9 November 2016, the Group entered into (i) a
sale and purchase agreement in relation to disposal of
5% shareholding interest in TVBP and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “TVBP Group”) (which
was accounted for as the associates of the Group) to
an independent third party at a cash consideration of
HK$35.0 million; and (i) a termination agreement of the
shareholders’ agreement dated 22 May 2012 pursuant to
which the rights and obligations bound to the shareholders
under the shareholders’ agreement were terminated. The
disposal was completed on 9 November 2016 and the
Group recorded a gain on disposal of HK$34.8 million.
Details of the disposal were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 21 November 2016.

Following completion of the disposal and the termination
agreement became effective, the Group has no significant
influence over TVBP Group and TVBP Group ceased to be
associates of the Group thereafter.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THB RS

OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

Disposals (continued)

(ii) Film rights
On 30 November 2016, the Group entered into 3 sale
and purchase agreements (the “Agreements”) for the
disposal of its ownership and licensing/distribution rights of
certain films to an independent third party at a total cash
consideration of HK$56.0 million. Details of the disposals
were set out in the Company's announcement dated 30
November 2016. Subsequently, on 15 June 2017, the Group
entered into 3 supplemental agreements with the purchaser
to amend certain terms under the respective Agreements
and the total consideration was then revised to HK$47.6
million. Details of these amendments were set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 15 June 2017.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts
of the respective film rights had been adjusted to their net
realisable values which resulted in an impairment loss of
HK$2.5 million for the Year. Shortly after the end of the
reporting period, the disposals were completed on 3 July
2017.

Mandatory conditional cash offer

Upon completion of the Subscription, Giant Lead and its
associate were interested in approximately 34.14% of the issued
shares of the Company. Pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the Code on
Takeovers and Mergers issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong (the “Takeovers Code”), Giant
Lead had made a mandatory conditional general offer in cash
(the "Offer”) for all the issued shares of the Company other
than those already owned and acquired by Giant Lead and its
associate (the “Offer Shares”). The offer price for each Offer
Share was HK$0.215 in cash. The Offer was conditional on the
number of the shares of the Company in respect of acceptances
of the Offer being received on the closing date of the Offer,
together with the shares already owned by Giant Lead and its
associate, resulting in Giant Lead and its associate holding more
than 50% of the voting rights of the Company in accordance
with the Takeovers Code. As the aforesaid condition had not
been satisfied, the Offer had not become unconditional and
lapsed on 20 April 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

Mandatory conditional cash offer (continued)

After the dispatch of the composite document and the close
of the Offer, there were changes to the executive Board on 31
March 2017 and 20 April 2017. To better reflect the future
business plans and development of the Group, the Company’s
name was subsequently changed from See Corporation Limited
to Emperor Culture Group Limited.

Details of the Offer were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 22 December 2016 and 20 April 2017, and the
composite document dated 30 March 2017 jointly issued by
Giant Lead and the Company.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2017, the Group has 95 (2016: 43) employees.
Total staff costs including the Directors’ remuneration for
the Year were HK$11.9 million (2016: HK$56.3 million from
continuing and discontinued operations). If excluding the
staff costs of discontinued operation, the total staff costs in
2016 would be HK$8.5 million. Employees’ remuneration
was determined in accordance with individual’s responsibility,
competence and skills, experience and performance as well
as market pay level. Staff benefits include medical and life
insurance, provident funds and other competitive fringe benefits.

To provide incentive or rewards to staff, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which are set out
in the section headed “Share Options” from pages 165 and 166
of this annual report.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

Hib&EH (&)
BEMERERESEN (&
FEGEAXHRENRILEER RTTEFER
201793 A31H K2017F4 8208 B &g -
REZERBAEERREEABIRER K
NABEEEHESREEERRARENRE
EXEREEARAA -

DA HBEHINARRHEA20165F12A
228 X2017F4A20H 2 A% » LA K Giant Lead
BN A T8 BB A201743 A308 247
BX e

BE K #HMEX

R2017F6H30R A& E BF95% (20164 -
BEH)VEE-AXFEZEIRARBE(BIEE
E#HBH)A11,900,0008 T (2016F 1 HE X
DRI ¥ 7 8 TR AR 42%556,300,000/8
To) oM REr R ERIEEEER 2 BT KA
2016F W B TR A 425811 458,500,000/8 7T © f&
EFMIOBREEABRE O REM &£% K
KBEARMESHEHKTFET - BT R BIEE
BERASRR 2B hEMAEREHEREMNGE
;Eo

REBHERE T ARFSRMN—BBERE
& FIRHRAFHRE 1651668 [REIHE]
7ﬁﬁ0

B AL A LA WA PR 2w



BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREHERBZEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (CHAIRPERSON)

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa, aged 54, the Chairperson and
Executive Director of the Company. Ms. Fan joined the Company
in March 2017. She has been responsible for the Group’s
strategic planning, business growth and development as well as
overseeing different functions within the Group. Ms. Fan is also
the Chairperson of the Executive Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee as well
as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Fan
is currently a director of three listed companies in Hong Kong,
namely Emperor International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
163) (“Emperor International”), Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Limited (Stock Code: 296) (“Emperor E Hotel”) and Emperor
Watch & Jewellery Limited (Stock Code: 887) (“Emperor
WR&J"), all being associated companies of the Company. She
was previously a director of New Media Group Holdings Limited
(now known as “Evergrande Health Industry Group Limited”)
(Stock Code: 708) (“New Media Group”) until 27 March 2015.
Having over 28 years of corporate management experience,
Ms. Fan possesses diversified experience in different businesses
ranging from entertainment production and investment,
cinema development and operation to property investment
and development, hotel and hospitality, financial and securities
services, retailing of watch, jewellery and furniture, artiste
management as well as media and publication. She is a lawyer
by profession in Hong Kong and a qualified accountant, and
holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chi Fai, aged 61, the Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Wong joined the Company in March 2017. He
has been responsible for the Group’s strategic planning, business
growth and development as well as overseeing the financial
management of the Group. Mr. Wong is also a member of
the Executive Committee and the Remuneration Committee
as well as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Wong is currently a director of three listed companies in
Hong Kong, namely Emperor International, Emperor E Hotel
and Emperor W&J. He was previously a director of New Media
Group until 27 March 2015. Having over 30 years of finance
and management experience, Mr. Wong possesses diversified
experience in different businesses ranging from entertainment
production and investment, cinema development and operation
to manufacturing, property investment and development,
hotel and hospitality, financial and securities services, retailing
of watch and jewellery and furniture, artiste management as
well as media and publication. Mr. Wong is a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREERZERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander, aged 31, the Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Yeung joined the Company in
March 2017. He is a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company. Mr. Yeung has more than 7 years of diversified
experience in different businesses ranging from entertainment
production and investment, cinema development and operation
to property investment and development, hotel and hospitality,
financial and securities services, retailing of watch & jewellery,
artiste management as well as media and publication. Mr. Yeung
graduated from Suffolk University in Boston, the USA, with a
Bachelor of Science Degree.

Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes, aged 54, the Executive Director
of the Company. Ms. Hughes joined the Company in March
2017. She is also a member of the Executive Committee of
the Company. She is currently engaged in the management of
entertainment businesses involving production and distribution
of music, TV programmes and motion pictures as well as
event performance and artiste management. Ms. Hughes
has over 30 years’ of experience in media and publishing
business. She was previously an executive director of New
Media Group until 27 March 2015. Prior to that, she worked
for Hong Kong Commercial Broadcasting Company Limited
as Program Presenter and Producer as well as for Hong Kong
Cable Television Limited as Channel Manager of Entertainment
Channel and Controller for Program Development and
Production for more than 10 years.

Mr. Albert Lee, aged 64, the Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Lee joined the Company in March 2017. He is
also a member of the Executive Committee as well as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lee is one of Hong
Kong’s most experienced and versatile film industry executives
for more than three decades, having held senior management
position in the production, distribution and exhibition sectors.
He is a member of the China Film Association, the Asia Pacific
Screen Academy, and the Academy of Motion Picture Arts and
Sciences. Currently, Mr. Lee also sits on the board of the Los
Angeles-based Independent Film and Television Alliance and
is a member of Hong Kong Film Development Council. Born
and raised in Hong Kong, Mr. Lee holds an honours degree in
Economics from the University of Wales Institute of Science and
Technology.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREHERBZEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Hoi Yue, aged 53, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since May 2002. Mr. Ng
is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee as well
as a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Ng is currently an executive
director and the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of Asian
Citrus Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 73) and an independent
non-executive director of Imperial Pacific International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1076), both are Hong Kong
listed companies. He has been practising as a Certified
Public Accountant in Hong Kong since 1989. Mr. Ng is a
fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in England.

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene, aged 54, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since July 2014. Ms.
Chan is a member of the Audit Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. She is a retired
solicitor with over 19 years’ of experience as independent non-
executive director of listed companies. Currently, she is also an
independent non-executive director of two Hong Kong listed
companies, Chinlink International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
997) and Emperor W&J. She was previously an independent non-
executive director of New Media Group until 27 March 2015.
Ms. Chan graduated from The University of Hong Kong with
Bachelor’s Degree in Laws.

Mr. Ho Tat Kuen, aged 43, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since November 2016. Mr.
Ho is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. He has been practising as a Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong since 2009. He has over 20 years of
experience in the accounting profession. Mr. Ho is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, and is a Certified Tax Adviser in
Hong Kong.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

The Directors hereby present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group
is principally engaged in entertainment, media and cultural
development business, particularly in the Greater China, which
include (i) cinema development and operation; (i) investment
and production of films, TV programmes and other media
related projects; (iii) investment in a variety of cultural events
including music concerts, live shows and theatrical performances
etc.; and (iv) investment in securities. Details of the principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group's business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year and an analysis of
the likely future development of the Group’s business are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 4
to 10 of this annual report. Description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 40 and 41 of this annual report
and notes 5(b) and 6 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Save as disclosed in note 46 to the consolidated financial
statements, there is no important event affecting the Company
that had occurred since the end of the Year up to the date of
this report.

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policy and
performance, key relationships with the Group’s key stakeholders
as well as compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
which have significant impact on the Company are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report from pages 48 to
53 of this annual report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by
business and geographical segments is set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 65 and 66.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the Year (2016: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 184 of the
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 38 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 69 and 70.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2017, the Company has no reserve available
for distribution to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) (2016: HK$20,980,000, representing the
balance of contributed surplus less accumulated losses).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 8 November 2011 (“Share Option Scheme”) and the
subscription agreement dated 19 December 2016 as disclosed
in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Company during the
Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares of the Company
(“Shares"”) on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, 96.1% of the Group’'s purchases were
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers with the largest
supplier accounting for 88.5% of the Group’s purchases. On
the other hand, 57.9% of the Group’s revenue was attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers with the largest customer
accounting for 46.1% of the Group's revenue.

As at 30 June 2017, to the knowledge of the Directors, none
of the Directors (other than Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander
who is one of the eligible beneficiaries under The Albert Yeung
Discretionary Trust (the “AY Trust”)), their close associates or
any Shareholders (other than Emperor Entertainment & Motion
Picture Holdings Limited and its holding company, Albert Yeung
Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”) as owned by the AY Trust)
owning more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital
had beneficial interests in the share capital of any of the above
major customers or suppliers of the Group.

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Chairperson)
(appointed on 31 March 2017)
Mr. Wong Chi Fai (appointed on 31 March 2017)
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander
(appointed on 31 March 2017)
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes (appointed on 31 March 2017)
Mr. Albert Lee (appointed on 31 March 2017)
Mr. Direk Lim (resigned on 20 April 2017)
Dr. Fan Rongzhang (resigned on 20 April 2017)
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ng Hoi Yue

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene

Mr. Ho Tat Kuen (elected on 23 November 2016)

Mr. Li Fui Lung, Danny (retired on 23 November 2016)

Biographical details of the current Directors and senior
management as at the date of this report are set out from
pages 11 to 13 of this annual report. Details of the Directors’
remuneration are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

In accordance with the Bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-
Laws, Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (“Ms. Vanessa Fan”), Mr.
Wong Chi Fai, Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander, Mr. Albert
Lee and Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes, who were appointed as
additional Directors to the Board during the Year, shall retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“2017 AGM").
In accordance with the Bye-law 86(2), 87(1) and 87(2) of the
Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr. Ng Hoi Yue and Ms. Chan Sim Ling,
Irene shall retire by rotation at the 2017 AGM. Being eligible, all
the retiring Directors (except Mr. Albert Lee) will offer themselves
for re-election.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2017 AGM has an expired service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which are
provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors and
officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect
of potential liability and costs associated with legal proceedings
that may be brought against the Directors and the directors of
the Group respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 30 June 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position interests in the ordinary Shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company

Capacity/ Nature of

Name of Director interests

EENS B RnHtE

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Eligible beneficiary of the
Alexander AY Trust

BB £ AY TrustZ & B X 2 A

Note:These Shares were held by Giant Lead Profits Limited (now known as
“Emperor Culture Group Holdings Limited”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Emperor Entertainment & Motion Picture Holdings Limited which
in turn is indirectly held by AY Holdings. AY Holdings is held by STC
International Limited (“STC International”) in trust for the AY Trust,
a discretionary trust under which Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander is
one of the eligible beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, none of the
Directors nor chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTION

The Company has in place the Share Option Scheme under
which the Directors may, at their discretion, grant options
to employees, including any Director of the Company or its
subsidiaries to subscribe for Shares, subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated therein. No option was granted under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption and up to 30 June 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share options as stated above, at the end of the
Year and at no time during the Year was the Company nor any
of its subsidiary undertakings was a party to any arrangements
to enable Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 30 June 2017, the interests of Directors or their respective
associates in the business which are considered to compete
or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group (“Competing Business”) as required to
be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Nature of Competing Business:

(1
()
3)

Cinema operation
Investment in films and TV programmes
Investment in music events

Interests in Competing Business:

BB RS 2 Pl

Name of competing

Name of Directors

BEEgs

company

BELAREE

Nature of interests
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BRI R B EF A BN AF EREFAERE
WA QB SRR EAMEA B Z R EH
1M 28 B A 2 o

EERBRFRBE 2D

MR2017F6 A30H EFHFEEZE2HEA
RERBEBE EMRAATEEZAEEE
BEENEEEBREF A RERRESE £
(IRBEK|FEESZEZNOT :

BEEH 2R

Bk = 8
EXNERHERE
BRIERE

Nature of Competing
Business

BMEEBME

Ms. Vanessa Fan Certain subsidiaries Director
Pelegun controlled/owned by EF

the AY Trust

FAY Trustf2 4],/

WA ETHERA
Mr. Wong Chi Fai -ditto- Director
BEEBEYE [ £ %
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, -ditto-

Alexander [l k£

BB RE
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes -ditto- Director
M AT 22 £ [ £ o=
Mr. Albert Lee -ditto- Director
MM K £ Ak 2

2016 / 2017 F %R

Director & an eligible beneficiary
of the AY Trust
BEERAY Trustz & ERBZmA
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT Hit AT ARG R HEBER G 2
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING mRRRE

SHARES

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 30 June 2017, the following persons or corporation
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or
were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO (“DlI
Register”) or as otherwise notified to the Company were as
follows:

REMBEX AR EZTHAER R
20176 A30H ' UM FALTSEAE (BREEsA
NRIEBITERABIN) RIRH SRR 5 + %
BEREEEREERBEARABREES TS
1551 E3365 B FECM ([REETM]) AT
RN BITNE AR ZERSABLT

REBRGz2HR

Long position in the Shares

Capacity/Nature of

interests

56 EEME

Number of
Shares

g q=

Approximate %
holding
BARKRES T

AY Holdings Interest in a controlled 1,000,000,000 31.12%
155 K E FE1E IR corporation (Note 1)
REES R A 2 ER (KE)

STC International Trustee of the AY Trust 1,000,000,000 31.12%
AY TrustZ 25 A (Note 1)
(FF=ET)

Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert Founder of the AY Trust 1,000,000,000 31.12%
(“Dr. Albert Yeung") AY TrustZ BINZ A (Note 1)
BEKEL ([HEL]) (K3E1)

Interest in a controlled 97,000,000 3.02%
corporation (Note 2)
AR el /N By - (K3E2)

Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse 1,097,000,000 34.14%
BENEt fic {8 # 2= (Note 3)
(FF3E3)

Golden Skill Limited Beneficial owner 350,000,000 10.89%
EnlEE A (Note 4)
(M5E4)

Mr. Tse Nicholas Interest in a controlled 350,000,000 10.89%
WEHEKE corporation (Note 4)
REIEH R A 2R (P 5E4)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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EFERE

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1. These Shares were the same shares of which Mr. Yeung Ching
Loong, Alexander had deemed interest as set out under the section
of "Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above.

2. The 97,000,000 Shares were held by Win World Profits Limited which
was wholly-owned by Dr. Albert Yeung.

3. By virtue of being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms. Luk Siu Man,
Semon also had deemed interests in the Shares under Notes 1 and 2.

4. These Shares were held by Golden Skill Limited which was wholly-
owned by Mr. Tse Nicholas.

All interests stated above represent long positions. As at 30 June
2017, no short positions were recorded in the DI Register.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2017, the Directors or
chief executives of the Company were not aware of any person
or corporation (not being a Director and chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have, any interests
or short positions in any Shares or underlying Shares as recorded
in DI Register or otherwise notified to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 5 May 2017, Major Marketing Communications Limited (now
known as “Emperor Cinemas (China) Limited”) (as tenant), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into
a tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement”) with H 2 (b
) B EMEAR AR (as landlord), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Emperor International, in relation to the leasing of
partial floor of each of B1, B2M, B2, Emperor Group Centre, D12
Jianguomenwai Dajie, Chaoyang District, Beijing, The People’s
Republic of China for cinema operation and related businesses,
including sale of food and beverage and related products e.qg.
books, music, art pieces, souvenirs and publications. The tenant is
also entitled to have one outdoor LED advertising space and one
outdoor space for logo display. The Tenancy Agreement has a term
of 10 years commencing from 5 May 2017 to 4 May 2027 with
an option to renew for 5 more years by the tenant. During the
Year, the rental paid by the tenant was RMB620,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$713,000).

2016 / 2017 F %R

B A+ RO REBEKRD 2
ERKRE ()

W :

1. ZERODDHEXEERTIETHRAERED 8
BRI M EREE 2 Em MR R | — B PR EAS TR
FERBRAEEER ZRD 2 BRI -

2. 97,000,000/ & 1516 £ 2 EH A 2 Win
World Profits Limited$3 % °

3. ERENELXTABBIZES BUHTEKRA
AW IR 2tz -

4. ZERMBAHEERLEERZEHESB ZGolden Skill
Limited+s & »

A FiiER AT R - R2017F6 308 « #
mEEMABMEEAAR -

B EXCPRIREREE SN R20175F6 H30H - EH K
ARRREEZITHRABL TMBEATALSOEE
(UHEFHARBEBITHAE) RERRKRND
HARRERD P EE IR R EERE RS
M ATRCER s R 1T MG AR R Z RIS %

AN

=

EERNRG RUISHZEER

M2017F5A58  ARal 2 B2 ENE AR T
ZETSEMERAR R [REFEEW (F
B)ERAR]) (FAMEF)HESRE 2 HE
2EWNBRAAIEE (AR)EHEREFRA
Bl (EAEX)FTuHER= ([AEHE])
NABBHEEFRZEARLMBE I R TG EE
INRET129R R ELEEFLFEBT ~B2MB2%F
HHERE  AREREERAEER  BIEHEE
ZHNABES (NEHE I THLE L2
m & EVRlan) - 2P I B #E% B — @~ SNED
REEEME—EFRINERESM HEWZ
AHI10F 8201765 A5H #£ £202745 A4H
WP EEEHSF - RAFE ZHEFE
XS ARM620,0007T (HHE 7R 47713,000
BIT) e
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EEEHE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

As both the Company and Emperor International are indirectly
controlled by the AY Trust, Emperor International is the
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Tenancy Agreement constitutes a
continuing connected transaction for the Company. Mr. Yeung
Ching Loong, Alexander, a Director, has deemed interest in the
transaction by virtue of being one of the eligible beneficiaries of
the AY Trust.

Compliance with disclosure requirements

Save as the “Rental expense to a related company’ in the
amount of HK$713,000 for the Year as shown in note 43
— "Material Related Party Transactions’’ to the consolidated
financial statements which constituted connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all
other transactions as shown in the note thereon are connected
transactions exempted from announcement, reporting, annual
review and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirement in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of the above continuing connected
transaction.

Auditor’s Letter on disclosed continuing connected
transaction

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” (the “Auditor’s Letter”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transaction disclosed by the Group (”Disclosed CCT") on pages
21 and 22 of this annual report in accordance with Main Board
rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Auditor’s Letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive
Directors

Pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”) have reviewed
the Disclosed CCT and the Auditor's Letter and have confirmed
that these transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be);
and

(3) according to the agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance which was significant in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or his/her connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during
the Year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are
independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Executive Directors are decided by
the Board as recommended by the Remuneration Committee
having regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures
a clear link to business strategy and a close alignment with the
Shareholders’ interest and current best practice), the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. The INEDs are paid fees in line with market
practice. No individual should determine his or her own
remuneration.

2016 / 2017 F %R
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

EMOLUMENT POLICY (continued)

Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration package
includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’ fees,
contribution to pension schemes, discretionary bonus relating to
the profit of the Group and individual performance and other
competitive fringe benefits such as medical life insurances.
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.

To provide incentive to the eligible participants (including
Directors and employees), the remuneration package has been
extended to include share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 25 to 47.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of the annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to the 2017 AGM to re-appoint of
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 21 September 2017

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIWE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
“Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards
Shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as employees of the
Company.

The Directors have adopted various policies to ensure compliance
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has fully complied with all the provisions of the CG
Code throughout the Year.

THE BOARD
Board composition

As at 30 June 2017, the Board comprised eight Directors, with
five Executive Directors (including the Chairperson) and three
INEDs. The composition of the Board represents a diversified
mixture of age, gender, educational and cultural background,
skills, knowledge, length of service and professional expertise
in management, legal, accounts and finance and corporate
development which is beneficial to the business development of
the Company. The profile of the Directors are set out from pages
11 to 13 of this annual report under the “Biographies of the
Directors and Senior Management” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executive

Ms. Vanessa Fan is the Chairperson of the Board who is responsible
for providing leadership to the Board. Taking up the role of
Chairperson, Ms. Vanessa Fan provides the Group with strong and
consistent leadership and is responsible for the management of the
Board. Ms. Vanessa Fan and Mr. Wong Chi Fai are responsible for
the Group’s strategic planning, business growth and development
as well as overseeing different functions. The day-to-day operation
and management of the Group’s businesses are delegated to other
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander
(“Mr. Alex Yeung”), Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes (“Ms. Shirley
Hughes”) and Mr. Albert Lee. The Board considers that such
segregation of duties functions effectively.

During the Year, the ex-Chairman of the Board, Mr. Direk Lim,
held a meeting with all the INEDs without the presence of the
then Executive Director (Dr. Fan Rongzhang).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIRE

THE BOARD (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with valuable experience and
expertise in legal, accounting or auditing who contribute
impartial view and make independent judgment on issues to be
discussed at Board meetings. They are appointed for an initial
term of three years and is renewed automatically for successive
terms of one year subject to early termination with written
notice being served by either party. The terms of the INEDs are
also subject to retirement by rotation and re-election provisions
under the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Company had received confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs. The Board considered each of them to be
independent by reference to the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The INEDs had been expressly identified
as such in all corporate communications of the Company that
disclose the names of Directors.

Roles and responsibilities of the Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible for
the leadership, control and promotion of the success of the
Group in the interests of the Shareholders by directing and
supervising its affairs and by formulating strategic directions and
monitoring the financial and management performance of the
Group.

Relationship between the Board members

None of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relations) among each other.

Directors’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREQHE

THE BOARD (continued)
Delegation to the management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (which comprises all the Executive Directors of the
Board) and has delegated powers and authorities to carry out
the day-to-day management and operation of the Group,
formulate business policies and make decision on key business
issues. The Executive Committee shall have all power and
authorities of the Board except the following matters as set
out in a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved by the
Board:

e  Publication of final and interim results of the Company
e  Dividend distribution or other distributions

e Major issues of treasury policy, accounting policy and
remuneration policy

e Changes to major group corporate structure or Board
composition requiring notification by announcements

e Publication of the announcements for notifiable
transactions and non-exempted connected transactions/

continuing connected transactions

e Non-exempted connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions

e Notifiable transactions requiring Shareholders’ approval

e (Capital re-structuring and issue of new securities of the
Company

e  Financial assistance to Directors

2016 / 2017 F %R
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIRE

THE BOARD (continued)

Induction, support and professional development
of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty
of disclosure of interest and business of the Group and such
induction materials will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors. All
Directors have been updated on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure
agreed by the Board to ensure Directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in order to assist
them to perform their duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training.
During the Year, each Director had participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/workshop or by
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to
the Company:

Name of Directors

Exg(#)
EECRHE ZERERERE

FTBESHERRHEBETESE CBERE
T - BHAREETZHEEON ARG FREESR
CEERAEEEK 2 ABESIER MEH
MEBHANERTTESELZTAESEEH
WRAKEFAIRE -FTEESHEEM ETR
AR EMBRAEERTEZZTERMMN AR
RETHZEHRATRINAREHRTFLEETRE
MeEH-EFTeCa Tl BRESFAUA
HEBRATEERERBRS KB IEEE LN
BB EBARRRTHEEZEE BRALN
NAVEFE

EEmR mEFeETEEEATANARE
EEI 2 FRIEXEA6SK - RNAFE  £&
EHEABLERMETIIEZERE T
DHBERE T T M 2 RS EE R
B UNEREREHNE 2ANBENZELE AR
NERHEIEIICER

Topics on training covered Mot

BT R 2 2 32 8| 3 58 (M)

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa EEEZ CG,FI1&R
Mr. Wong Chi Fai mEEEA CG, F1&R
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander B BE ST A CG,F I &R
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes = H 22+ CG, FI1&R
Mr. Albert Lee FIEH L £ CG, FI&R
Mr. Ng Hoi Yue hEFEE CG,F&R
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene [R5 2+ CG &R
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen A ER T A CG, F&R
Mr. Direk Lim Direk Lim%t 4
(resigned on 20 April 2017) (R2017F4H20H i (F) CG &R
Dr. Fan Rongzhang BRI L
(resigned on 20 April 2017) (R2017F4H20H B L) CG&R
Mr. Li Fui Lung, Danny R L
(retired on 23 November 2016) (R2016F11H23HET) CG, F&R
Notes: B 5 -
CG =  Corporate Governance G = ©EEHS
F = Finance F = W%
[ = Industry-specific [ = BEITE
R =  Regulatory R = EE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EELIERE
THE BOARD (continued) BEEE®(EF)
Directors’ attendance and time commitment EECHEBAREERA

The attendance of the Directors at the meetings during the Year RAFEEEEHFESH 2B RN T :
is set out below:

Number of meetings attended/held

RS/ EeERY

Corporate

Audit Remuneration Nomination  Governance  Executive General
Name of Directors Board Committee  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meetin

EEi? Bz EYZEe HMZEE REZE® (LEENRFEE H7EEf RRAe
Executive Directors /T E%

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Notes 1 & 2) N/A N/A
EEERL (M) 33 iR TER 00 00 00 111
Mr. Wong Chi Fqi (Notes 1 & 3) N/A N/A N/A
EHBLE (HE1R3) ElE! oyl 00 iR AR 000 1
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander (Note 1) N/A N/A N/A N/A
BHELE (W) 33 TR TiER 1ER 1ER 00 1
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes (Note 1) NIA NIA N/A N/A
FRE L (W) 33 1R 1R 1R 1ER 00 i
Mr. Albert Lee (Npte 1) NIA NIA N/A N/A
PR () 3R MR MER TER MER 00 1
Mir. Direk Lim (Note 4)
Direk Limz % (FifiE4) ‘ NA

(resigned on 20 April 2017) (R201784520R 8 () 99 MEE 0N 0 1 44 0N
Dr. fan Rongzhang (Note 5)
BRYEL (M) ‘ NA NA NA N/A

(resigned on 20 April 2017) (R201784 52088 1) 99 TER TER TER TER 414 0N

Independent Non-executive Directors B FH{TES

Mr. Ng Hoi Yue (Note 6) N/A N/A
BEFRE (Ho) 111 33 n n TER TER 33
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene /A N/A /A
BERTL 1M 33 TER TER i TR 33
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen (Note 7) N/A N/A
fEEnE (M) 718 n i i TER TER 0
Mr. Li Fui Lung, Danny (Note 8)
FRELE (M) NA N/A

(retired on 23 November 2016) (52016511 A23HR/E) 333 i i i TER TER n
Total number of meetings held £17&E 4% " 3 2 2 1 4 3
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ERELIRE

THE BOARD (continued)

Directors’ attendance and time commitment
(continued)

Notes:

1. Ms. Vanessa Fan, Mr. Wong Chi Fai, Mr. Alex Yeung, Ms. Shirley
Hughes and Mr. Albert Lee were appointed as Directors on 31 March
2017 and acted as the members of the Executive Committee.

2. Ms. Vanessa Fan has been the chairperson of the Board, Executive
Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee since 20 April 2017.

3. Mr. Wong Chi Fai was also appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee on 20 April 2017.

4. Mr. Direk Lim resigned as Director on 20 April 2017 and automatically
ceased to act as the chairman of Board, Executive Committee,
Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance Committee as well
as a member of the Remuneration Committee.

5. Dr. Fan Rongzhang resigned as Director on 20 April 2017 and
automatically ceased to act as a member of the Executive Committee

6.  Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

7. Mr. Ho Tat Kuen was elected as Director at the annual general meeting
held on 23 November 2016 (“2016 AGM") and was appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member of the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee on the same day.

8. Mr. Li Fui Lung, Danny retired as Director at the 2016 AGM and
automatically ceased to act as the chairman of the Audit Committee
as well as a member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee.

Upon reviewing (a) the annual confirmation on time
commitment given by each Director; (b) the directorships and
major commitments of each Director; and (c) the attendance
rate of each Director on full Board and its respective Board
committee meetings as well as general meetings, the Board is
satisfied that all Directors had spent sufficient time in performing
their responsibilities during the Year.

Board meetings and proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
interval. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures, all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREQWE

THE BOARD (continued)
Board meetings and proceedings (continued)

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the Board in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent
to the Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board
meeting. For all other Board meetings, reasonable notice
was given. Board papers and related materials which provide
appropriate, accurate, clear, complete and reliable information
are generally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting and Board Committee meeting to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions on matters placed before
it.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded in
sufficient details the matters considered and decisions reached,
with draft and final versions being circulated to the Directors for
their comment and records respectively, within a reasonable time
after the meetings are held. Originals of such minutes, being
kept by the Company Secretary, are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting
on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/
her associates has a material interest and he/she shall not be
counted in the quorum present at the Board meeting. INEDs
who, and whose close associates, have no material interest in
the transaction are present at that Board meeting.

Board committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee.

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee are INEDs.
Clear written terms of reference of all the Board Committees are
given to the respective members of these Committees. Details of
the Board Committees are set out below:
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ERELSRSE

THE BOARD (continued)
Board committees (continued)

1.

Executive Committee (set up on 28 January 2015)

The Executive Committee consists of five Executive
Directors, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the
Committee), Mr. Wong Chi Fai, Mr. Alex Yeung, Ms. Shirley
Hughes and Mr. Albert Lee. The primary duties of the
Executive Committee are (a) formulating business polices
and strategy and making decision on matters relating
to the investment, management and operations of the
Group; (b) reviewing the policy for prevention of bribery
and considering, approving and dealing with any matters
relating thereto; and (c) having all powers and authorities
of the Board except those matters specifically reserved for
the full Board as set out in the “Formal Schedule on matters
reserved for and delegated by the Board” adopted by the
Board from time to time.

Audit Committee (set up on 4 December 1998)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Ho Tat Kuen (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Ng Hoi Yue
and Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditors; (b) reviewing and monitoring
the external auditors’ independence and objectivity
and effectiveness of the audit process; (c) approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of external
auditors; and (d) reviewing financial information and
overseeing the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee held
three meetings during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out below:

i. reviewed with the finance personnel and/or the
external auditors the effectiveness of audit process and
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, and the accuracy and fairness of the annual
consolidated financial statements for the financial
year ended 30 June 2016 (“Previous Year”) and the
interim consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 31 December 2016;
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EREQWE

THE BOARD (continued)

Board committees (continued)
2. Audit Committee (set up on 4 December 1998)

BEEXEE (£
2. BEEREEE (R1998F12H4H5 )

(continued)

i. reviewed with the finance personnel the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group during the Previous Year;

iii. approved the audit plan for the financial year ended 30
June 2017, reviewed the independence of the external
auditors and approved the engagement of external
auditors; and

iv. recommended the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditors at the 2017 AGM.

Remuneration Committee (set up on 26 October
2005)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Ng Hoi Yue (Chairman of the Committee) and
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen, both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong Chi Fai,
being the Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration Committee
is primarily responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on (a) the Company’'s policies and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management; (b) the
remuneration of INEDs; and (c) the specific remuneration
packages for individual Executive Directors and senior
management. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the Year are set out in note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Remuneration
Committee held two meetings during the Year.

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee
during the Year was to review and recommend the Board on
the approval of the Director's fees of the newly appointed
Directors.
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ERELSRSE

THE BOARD (continued)
Board committees (continued)

4.

Nomination Committee (set up on 23 March
2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the Committee),
being the Chairperson of the Board, Mr. Ng Hoi Yue and Mr.
Ho Tat Kuen, both being INEDs.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are (a) reviewing the structure, size
and diversity of the Board; (b) reviewing the Board Diversity
Policy; (c) determining the policy for the nomination
of Directors and identifying suitable candidates for
directorship; (d) making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment, re-election or re-
designation of Directors and succession planning for
Directors; (e) assessing the independence of INEDs; and
(f) reviewing the time commitment of each Director. The
Nomination Committee held two meetings during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board;
ii. reviewed the independence of INEDs;

ii. reviewed the confirmation from Directors on time
commitment in performing their duties as Directors;

iv. recommended the Board on the nomination of Mr.
Direk Lim for re-election as Director at the 2016 AGM;

v. recommended the Board on the nomination of Mr. Ho
Tat Kuen as Director to fill the casual vacancy created
by the retirement of Mr. Li Fui Lung, Danny at the 2016
AGM; and
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THE BOARD (continued)
Board committees (continued) BEEXEE(E)

4. Nomination Committee (set up on 23 March 4. ERBEZEEE (R2012463H23817)
2012) (continued) (45&

vi. recommended the Board on the nomination of Ms. Vi

Exg (&)

MIBREXR L EEEELE BHRE

Vanessa Fan, Mr. Wong Chi Fai, Mr. Alex Yeung,
Ms. Shirley Hughes and Mr. Albert Lee as Executive
Directors.

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on the Board so as to enhance the
quality of its performance. Selection of candidates on
the Board is based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination
Committee will also assess the merits and contribution
that any Director proposed for re-election or any candidate
nominated to be appointed as Director will bring to the
Board against the objective criteria, with due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board that would complement
the Company’s corporate strategy.
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ERELSRSE

THE BOARD (continued)
Board committees (continued)

5.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 14
August 2015)

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of four
members, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the
Committee), being the Chairperson of the Board, Ms.
Chan Sim Ling, Irene, being an INED, a representative
of company secretarial function and a representative of
finance and accounts function. The specific written terms
of reference of the Corporate Governance Committee is
available on the Company’s website. The primary duties of
the Corporate Governance Committee are (a) reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Company and making recommendations to the Board; (b)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to Directors and relevant
employees of the Group on dealings with the Company’s
securities; (c) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; (d) reviewing and monitoring the
policies and practices of the Company on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; and (e) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this report. The Corporate Governance Committee held one
meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Corporate
Governance Committee during the Year is set out as

follows:

i. reviewed the Corporate Governance Policy and made
recommendation to the Board;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the code of conduct applicable to Directors
and relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed on Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this report.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiry to all Directors, all of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in the
Model Code throughout the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities to prepare
annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules.
The management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal consolidated financial statements
which give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group's performance position and prospects at the reporting
date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
Year, the Board adopted appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made judgment and
estimates that were prudent and reasonable and ensured the
consolidated financial statements were prepared on a “going
concern” basis (with supporting assumptions or qualifications
as necessary) and showed a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group for the Year. The management had
provided sufficient explanation and information to the Board
on the consolidated financial statements to enable it to make
an informed assessment of the financial and other information
put before it for approval. The auditors of the Company had
made a statement about their reporting responsibilities in the
Independent Auditors’ Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Goals and objectives

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation
and day-to-day running of a business and it assists a company
in achieving its business objectives. The Board acknowledges
its responsibility in maintaining a sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems (“Systems”) and
reviewing its effectiveness, which forms the development of
necessary policies and procedures. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or losses.
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ERELIRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Goals and objectives (continued)
The key objectives of the Systems include:

— safeguarding assets

— ensuring completeness, accuracy and validity of financial
records and reports

— promoting adherence to policies, procedures,
and laws

- promoting effectiveness and efficiency of operations

regulations

Governance control

The control structure of the Systems is set out as follows:

The Board

The Board is (i) responsible for the Systems and reviewing
their effectiveness; (ii) overseeing the Systems on an ongoing
basis with the assistance of Audit Committee; (iii) ensuring the
maintenance of appropriate and effective Systems; (iv) defining
management structure with clear lines of responsibility and
limit of authority; and (v) determining the nature and extent of
significant risk that the Company is willing to take in achieving
the strategic objectives and formulating the Group’s risk
management strategies

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible to (i) oversee and review
the adequacy and effectiveness of relevant financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management procedures
that have been in place and the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions;
(i) review the nature and extent of significant risks, and the
Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment (as detailed below); and (iii) review and
discuss annually the significant control failings or weaknesses
that are identified and raised by the auditors, consider major
findings and make recommendations to the Board on the risk
management and internal control procedures to address these
issues in consultation with the management and the auditors.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Governance control (continued)

The management (including heads of business units,
departments and divisions)

The management is responsible for (i) the design,
implementation and monitoring of the Systems properly and
ensuring the Systems are executed effectively; (ii) monitoring
risks and taking measures to mitigate risks in day-to-day
operations; (iii) giving prompt responses to, and following up the
findings on internal control matters raised by internal or external
auditors; and (iv) providing written confirmation to the Board on
the effectiveness of the Systems.

Internal Audit Department

The Internal Audit Department is delegated to (i) carry out
the analysis and independent appraisal of adequacy and
effectiveness of the Systems in respect of operational, financial
and compliance aspects; (i) alert the management on the audit
review findings or irregularities, if any, and advise them on
the implementation of necessary steps and actions to enhance
the internal controls of the Group. The result of internal audit
reviews and agreed action plans are reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board.

Risk management

The risk management process includes (i) risk identification;
(i) risk evaluation; (iii) risk management measures; and (iv) risk
control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyse,
evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks associated
with any activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority. It endeavours to evaluate and
compare the level of risk against predetermined acceptable
levels of risk. For risk control and monitoring, it involves making
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable and how to
address those that are not. The management will develop
contingency plans for possible loss scenarios. Accidents and
other situations involving loss or near-loss will be investigated
and properly documented as part of the effect to manage risks.
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ERELIRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Significant risks and strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified through the process
of risk identification and assessments. Such significant risks of
the Group and their respective key strategies/control measures
are set out below:

1. Inherent risk - Entertainment business

Entertainment business including investment in film and
TV industry and cinema operation is inherently risky. There
is no assurance of the economic success of any motion
picture or TV programme since the revenues generated
depend primarily on public acceptance and popularity of the
films and TV programmes, which cannot be predicted with
certainty.

e Stay alert to the changes in market trend, audience’s
needs and preferences;

e  Keep cautious in selection of stories and scripts; and

e Co-produce, co-invest or co-partner with business
associates to diversify the risk.

2. Inherent risk — Securities investment

There is no assurance of economic success of any
investment in securities since the fluctuation of share
price of an investee company can be influenced by various
internal (e.g. its own financial and operational failure
and litigation) and external factors (e.g. global economic
downturn and political instability) which are out of the
Group’s control.

e Already set up an investment policy and delegated
authority to the Executive Committee to implement
and execute the securities investment in accordance
with the policy;

e Stay alert to market situation and any news and
information of the investee company; take immediate
and appropriate action in response to any adverse
change; and

e Maintain good communication with investment
advisers.
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ERELIWE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Significant risks and strategies (continued)

3.

Strategic risk - Competition

(a)

Entertainment business is highly competitive, not
only in the film industry itself (between Chinese and
Western shooting films), but also subject to availability
and popularity of alternative form of entertainment.
There is no assurance that the Group can sustain its
competitiveness successfully in this business.

e Regularly review and adjust the business strategic
plans to cope with the competition in the film
industry;

e Diversify the Group’s entertainment business such
as expansion to cinema operation and animation
business to bring in new income stream and
provide other synergy effects to the Group; and

e Look for any other potential entertainment related
investment activities which can provide stable
contribution to the Group.

There is also intense competition in China theatrical
market due to continuous opening of movie theatres in
Mainland China. There is no assurance that demand in
the film screening will increase in line with or outpace
the supply of new cinemas which can adversely affect
the Group’s cinema operation.

e Dedicate to provide a premium 6-star theatrical
entertainment service and environment for the
audiences by equipping the Group’s cinema with
the most advanced visual and audio technology to
sustain its competitiveness;

e Improve marketing strategy and enhance
promotions and publicities in different social media
platforms from time to time in order to attract
more audiences; and

e Provide different sources of on-line or off-line
ticketing services.

The Company has used its best endeavours to manage the
above risks and continue to keep the focus on any new
emerging risks that are likely to exist in the days to come.
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ERELIRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL AEREERAIBEE (&)

CONTROL (continued)

Internal controls A EB L
The Board acknowledged that the management had EFe MK EEBECELEHAD NI

IARERASEE Z 28 M LaRaE L

progressively implementing an adequate internal control system  ZE#%;

to ensure the effective functioning of the Group’s operational, HBXEELRT :

financial and compliance areas as follows:

1. Operational 1.
Various principles and procedures are in place to cover the
day-to-day operational activities including but not limited
to the preparation of production and investment plans and
budgets, formulating a screening and approval process,
setting up of an on-going monitoring system for production
or job in progress, review on the production or time cost
spending and guidelines for investment in securities.

2. Financial 2.
Effective financial control is a vital element of internal
control. It helps in identifying and managing liabilities
to ensure that the Group is not unnecessarily exposed
to avoidable financial risks. It also contributes to the
safeguarding of assets from inappropriate use or loss,
including the prevention and detection of fraud and errors.

In order to achieve effective financial control, a set of
measures have been implemented to tighten the control on
cash flow. All payments are required to be properly checked
and approved. Proper accounting and financial records
shall be maintained to support financial budgets, monthly
management accounts and reports.

Regular reviews and audits are carried out to ensure that
the preparation of financial statements is carried out in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
the Group’s accounting policies and applicable laws and
regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREQWE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Internal controls (continued)

3. Compliance
The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance control:

e Systems and procedures on disclosure of inside
information to ensure, with the assistance of internal
work team (if required), that any material information
which comes to the knowledge of any one or more
officers should be promptly identified, assessed and
escalated, where appropriate, for the attention of the
Board;

e Policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements which shall be
reviewed and monitored regularly by the Corporate
Governance Committee as delegated by the Board;

e CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review continuing
connected transactions of the Company and ensure
proper compliance with all relevant laws and
regulations and the Listing Rules and disclosure
requirements; and

e Whistle-blowing policy for employees of the Group
to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters of the Group. Such arrangement will be
reviewed by the Audit Committee which ensures that
proper arrangement is in place for fair and independent
investigation of the matters

The Board acknowledged that it had received a confirmation
from the management on the effectiveness of the Systems of
the Group. Based on such confirmation and discussion with the
management, the Audit Committee and the Board had reviewed
the Systems and were not aware of any significant issues
that would have an adverse impact on the effectiveness and
adequacy of the Group’s operational, financial and compliance
areas of the Systems.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy and shall review on a regular basis to ensure its
effectiveness. The Company communicates with the
Shareholders mainly in the following ways: (i) the holding of
annual general meeting (“AGM") and special general meetings,
if any, which may be convened for specific purposes which
provide opportunities for the Shareholders to communicate
directly to the Board; (ii) the publication of announcements,
annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as required under
the Listing Rules; (iii) the availability of latest information of
the Group on the Company's website; and (iv) investor/analyst
briefings and/or media conference (when necessary).

Separate resolutions were proposed at the general meetings
for such substantial issues, including the re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders for the 2016
AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and notices of all other general meetings
were sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear business days before
the meetings.

The Chairman of the 2016 AGM and the chairman/members of
the Board Committees and the external auditors were available
at the 2016 AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders.
With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairman/
Chairperson of the meetings had explained the procedures for
conducting a poll during the meetings.

The forthcoming annual general meeting will be held on 22
November 2017 which will be conducted by way of poll.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREQWE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code:

Convening a special general meeting (“SGM") and
putting forward proposals at such meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth
(10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date
of the deposit of the requisition carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall have the right to
submit a written requisition requiring a SGM to be called by
the Board. The written requisition (i) must state the object(s) of
the meeting, and (ii) must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the principal office of the Company for attention of
the Company Secretary, and may consist of several documents
in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists. Such
requisitions will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong
Branch Share Registrar and upon its confirmation that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to convene a SGM by serving sufficient notice to all
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified
as not in order, the requisitionists will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the SGM will not be convened as requested.

The signatures and the requisition will be verified by the
Company's Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar. The Board will
proceed to convene a special general meeting for the transaction
of any business specified in the requisition within 21 days from
the date of deposit of such requisition if it has been validly
raised.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of a valid requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM for
a day not more than two months after the date of deposit of a
proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said date of
deposit of the requisition. In addition, such meeting convened
by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened
by the Board.

2016 / 2017 F %R

BRzER
RIBO % EAT AT R RS THAE
EMT

BRBRREFINRE ([RREINKE]) R
EZELRERBR
REBREIBIFRABNERARB ZEZA
A RMEXERAMBATDRARFDEE
AR (BARARAREARE LIREZHEF)
THZ—(10%)ZBREEEREEERNE
KEZEARRRERIAS - EEERG)ET
AAEEH RINVEAEXZRALHRELIX
EARARBTIERFR (ERBMHFA/RA R
) WA ABHREEBANXHER Eh
H—BRZREXBRALRE -BAZKE
HARBIZBERNBPEL O RZE W2
REERBZERAE RRAMERBRES
ERTEREREAEME - LA FBIREH
RE-RZ EABABRERE/TTARRF
AIERBRATHREBMNB AR MRRR
PIREHTERERARM-

BENERBHARRZEERNBFERLS
BRZE -MRHZERER EFFHENER
ZFEKEME21 B AL R RATEE RIE 2
=7 AR R RIRE -

HPNERXERBRAMEF21HARN - EFE KR
EHZELRHARNEERBMERKA MK
THEAMMEA 2 BMRBTZBREN KRS
AERBRAL (REFHERSE2BEARE
A EZERAL) R B EERBIRER
Rg EEFABRLEERZEREIASEHNE
R EaER ZSKE MR 3ME A JEmiRR1T
SN ERBRALABRZAGEEENR
ExedMAgHRZTAER-

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 / 2017



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERELIRE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Convening a special general meeting (“SGM")
and putting forward proposals at such meeting
(continued)

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of the registered Shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
or not less than 100 of such registered Shareholders, can request
the Company in writing to (a) give to Shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the next general meeting notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled
to have notice of any general meeting any statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in
any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting. The requisition signed by all the requisitionists must
be deposited at the principal office of the Company with a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses
and not less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a
requisition requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one
week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition
Provided that if an AGM is called for a date six weeks or less
after the requisition has been deposited, the requisition though
not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have
been properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

Proposing a person for election as a Director

The procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available for viewing on the Company’s
website.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited. Other enquiries from
Shareholders can be directed to the Investor Relations
Department of the Company whose contact details are shown
on the “Corporate Information and Key Dates” section of this
Annual Report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no significant changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREQHE

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditors to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members
of the Audit Committee were of the view that the Company's
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited is independent and
has recommended the Board to re-appoint it as the Company’s
auditors at the 2017 AGM. During the Year, HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited has rendered audit services and certain non-audit
services to the Group and the remuneration paid/payable to it by
the Group is set out as follows:

Service rendered

SRt ZR%

Statutory audit
ETE B X

Non-audit services

FEEZRS
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HERELESE

The Group is committed to the principles of good corporate
governance, and strives to integrate corporate social
responsibility into its business strategy and management
approach. This report aims to provide the Group’s stakeholders
with an overview of the Group’s efforts regarding environmental,
social and governance impacts arising from its daily operations.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH MAJOR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group continues to engage with its employees, customers,
suppliers, shareholders and other stakeholders through different
channels to develop mutually beneficial relationship and
promote sustainability.

The Group places a strong emphasis on employees’ well-being,
as well as training and development opportunities. For details,
please refer to “Health and safety” and “Development and
training” sections below.

The Group is committed to delivering excellent customer
services. For details, please refer to the “Product responsibility
and customer services” section below.

The Company uses suppliers that reflect its values and
commitment, and maintains solid relationships with them. For
details, please refer to the “Supply chain management”
section below.

The Company maintains ongoing dialogues with its shareholders.
For details, please refer to the section “Communication with
Shareholders” as set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on page 44.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Environmental policies and performance

During the Year, the Group continued making its best
endeavours to protect the environment in its business activities
and workplace. The Group educates its employees on their
awareness of promoting a green environment. The Group seeks
to identify and manage environmental impacts attributable to
its operations, in order to minimise these impacts if possible.
Various measures have been adopted to reduce energy and
other resource use, minimise waste and increase recycling,
and promote environmental protection in its supply chain and
marketplace. These measures are discussed in the “Use of
resources” and “The environment and natural resources”
sections below.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HERELRE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Use of resources

Global warming and climate change are among the major
environmental problems in every part of the world. The
electricity consumption in offices and cinema operations
contributes most of the Group's carbon footprint. Several
measures have been implemented in order to reduce electricity
consumption, such as minimising use of chiller units during
night-time, using LED lamps, switching off passenger lifts after
office hours, etc. To identify energy efficiency opportunities, the
Group measures and records the energy consumption intensity
from time to time.

The environment and natural resources

Creating a paperless working environment not only reduces
environmental damage but also fits commercial goals, as it
can save physical space, facilitate information sharing via IT
networks, and reduce complicated documentation procedures.
The Group has implemented paperless internal human resources
processing — such as employee time sheets, payrolls and leave
application. Moreover, duplex printing and copying has become
the norm within the Group, greatly reducing paper consumption
and saving costs. Data on printing is regularly collected and
assessed, to monitor the efficiency of the paperless environment.

Partnering with its printing solutions provider, the Group has
adopted “Follow You” print solution in the headquarters,
helping the Group become more cost efficient through smarter
printing. The print solution enables the Group to achieve
environmental objectives by reducing unclaimed printing, as
printing is released only upon presentation of a staff card from
that particular staff who gives the printing instruction.

The staff are encouraged to actively participate in the Group’s
recycling effort. In the headquarters, designated containers for
disposal of recyclable paper are placed in common areas. The
recyclable papers are regularly collected by a recycling vendor for
further processing.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HERELESE

WORKPLACE QUALITY
Workforce

The Group believes that a motivated and balanced workforce is
crucial for building a sustainable business model and delivering
long-term returns. The management believes that people are
important assets for the Group, and remains committed to
attracting and retaining talent with diverse backgrounds for
achieving sustainable growth.

As at 30 June 2017, the permanent employees of the Group
totalled 95, working in the headquarters and cinema operations.
84% of employees was based in Mainland China, and the
remaining was based in Hong Kong.

Health and safety

The Group values the health and well-being of staff. In order
to provide employees with health coverage, staff are entitled
to benefits including medical and life insurance as well as other
competitive fringe benefits.

The Group prides itself on providing a safe, effective and
congenial work environment for its staff. Health and safety
training is provided to all employees on induction. Office memos
and guidelines on occupational health and safety are issued, and
keep all employees informed.

The Group proactively identifies potential occupational hazards,
to reduce staff exposure to accidents. Every case of injury (if
any) is required to be reported to the Group Human Resources
Department and be individually assessed under the internal
guideline procedures.

Development and training

To promote long-term career development for staff, the Group
strongly supports staff participation in training programs
organised by external professional bodies, and provides funds
and subsidies to staff based on their career development needs.
Various training courses are regularly conducted to promote
occupational safety, fire and emergency response, first aid and
customer serving skills. During the Year, the Group dedicated
around 1,360 hours to staff training, representing approximately
14 hours per employee.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

THEREEZR

8T

KEBFEE —ZEGIHE LGS
TEE SR IRECLERRGEEND
WBIRTE ERERE BT ALEYE
TAE URARIARBETRASSMAL -
MER A ERE -

R2017F6 A30H AEBH A 4 Ho5% & B
BE FERERNEZIRER TR 84%2

ETREENG T MEHE TAREET
o
BERZR

AEBEERE T 2E@FEREU - BAE THREMH
RERE RMARHZEEIRMN BEBER
R ANFREIA N E A AT 2 BIMER)

AEEFNAREIRELZE SMEFELZT
ERR AN AR -RARBK - FIEETHA
BXEREEZ2E AR THERE LA
FHBEXRFEZE2NRAEHTEENIES -

7N SR B A5 15 4 8 B A BB R MR - DARUIE
BITHARIIMEE  —BRHLETHEFHR (W
B) wAEBBREBANERES  WRIEAE
SIREFETTHEILA G -

BRRE
RTREETINREZEER AEBAIX
FET2 MR ERBERNIFIIRE X
REETINRXERFEARFREEED LA
B REEE MBS AEIIRE UNRE
TZBERE NERESZWEY SREK
EFRBEIG -NAFE AEERE THE
T EA R ,360/N\F HERBREEZHEY
14/ 2 555l -

B AL A LA WA PR 2w



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HERELRE

OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply chain management

The Group has established solid relationships with a number
of cinema exhibition equipment and services providers who
maintain high levels of quality control and service standards.
The selection of suppliers is based on criteria such as quality,
supplier's capability and experience, with preference given to
suppliers who demonstrate their environmental commitment.

Product responsibility and customer services

The state-of-the-art cinema under the Group offers premium
viewing experience for audiences. The theatres are designed to
provide an unparalleled and luxurious visual, audio and sensory
experience, resulting in enhanced customer satisfaction. The
cinema possesses various advanced technologies and facilities
such as IMAX theatre system, 4DX motion system, D-Box seats
and Dolby Atmos sound system.

The Group believes in recognising the support and loyalty of its
customers. To appreciate these valuable relationships, the Group
has established an exclusive loyalty program for rewarding loyal
customers with unmatched privileges and special offers.

Protection of data

The Group places the utmost importance on protecting the
privacy of its customers, partners and staff in the collection,
processing and use of their personal data. The Group adheres
to the applicable data protection regulations and ensures
appropriate technical measures are in place to protect personal
data against unauthorised use or access. The Group also ensures
that customers’ personal data is securely stored, and processed
only for the purpose for which it has been collected. Relevant
staff are provided with adequate training in compliance with
applicable laws on data privacy protection, to strengthen
their awareness and to protect personal data against loss,
unauthorised access, use, modification or disclosure.

Protection of intellectual property

The Group builds up and protects its intellectual property rights
by prolonged use and registration of domain names and various
trademarks including “Emperor”. The Group has registered
trademarks in various classes in Hong Kong, mainland China and
other relevant jurisdictions.

2016 / 2017 F %R

RERER

HESEEE

K‘Eliﬁi%%i’ﬁhﬁﬁﬁ B R SRR
EXRRIIRERMRGHELIRENA1E

FW? # Eﬁﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ% 1 ERNE N RE

BREERETEE SREBITREREENMHE

BEAEELEE-

EmEEREFR®E
AEEBRTEENEXREABERERERE

MBEER E¥REREERELRETEN
BE BEREAZER BEMEERME

A - BB H TR B LR K&
IMAX R BR Z 4% - ADXEN R R 4% ~ D-Boxid M At bt
PEEEUELS-

Z’K/iliT E ?’i?‘f&/u\ﬂmg}zlt\ﬁ_
W RTRHABRUEBENWER AEEERL

EENEHE RS UWEHNEEREER
BEHES -

$EIEH&’$ BRENERAAEERR  AIEBH
&,E\IE’MI}\éfﬂﬂkﬁP HBIREREHNLE

BENER AEBEERKEEANE
ﬂf% &WUIE&T%?&jiE.?ZHUW i RS
(EVNCREE RS 3B R TN SLID))
EREFEAENELZ2ZZMRT LR &
B REIEENRRER AR ERBERENL
RE M ERAPIRMERE TRETRFII
A REN BB M REBABEHRTER
RIS £ B IREE -

REANBERE
AEBEBFEEAMEREREZERR
(BRIRE]) MELRREENBERE K&
BEERE PEAMNEMER DA ERTE
it 2 [E BB AR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 / 2017



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HERELESE

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Anti-corruption/Anti-money laundering

It is essential for the Group’s employees to acquire a better
understanding of corruption and related acts. In addressing
and mitigating corruption risks, a set of guidelines was
established to outline acceptable and unacceptable conduct
in employees’ daily business activities. It reaffirms that every
employee adheres to applicable legal requirements and makes
ethical business decisions. Employees are given anti-corruption
briefings organised by the Group or seminars organised by the
Independent Commission Against Corruption of Hong Kong. The
Group has also adopted whistleblowing system and procedures
for all levels and operations under the Group, so staff can raise
concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties such as
misconduct and malpractice in any matter related to the Group.
These policies and procedures can be found in the employee
handbook on the Company’s intranet.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group's Corporate Governance Committee is delegated by
the Board to monitor and review its policies and practices on
compliance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements.
Updates on the applicable laws, rules and regulations are
brought to the attention of relevant employees and relevant
operation units from time to time. The management must ensure
that the conduct of business of the Group conforms with the
applicable laws and regulations.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Embracing the mission “From the Community, To the
Community”, the Group actively promotes diverse community
campaigns spanning elderly welfare, underprivileged
communities and environmental conservation initiatives. The
Group’s management team also plays an important role in
mobilising staff to join all these activities, which are held in
tandem with its commitment to sustainable development.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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B HERELRE

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued)

The Group is dedicated to promoting environmental awareness
through green education. On 25 March 2017, the Group joined
the millions of people around the globe and turned off its
office lights in support of WWF's Earth Hour, an annual event
to raise awareness of climate change. In the “Green Monday
Fruit Day” campaign, an item of fresh fruit is given to each
staff member on the first working day of every week. “Green
Monday Light Lunch” was also launched, allowing staff to
order a healthy and delicious lunch, such as sandwiches and
salads, at a special price. These measures helped staff to raise
awareness about eco-friendly diets and maintaining a healthy
lifestyle.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
hvR L

HL

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Culture Group Limited (formerly known as “See
Corporation Limited”) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 65
to 183, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2017, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 30 June 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“"HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

VRS LT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

REEZEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RAEFEZEIEANITIREZZEHE  PNEZAK
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the EHiffi%AMEHERTEZEENFTHEH  A1TNE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These IXEBESSFMERREBETRIBHEEHENLR
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the HWHEFTER MIeHHEZEEEFEKRER -
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key audit matters

ARBEXEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RIT2ERNAEERARELSZE

Accounting for business combination

EBEHzETRE

Refer to note 39 to the consolidated financial statements
2846 B R KR M FE39

During the year, the Group completed the acquisition of
Jade Dynasty Multi-Media Limited (“JDMM”). The total
consideration was HK$134,455,000 and the fair value of
net assets acquired from the business combination was
HK$40,994,000. As a result, the Group had recognised a
goodwill arising on acquisition of HK$98,250,000 in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

REFE X BERETHKEEFEFZEBARAA([E
EHZHEE]) LR ER134,4550008 AR B ¥
B I 2 B EFE 2 A A {B18 340,994,000/ 7T °
bt BEREERGAUBRAZRERKBEE BHE
98,250,000/ JT °

The acquisition requires the identification of assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed and the consideration
measured at fair value at the date of acquisition, which
require the significant management’s judgement.

WHEEBRFMKEz EERAAE 2 BRBURRIER
HIZAREBEAEZRE WEFTEEREZERHAEG -

Independent external valuation was obtained in order to
support the management'’s estimates.
EESB I EENZFERE 2 date

Our procedures in relation to the management’s
accounting for business combination included:
RITHEBEREBEH IS REBZERETE
&

e Evaluation of the independent valuer’s
competence, capabilities, independence and
objectivity;

o FMEBNfHEMZA® BN BUMREEME:

e Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions ; and

o FHEMEAZITANERBRZAEN &

e Checking, on sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

o MEREMAEAREZ ERIE AR -

We found that the key assumptions were supported
by the available evidence.

RTIRR BREBERCEASEE S -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters

ERELER

REREXEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RIT2ERNMAEERRERSE

Impairment assessment on goodwiill

BEZBEN G

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements
SHEAMEREN 9

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had goodwill of
HK$95,614,000 relating to the production, distribution
and licensing of animated TV episode and theatrical film
business.

R20176A30H BEEERBEETRAERERER
ZBE BT R R TS A 895,614,000 7T ©

The management performed impairment assessment of
goodwill and concluded that impairment loss on goodwill
of HK$2,636,000 was recognised in profit or loss.
ERECHRBETHENGIRERNERAEIRBE
BB 552,636,000/ 7T ©

This conclusion was based on value-in-use model that
required the significant management’s judgement with
respect to the discount rate and the underlying cash
flows, in particular future revenue growth and capital
expenditure.

thigEm DERNEREERUFEL YHFZEEERITE
EREERSRIELERALE  CERRKKFIER KR
BEARRX -

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment included:

AITRBERH G 2 EREF B

Evaluation of the independent valuer’s
competence, capabilities, independence and
objectivity;

FMEEN EM A BN B REEMN

Discussion with the management on their
planned strategies around business expansion,
revenue stream, growth strategies and cost
initiatives, and obtaining the list of secured
contracts;

HERENRABUER TR 2EEIRE I
AR G R KB MR R AR ERENEE
H2BE:

Assessing the appropriateness of the key
assumptions made by the management, including
growth rates, profit margin and expected
changes in capital expenditure with reference
to current market circumstances and using our
valuation experts;
AEEREEMRACEARBRZEEL BT
RE -FHEEALSRBBITHISKATERE KRR
X ZBIERMBATZEEER:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters

RREXEE

FAREKER(F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RIT2ERNAEERARERSZE

Impairment assessment on goodwill (continued)

BB 2 BER M (A

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

2R B RRME19(E)

Independent external valuation was obtained in order to

support the management’s estimates.

ERBBEILIIBEENHERE 2 A5

2016 / 2017 F %R

e Testing the appropriateness of key inputs applied
by the management in preparing the cash
flow forecasts against historical performance,
including revenue, cost of sales and operating
expenses, with reference to the future strategic
plans of the Group in respect of the cash-

generating unit; and

e ARAEBEHEMELRE (BEBRAHERAER
REFX) 2% EREZREELEMIERK
REEFTEMARRZRERERAMEAZIES

ABRZEEMN &

e Assessing the assumption on the long-term
growth rates in the forecast and the discount
rate with reference to the cost of capital of the

Group.

o 2E FREEZEAFGHETEAP 2 REIERE

ARATBRE ZRK -

We found that the key assumptions were supported
by the available evidence.

RTRR BREBERCEMBEE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters

BREELEE

FAREXER(4F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

R TzBERNMMEERRERER

Impairment assessment for film and television (“TV”) programme rights, film and TV programme
production in progress and investments in film production

EYRERTERE REPZEXRERHTEURRE

FREZREZREFG

Refer to notes 24, 25 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements

2R MR 24 - 25526

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had film and TV
programme rights, film and TV programme production
in progress and investments in film production with the
carrying amounts of HK$11,986,000, HK$215,463,000
and HK$1,683,000 respectively.

M2017F6A30H - EBEEBEZEY NERE A Mk &
R 2B RERG B ARNELEUEZIREREED A
#11,986,000/8 7T * 215,463,000/ 7T 12 1,683,000/ JT ©

The management performed impairment assessment of
film and TV programme rights, film and TV programme
production in progress and investments in film production
and concluded that impairment losses of HK$2,485,000,
HK$Nil and HK$62,845,000 respectively were recognised
in profit or loss.

ERECHETNERDEME BUEPZEXRERED
BARREBHZEE 2 REEITRER L MWORE D BIRE
= PN T SR (B B3 182,485,000/ 7T+ 7 7T 1262,845,000
BT

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment included:

RITHRERHE 2 FBRIEF R

e  Discussion with the management on their planned
schedule and the stage of completion in respect of
the films and TV programmes;

s HERENRHEAMETLEREGHE 2CEIE
Wi&m%ﬁa &

e Understanding the procedures taken by the
management in estimating the projected
distribution income of film and TV programme
rights and investments in film production and
assessing the reasonableness of such estimation;

s THEBESGABEXNERGEREALRE
FERUEZRE Z BT ETW AR PRI Z 22 Fr A
SRR S I A= Be i

e Assessing the methodology adopted by the
management and the appropriateness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of, in
relevant industry;

o RBRERNTREBITENMNIFIELEREMRAZ
TENBRBRAEML

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED e B3k e e 4 WA PR A )
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters

RREXEE

AREXER(4F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RIT2ERNAEERARERSZE

Impairment assessment for film and television (“TV”) programme rights, film and TV programme
production in progress and investments in film production (continued)

EURERHENA RSP EUREND A URREHREZ RE 2 HETE ()

Refer to notes 24, 25 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

SRR M MRN 24 - 25826(4&)

Impairment of film and TV programme rights and
investments in film production were assessed based
on either net realisable value of the film rights to be
disposed of or value-in-use model that required the
use of discount rate and the underlying cash flows, in
particular future revenue growth and capital expenditure.
BYNERGEREARREXLRIEZRE 2 RBEG
TEREHESHRE 2 A2 EREAEEESR (A
ERAFREREERER LEERARBRERIER
FIsC) e »

Impairment of film and TV programme production
in progress was assessed by comparing the carrying
amount and the recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined based on the estimate used by the
management.

BER B RERDHE ZREN G DBBLREETE
MAalEe@EL - Al B @ BRFEERBER Z st
HEETE -

These conclusions required the significant management'’s
judgement, with respect to the discount rate and the
underlying cash flows, in particular future revenue
growth and capital expenditure.
ZEEwATIEERITIR R RAABE 2 RIEL EARHE
LHERRRWESFIER N EAF -

Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry; and
BERNTHBEBEBRITEZRBBTEHARREBR
EEEE R

Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

MEREM A AR 2 BRI LA

We found that the key assumptions were supported
by the available evidence.

ZNE)

R BREBERDEMFERF-
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters

ERELER

REREXEE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

RIT2ERNMAEERRERSE

Fair value measurement on contingent consideration receivable

FEURHAKE 2L ABETE

Refer to note 29 to the consolidated financial statements
S A B IS REN 29

As at 30 June 2017, the fair value of contingent
consideration receivable was HK$8,483,000 and the
Group recognised a gain on fair value change of the
contingent consideration receivable of HK$338,000 in
profit or loss.

720176 A30H @ RIS ARE 2 A7 (BE 48,483,000
BB EXEEREBEEABRRERIAREBAAEBEE
B) I #%338,000/8 7T

The measurement of fair value of the contingent
consideration receivable involves significant degree of the
management’s judgement.

RRSIARB AR BEFESREEE ZERHH-

Independent external valuations were obtained in order
to support the management’s estimates.

EREBE LI BEEATFERE 2 EET-

Our procedures in relation to fair value measurement
of contingent consideration receivable included:
RIOTHERFIARBZAABEFEZERZEFE
1

e Evaluation of the independent valuer's
competence, capabilities, independence and
objectivity;

o FMEBEUEER A ® BN B RFEIL:

e Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions and
using our valuation experts;

o FHMAEMMERAZAENBEREBRZEBEELEAAR
TZREZER:

e Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions such as the profitability, distribution
of the result and income forecasts for
measurement of the contingent consideration
receivable based on for our research business and
industry.

o BREARTHEBRITEZMRAEFEMANTERK
IAREB2ARBRR (WAFEN DHEEER
WATBR) REEE: &

e  Checking, on sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

o MEREMABABREZERIE AL

We found that the key assumptions were supported
by the available evidence.
RITRER BRERRXCEMGBER -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
B e HRE

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

2016 / 2017 F %R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
hvR L

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors’ report is Yu Chi Fat.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practicing Certificate Number: P05467

Hong Kong, 21 September 2017

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SeRaEEftt2EkRR

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FATT
Continuing operations: HEKEXK:
Revenue A 7 44,925 24,251
Cost of sales 5 AR (37.460) (16,056)
Gross profit EF 7,465 8,195
Other revenue H 2 9 16,726 10,574
Distribution costs 7 8RR (7,399) (7,497)
Administrative expenses THRAX (41,272) (29,553)
Other operating expenses HihgE T 10 (72,477) (26,786)
Change in fair value of financial BRARBEAAEBRZ
assets at fair value through profit & V;ﬂiéﬁzﬁﬁ BE
or loss &t (7,115) (21,640)
Loss from continuing operations BEREERZER 10 (104,072) (66,707)
Gain on disposal of associates HERE R E 2 W 21 34,825 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARzl 41 - 18,039
Finance costs B #AKAS 11 (6) (12)
Loss before taxation from continuing 13 48 4% & 3£ %5 2 B& i A
operations B 18 (69,253) (48,680)
Tax credit HIEE R 13 175 -
Loss for the year from continuing BEKRSER 7 FEER
operations (69,078) (48,680)
Discontinued operation: CRIEREER:
Loss for the year from discontinued B IMEE XKz FEEIE
operation 14 - (28,747)
Loss for the year FEER (69,078) (77,427)

2016 / 2017 F %R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FERaRREtMEERER

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

2017 2016

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5F FET TAT

Other comprehensive income/ FEHMEEmWE

(loss) for the year (&58)
Items that may be reclassified HENEFTHEE B
subsequently to profit or loss: JHH :
Exchange differences on BREBINEBEEZ
translating foreign operations MEH =58 100 (5,964)
Reclassification adjustments FEEHEEINEBZ
relating to foreign operations BEFOBAR
disposed of during the year - 1,066
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FEKTi & EM 2 mE U~
for the year, net of tax (&) 100 (4,898)
Total comprehensive loss for the year & 2 H E1B42%58 (68,978) (82,325)
(Loss)/profit for the year EEEE (BE) 5F:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KABER A (62,327) (106,015)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR (6,751) 28,588
(69,078) (77,427)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ BEEEE2E (KR W
income for the year wE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE ¥ =WN (61,825) (108,287)
Non-controlling interests FEIE R IR (7,153) 25,962
(68,978) (82,325)
Loss per share attributable to the QA FHEE AEBEETRKR
owners of the Company: BiE:
From continuing and BELCERCRILREEK
discontinued operations
— Basic and diluted —BEAREE 15 HK$(0.03)i& T HK$(0.05)% 7T
From continuing operations BREREER
— Basic and diluted —HEARR#EE 15 HK$(0.03)7%& 7T HK$(0.02)/& 7T

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these [iBEMIMI TR L EEAMBRETAI D

consolidated financial statements. GieaN
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SaEMBERAER

At 30 June 2017 201746 H30H

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FH&ET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB REE 18 72,241 59,431
Goodwiill kS 19 95,614 -
Intangible assets mEE 20 25,489 -
Contingent consideration JE W sk AR AB
receivable 29 485 -
Deposit paid for acquisition of WEMB AR ZEN
subsidiaries g 22 = 30,000
193,829 89,431
Current assets RBEE
Inventories BE 23 131 152
Film and TV programme rights B RERE B RE 24 11,986 50,471
Film and TV programme BER 2B RER
production in progress =] 25 215,463 108,173
Investments in film production REZREZTRE 26 1,683 15,647
Trade receivables B 5 Wk 27 16,642 5,544
Other receivables, deposits and Hip el sk e M
prepayments iCENES 28 53,553 96,514
Contingent consideration JEW AR AE
receivable 29 7,998 -
Financial assets at fair value BRAnBEFAERZ
through profit or loss /i\@éqé 30 52,441 63,385
Cash and bank balances BeMIETHEF 33 452,616 398,515
812,513 738,401
Asset classified as held for sale DERFIELEZEAE 34 47,600 -
860,113 738,401
Current liabilities nRBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H th e~ 3R 35 111,887 38,744
Amounts due to related FETREE R R F IR
companies 36 16,049 -
Amount due to non-controlling JE 1<) 3 122 AR 25 R 1B
interests 36 44,870 37,782
Tax payable JE A 7518 - 17
172,806 76,543

2016 / 2017 F %R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIKAR

720176 HA30H

At 30 June 2017

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THTT
Net current assets REBEEFE 687,307 661,858
Total assets less current liabilities B EE R RBEG 881,136 751,289
Non-current liability FRBEER
Deferred tax liability RAERIERE 37 242 -
Net assets EEFE 880,894 751,289
Capital and reserves attributable A2 F#EE AEHEKRER
to the owners of the Company  f###
Share capital AR A 38 32,133 22,133
Reserves ] 872,046 754,044
904,179 776,177
Non-controlling interests FERER (23,285) (24,888)
Total equity RSB 880,894 751,289

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
21 September 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
EEEZ L
Executive Director

HITEE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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Executive Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReERE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company
KDAREAEL
Accumulated
Capital profits/ Non-
Share  redemption Contributed  Exchange  Statutory (losses) controlling

Share capital  premium reserve  surplus reserve reserve  ZitAl  Subtotal interests
RE  RBEE EARERE 8RR  AEEE  iREE /(BB Mt FEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Tin TR TR TR TR TR Tin TR TR

(note(i) i (note (iv) (note (v)
(F6)
At 1 July 2015 H01587818 2,133 733,016 50 58,658 (368) 88 70,887 884,464 (26,561) 857,903
(Loss)fprofit for the year FE(58) /&7 - - - - - - (106015 (106,015 28,588 (17427)
Other comprehensive loss for the year  EF {2 AR - - - - 221 - - 221 (2,626) (4,89)
Total comprehensive ERRE(ER)/
(loss)/income for the year heeyit] - - - - 2 - (106,015) (108,287) 25,962 (82,325

Fffect from disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEHBAT 2 ¥

(note 41) (Mistar) - - - - - 8) 8 ) B0 020
Non-contralling interests arising from ~ WEMBAFFEZ
acquiston of subsidiaries (note 39)  FEERER (H3£39) - - - - - - - - ] 1

At30June2016and 1uly 2016 2016567308 R

W1657A18 2,133 133,016 50 58,658 (2,640) - (35,040) 116,177 (24,888) 751,289
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - (62321)  (623)) 6751 (69,078)
Other comprehensive incomelfloss) £ K2 ENE/
for the year (BE) - - - - 502 - - 502 (402) 100
Total comprehensive FEZENE
income(loss) for the year (BB)a8 - - - - 502 - (62,327) (61,825) (1.153) (68,978)
lssue of new shares by subscription ~~ BBFEETHRN 10,000 180,000 - - - - - 190,000 - 190,000
Share issing expenses Ri%IE - (113) - - - = = (173) = (173)

pe=ll]

Non-controlling interests arising from ~ WEHBLAFE2
acquistion of subsidiaries (note 39)  FEERER (H3£39) - - = > = - -

8,756 8,756

At 30 June 2017 H017564308 32,133 912,843 50 58,658 (2.138) - (97.367) 904,179 (23,285) 880,894

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these MEERMMFEEXILSGEATHERETAADEZ
consolidated financial statements. B e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReERERE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

Notes:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium
The application of share premium account is governed by Section 40 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve arose on the cancellation of repurchased
shares and accordingly reduction of nominal value of share capital of
the Company.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the amount
transferred from the capital account due to the capital reduction and
share premium reduction as a result of the capital reorganisation of the
Company took effect on 8 May 2014.

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus is available for distribution. However, the Company
cannot make a distribution out of the contributed surplus if: (i) it is, or
would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due; or (ii) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
its liabilities.

Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve is set up for enterprises established in Mainland
China. According to the relevant rules and regulations in The People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") applicable to wholly foreign-owned
enterprises, a wholly foreign-owned enterprise is required to transfer
at least 10% of its profit after taxation, as determined under the
PRC Accounting Regulations, to a reserve fund until the reserve fund
balance reaches 50% of the relevant enterprise’s registered capital.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Wﬁ iﬂﬁ )] E §

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

Cash flows from operating
activities

Loss before taxation:
from continuing operations
from discontinued operation

Adjustments for:

Amortisation of film and TV
programme rights

Amortisation of intangible assets

Cost of investments in film
production

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of:

— goodwill

— film and TV programme rights
— investments in film production
— trade receivables

— other receivables

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Gain on fair value change
in respect of contingent
consideration receivable

Decrease in fair value of listed
corporate bond

Change in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Convertible bond interest income
Dividend income
Interest income

Listed corporate bond interest
income

Finance costs

Reversal of impairment loss

recognised in respect of trade
receivables

(Gain)/loss on disposals of
associates and subsidiaries

Waiver of amounts due to related
companies

Waiver of amount due to non-
controlling interests

REREEHZRERE
GRSk

e PE S
PEIERSIT £°F 2

HEIER

BN ERE B REEH

ﬁ%ﬁ?%%
REFZREZRERAR

ME- -BEERBINE

M THRIBHERZRIE
E5iE

_Fﬁfxﬁ
f%%&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
REFRIEZEE
*E%EWM
— H UK
ﬁgg%\@%&&ﬁz
5 18

R ARE? A A EE
88 iy %
EBATESZ AR FE
BALBEGARES
MEE D EES

AT B 2 A B HA
P S A
A EUA
EHRARESFFBHEA

B 7% A AN
BOE P ERKERZ
B E R

ﬁE%EQQ&WEQﬂ
2 (W) B
%JEHF% BN PRI

N
p

Fa e e IR R e SR

2017

HK$'000
FExT

(69,253)

4,556
1,847

18,586

8,975

2,636
2,485
62,845

3,000

33

(338)

1,511

7,115

(4,860)
(862)

(1,328)

(69)

(34,825)

2016
HK$'000
THBT

(48,680)
(29,254)

1,527
3,397

8,447

12,800

5,966
20,651
599
169

1,133

21,640
(5,734)
(1,940)
(1,169)

193

(351)
61,145
(20,508)

(52,331)

2016 / 2017 F %R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

héiﬁﬁlllbgi

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

2017

HK$'000
FET

2016
HK$'000
THETT

Operating cash flows before R EEESEBA 2
movement in working capital KREHERE 2,060 (22,300)
Decrease in inventories FERL 19 131
(Increase)/decrease in film SUER B (M),
production in progress B (165,578) 4,917
Decrease in trade and other B2 REMBKNK RS
receivables, deposits and NSEENE- S
prepayments 52,947 48,191
Increase in investment in listed ETRARIEFIEELG N
corporate bond (183) -
Decrease/(increase) in financial BRArRBEFAERZ
assets at fair value through profit ~ &R EER D, (1 h0)
or loss 3,829 (48,899)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and 85 NhEMbEMZE N,
other payables (Bd) 43,000 (26,841)
Cash used in operations RISEREH 2R & (63,906) (44,801)
Income tax paid E%%ZFF{ o (5) (187)
Net cash used in operating ARRETHZ2REFE
activities (63,911) (44,988)
Cash flows from investing REREZHZHESRE
activities
Dividend received 2 B 4,860 1,940
Interest received 2 U A B 862 1,169
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE KEMEE
equipment (22,466) (11,568)
Deposit paid for acquisition of WENB ARz ENiEe
subsidiaries 22 - (30,000)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow on WEKB AT ZES
acquisition of subsidiaries (i) mAFE  39&40 (113,139) 6,871
Net cash inflow on disposal of HEBEARZE®
associates MAEEE 34,825 -
Net cash inflow on disposal of HENBARZESE
subsidiaries A FEE 41 - 41,847
Proceeds from disposal of HEWME HWEL&E
property, plant and equipment Z P58 - 772
Net cash (used in)/generated (AR) / REREEH
from investing activities ZEEEE (95,058) 11,031

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeERafER

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

Cash flows from financing
activities

Proceeds from issue of new shares

by subscription

Advances from non-controlling

2017

HK$'000
FExT

REREEDZRERE

BERBEITHRMD MG
FRIE 190,000
KB IR a2 B

2016
HK$'000
THBT

interests 7,088 25,607
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEERTISIA - 2,999
Advances from/(repayments to) BB AR Zz8R (BR)
related companies 16,049 (1,081)
Repayments of bank and other RITREMEEER
borrowings = (3,004)
Repayments of obligations under BEHEREEN
finance lease - (224)
Repayments to a director M—REEFEX = (1,291)
Interest expense paid B AR E R X (6) (193)
Share issuing expenses R EITHRX (173) -
Net cash generated from REMEZTH 2R EHE

financing activities 212,958 22,813
Net increase/(decrease) in cash RERRELEEYEM

and cash equivalents (Bd) B 53,989 (11,144)
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEEXREH) o B

changes 112 (1,816)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FzRekBE2EED

beginning of the year 398,515 411,475
Cash and cash equivalents atthe FRZEERBESEEY

end of the year, representing BRERBITER

cash and bank balances 452,616 398,515

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

B e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 27 March
1992 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). According to the register
of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
as at 30 June 2017, Giant Lead Profits Limited (”“Giant
Lead”) (now known as “Emperor Culture Group Holdings
Limited”), Albert Yeung Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”),
STC International Limited (“STC International”) are
substantial corporate shareholders of the Company. The
ultimate controlling party of Giant Lead is AY Holdings
which is held by STC International as the trustee of The
Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust”) as set up by
Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert. The address of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information and Key Dates”
section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (HK$'000) except otherwise indicated.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
is also engaged in investment in securities. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 45.

During the year, the Company’s name was changed to

"Emperor Culture Group Limited” with the secondary name
"RENCEXEBEARQA".

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & M B HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied for the first time in the current year
the following amendments to HKFRSs and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

HKAS 1 (Amendments)  Disclosure initiative
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38  Clarification of acceptable

(Amendments) methods of depreciation and
amortisation

AN REETEBIME
BEER ((HERUMBREE

AEBRAFEERERELGTMAE
(IEBEFEAE])ARM 2 T IIEEH
BmEEAREBeHER ([EBEHE
Al]) Z1ERT -

BB ST ERE15R
(1&83])

EFESTENE165 WERBHEE
REB SR S HEZBE
2385 (1&371)

BT E

HKAS 16 and HKAS 41  Agriculture: Bearer plants
(Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity method in separate
financial statements
HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual improvement to HKFRSs

FE T ERIF 165

REEEMNE

2012-2014 cycle

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception

HKFRS 11 (Amendments) Accounting for acquisition of
interest in joint operation

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts

The application of the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs and HKASs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and position
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (collectively referred to as
"new and amendments to HKFRSs"”) in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKAS 7 (Amendments)  Disclosure initiative’

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of deferred tax assets
for unrealised losses'

HKAS 40 (Amendments) Transfer of investment property?

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2014-2016 cycle?

Classification and measurement
of share-based payment
transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9, Financial
instruments with HKFRS 4,
Insurance contracts?

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments®
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or contribution of assets
(Amendments) between an investor and its
associate or joint venture®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with

customers?
Clarifications to HKFRS 15,
Revenue from contracts with

HKFRS 15 (Amendments)

customers?
HKFRS 16 Leases*
HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign currency transactions and
advance consideration?
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over income tax

treatments*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,
with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
or 2018, as appropriate.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019,
with earlier application permitted..

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKAS 7, Disclosure initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-
cash changes. Specially, the amendments require the
following changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities to be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash
flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing control
of subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v)
other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2017 with earlier application
permitted. The application of the amendments will result
in additional disclosures on the Group’s financing activities,
specifically reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances in the consolidated statement of financial position
for liabilities arising from financing activities will be provided
on application.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and in 2013
to include the new requirements for general hedge
accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued
in 2014 mainly to include (a) impairment requirements
for financial assets and (b) limited amendments to the
classification and measurement requirements by introducing
a “fair value through other comprehensive income”
("FVTOCI") measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

2. fE
&
(&)

4

AR REBFT B EMBER
ZH ([FEMBHREER])

ERMBHRELENFR BT A

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAMEI RZIETEBIER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HER ([FEAMBHREER])

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 4z )
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued) EANBRELENFE [T A
(%)
Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows: HAEEEHM BB HRE LR FINR
(continued) ZEBRESHMWOT : (F)
e With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities o EBRWMBWMELNESRRE BMEE
designated as at fair value through profit or loss BEARBEFAEBR ([BRAAEE

(“FVTPL"), HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is

‘I‘)Kiﬁéj IRz BB ERNEM
HeERMAREERREZEMER

attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability ,H NABEESHzcHENEME2EI
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the A 251 bR IER H Ath 2 [ U 55 5 R
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s ZBEEERREENTESEL
credit risk in other comprehensive income would i*jj[l%%‘ Vet BB BIERIGR - S R
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or BEEERRZ AARBEEZEFHEET

loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial

=ER X*EETE/\ IRIBEBRBEGRTE

liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement, the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as FVTPL is presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS
9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the
types of transaction eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the retrospective
guantitative effectiveness test has been removed.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have
reviewed the Group's financial assets at 30 June 2017 and
anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 in the future
may result in early recognition of credit losses based on
expected loss model in relation to the Group’s financial
assets measured at amortised cost and is not likely to have
other material impact on the financial position and financial
performance of the Group based on an analysis of the
Group’s existing business model.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 supersedes the revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18, Revenue, HKAS 11,
Construction contracts and the related interpretations when
it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that the Group should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard has a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may have an impact on the amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Group's consolidated financial
statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review
has been completed.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17, Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease
modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents operating lease
payments as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

At 30 June 2017, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$239,644,000 as disclosed in note
42(a) to the consolidated financial statements. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 and hence the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify
for low value or short-term leases upon the application of
HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new requirements
may result changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until
the Directors complete a detailed review.

Except as described above, the Directors do not anticipate
the application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have a material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and position and/or the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & M B HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
which collective term includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, HKASs and Interpretations issued by the
HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
"Listing Rules”).

(b) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost convention except for
certain financial assets which are carried at fair values.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services. The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
the management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEEHBRBE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation (continued) (b) fREIEE (&)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell ARBEATSB2EENTE AL
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly BRFRSHHEEER L UE SR
transaction between market participants at the BEAESMNZEBR  TwmiZEEE
measurement date, regardless of whether that price BEEHRASNERS —BHER
is directly observable or estimated using another ElhEr AT EERBBEZCAREBE
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of B AEEEZEMHLREAELETEH
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account HAZEEBRETEER S

the characteristics of the asset or liability if market EZEAENEBRERE-FFEMEERN
participants would take those characteristics into NEBEEZIELEME2EERRE
account when pricing the asset or liability at the RZEERI v &m R&EMA =
measurement date. A fair value measurement of a non- PZEEETRE M HERZEES
financial asset takes into account a market participant’s Nk ENRAsTBREERE
ability to generate economic benefit by using the asset GEZRBER G R FLRE T ER
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another THPHER IBEENLLBEYEIR
market participant that would use the asset in its WEEEF HEEFEMEREEDSE
highest and best use. Fair value for measurement and/ 25 AR AER A S | BE AR
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial UMz 5 BAESHERSE
statements is determined on such a basis, except for 177 [HEISEANHER Z K i
share-based payment transactions that are within ARBEEUELIEAABENGE
the scope of HKFRS 2, Share-based payment, leasing (PlanEAe:1ERE2H [FE] P
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, Mo S FEK T 2 ] FE365E
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities [BEBE]THEREE)BRIN-

to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2, Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36, Impairment of assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair AN R EREMS AR EBEGT
value measurements are categorised into Level T, EREBEAABETE 28 AZSUEAE
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs REENRBABBHARBETEZ
to the fair value measurements are observable BRESZUDERFE IR F2HNE
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 3 FHatan T

measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in s F1RBMAREBEAERAEAR
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that AR BT 5 A LB Z HREE
the entity can assess at the measurement date; EXEERE (REHE)

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices e E2RMBWMABEBEAMEESNAE
included within Level 1, that are observable for the BEESHEMATESRE 28 AZE
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and (B1RABTEZMERIN) &

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the s FEIRWMABBAEEXAGBZ
asset or liability. TR B R A BUE

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED e B3k e e 4 WA PR A )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Basis of consolidation

3. TESBRBE(F)

(c) REREEE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved where the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of subsidiaries begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiaries and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiaries.
Specially, income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiaries.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(d)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein.

When the Group loses control of subsidiaries, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (i) the carrying amounts
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiaries and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to those subsidiaries are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiaries (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to accumulated
losses as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiaries
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting
under HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an interest in an associate or a joint
venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

3. TESBRBE(F)

(c)

(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Business combinations (continued)

3. TESBRBE(F)

(d) ¥B&6 (&)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12, Income taxes and HKAS
19, Employee benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered to replace share- based payment
arrangement of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2, Share-based payment at
the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit
or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event
of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specific in
another HKFRSs.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the date of acquisition.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for with equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates,
with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

3. TESBRBE(F)

(d) ¥%E6f (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEETHEBME(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Business combinations (continued) (d) %606t (&)
Acquisition of a subsidiary that not WEE— TR ERE KB
constituting a business
When the Group acquires a group of assets and EAEBWE —ATEKEENEE
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group LEBEER AERFERLABEBSBIR
identifies and recognises the individual assets acquired BEBZARBEIEZSREE N
and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price TRBE AR LR 2 &
first to the financial assets and financial liabilities at AR HANEENRFTEAEZAE T
the respective fair values, the remaining balance of BEEBCHRTEREBENEEH 2
the purchase price is then allocated to other individual HARBESREEHAM(ER A #RIE
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their ENBE - ARGV ITELATE
relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a SEEEE R

transaction does not give rise to goodwill or gain on
bargain purchase.

(e) Goodwill (e) BE
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is U BE — IR E TG FTE A 2 P B RN B
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition EBHEMMEEZRA (R Fitest
of the business (see the accounting policy above) less B BRFTREREE (1F)FIEE-

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is mRENFAmE HEeRoRETE
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units HAR Az HRASER IR ANEE
("CGU(s)") (or groups of CGUs) that is expected to EEERcELASEN ([BEELEE
benefit from the synergies of the combination. fr]) (REeEEELMAR])F -

A CGU (or groups of CGUs) to which goodwill has EEREE ReEESEM (—A
been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or HeEABMN)BEFXELR (HED
more frequently when there is indication that the unit SBTNEBEMNREEEEE)ETT
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on acquisition BRI - Bh A B 2 R EREAR B U
in a reporting period, the CGUs (or groups of CGUs) BEACHEMS EEIEERE
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for CHeEASN (—HIREELSE
impairment before the end of that reporting period. i) 7B % 2 T AR B R AT 1T R (B A
If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than e MBeEALASEMN 2T KOS5 D
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated Rz Bz REE  BEEEE LR
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill VESREZEMN ZEMEEZEM
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of B MEEUZENSEEZEREE
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying REERLEOIDEBZBEL 2 EME
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss Ee-mEBZAMMEEREIIEENE
for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An EANER DR ZEE 2 HEEIE
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed REZ BN TR -

in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Goodwill (continued)

(f)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of
the profit or loss on disposal.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when
the investment is classified as held for sale, in which
case it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
5, Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations. Under the equity method, interests in
associates initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise in the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associates. When the Group’s share of losses of
associates equals or exceeds the Group’s interest in
that associates (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’'s net
investment in the associates), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of future losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

3. TESBRBE(F)

(e) BHE (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f) Interests in associates (continued)

3. TESBRBE(F)

(f) REE DR 2= ()

An interest in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate. On acquisition of the interest in
an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

When an interest in an associate is held by, or is held
indirectly through an entity that is a venture capital
organisation and similar entities, such investment
is measured at FVTPL in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in an
associate. When necessary, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment
of assets as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f) Interests in associates (continued)

3. TESBRBE(F)

(f) RBEE DR 2R (&)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

When the Group ceased to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for a disposal of the
entire interest in the associate with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope
of HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained interest
at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the
date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a part interests in the associate
is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on
the same basis as would be required if that associate
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not related
to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

g

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Non-current assets held for sale and

3. TESBRBE(F)

(9) HEEHEFRRDEERTRIERE

A

discontinued operation

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
The management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale
when the criteria described above are met, regardless
of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling
interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group's operations and cash flows can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and represents
a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated
plan to dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, which comprises the post-tax profit or loss of
the discontinued operation and the post-tax gain or
loss recognised on the measurement to fair value less
costs to sell or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
groups constituting the discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment

3. TESBRBE(F)

(h) W% -BERZRE

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

Property, plant and equipment including buildings
and leasehold land held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried out
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for intended use.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price,
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its present working condition and location for its
intended use and the initial estimate of the costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which is located. Expenditure incurred after the
asset has been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance and overhaul costs, is normally charged
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the asset, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

()

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets (other than construction in progress) less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method, at the following annual rates:

Leasehold land . Over the lease terms

Building . 40 years
Leasehold improvement 0 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment : 20%
Plant and machinery 0 20%
Motor vehicles 0 20%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Intangible assets (continued)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to initial
recognition, intangible assets acquired in the business
combination are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on
the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Categories of the intangible assets of the Group are
summarised as follows:

(i) Trademarks

Trademarks are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks over their estimated useful lives of up
to 8 years.

(ii) Production rights

Production rights acquired in business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost) and subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive over the contract
terms.

(iii) Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost)
and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives for customer relationships at
the end of reporting period are not more than 10
years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

()

(k)

()

Intangible assets (continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, and are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Film and TV programme rights

Film and TV programme rights represent films and
television drama series produced or acquired by the
Group for reproduction, distribution and sub-licensing
and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any identified impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. In the case where there is any impairment
in value, the unamortised balance is written down to its
estimated recoverable amount.

Film and TV programme production in
progress

Film and TV programme production in progress
represents films and televisions drama series under
production and are stated at cost incurred to date, less
any identified impairment losses. Cost is transferred to
either film and TV programme rights or investments in
film production upon completion.

An impairment loss is made if there has been a change
in the estimate used to determine the recoverable
amount and the carrying amount exceeds the
recoverable amount.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories is calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Revenue recognition

3. TESBRBE(F)

(m) YA HERR
WARB W ERKE 2 AR EER
B UR/R—REBKEFEERETE L

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts received

for goods sold and services provided in the normal EE W AT RRERS < U IR IT
course of business, net of discounts and sales related HMEEEMRBERE-

taxes.

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will R ER A F 25 75 AT e R AN = & Ko Uk
flow to the Group and the revenue can be measured ABeR SEMhEt & - AIRA A IR A T 28
reliably, revenue is recognised in the consolidated ARG A B R NEDR

statement of profit or loss as follows:

Revenue from licensing of the distribution rights
over films and television programmes is recognised
when the master materials of films are delivered to
customers.

RHERE RERE A FTHEIBAR
ERZEBHERNEFRER -

Revenue from investments in film production is
recognised when the Group’s entitlement to receive
such payments has been established, subject to the
terms of the relevant agreements.

REZREZREWARNEERIE
*H B 9 ik < IR e . LS AN B 7
FRIR 2 HE N B e AR o

BEYHMEZEERARLEEY
BEFEZNEY FMEEHER-

Revenue from box office takings for film exhibition is
recognised when the tickets are sold to the customers
and the film is released.

ERESHANEHES MARRE
HH B 193 <8 R B FE R

Revenue from the screen advertising is recognised
when the relevant advertisements and programmes are
exhibited in accordance with the terms of the relevant

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

agreements.

Sales of goods are recognised when the goods are EmEE 2 WARERRMNRE R
delivered and the significant risks and rewards of EEZEAREMNONFOEREER
ownership of the goods has passed to the buyer. B REER o

Revenue from event investment is recognised when the

FORH BB ZWARKIEIRB TX

events are completed. FriERR o
Sales of securities investments are recognised on a BHREHE 2 WAIRR
trade date basis. .JZJ\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TESBERBE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Revenue recognition (continued) (m) WARER (&)
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference MBI ATy IR B EERKREELRS
to the principal outstanding and at the effective BRIBERAERMNEXAE NEREH
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly BEZETF EREMITRMETZ
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the KRRV WA RZIBEERVIBTER
expected life of the financial asset to the asset’s net RSB ZFXR-

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when KEERBIM AR EIWEN B 2
the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been FEFTE ST B RERR o
established.
Compensation income is recognised when the HEWANKNEEIRERBREZIE
Group's entitlement to receive such payment has SR ST HLE 13 YR B SR 2 B T B
been established, subject to the terms of the relevant R o
agreement.

(n) Foreign currencies (n) Fh¥&
In preparing the financial statements of each individual REEERNEEERE M BERE
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the B UZERBiEBE ANz’
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are (INEE ) ETT 2 R SR S HEZ @
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the TIE RFER - NS MEHE R AL
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting MEEEEEEIREH ZBITER
period, monetary items denominated in foreign ENRE AR EEYERI AINE
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at FTEZIFEEBEENALBEETE
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that ERZBITEXRENRE IRINEFE
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated SRAFEZIEKIEE HEEHHR
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair o

value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of EMIBEAENEKIBEBENESNRE
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary FrEf s ER =R EEEENIE
items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in AR o

which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case the exchange rates at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of
the exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation) all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of
the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Leasing
All leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & M B HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the

contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable

3. TESBRBE(F)

(p) TR T A

TREENGHRABNEAEEEERX
RTREANBRXZFTHN TR -

TREERERAGISRANEE
AE-WBRETEREERERE
B(EALEBEEFABGEZEREE
kEBBERINEEREZRHK
ARVIEEREMATHEELET R
BEzZAREBESBEPHR (0@
) - WERARBEFABSZZER
BEXSRABGEREBHZIXZINA

to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

(i) Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified
into financial assets at FVTPL and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

Financial assets (continued)
Effective interest method (continued)

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as financial assets at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is either (i) held for trading, (ii) it is
designated as at financial assets at FVTPL or (iii)
contingent consideration that may be received by
an acquirer as part of a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & M B HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held
for trading or contingent consideration that may
be received by an acquirer as part of a business
combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group
of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group's documented
risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets and is
included in the change in fair value of financial
assets at FVTPL. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in note 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued)

3. TESBRBE(F)

(p) €M T A (&)
(i) *WMEE (&)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives when
they meet the definition of a derivative, their risks
and characteristics are not closely related to those
of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not measured at FVTPL.

Investments in convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible
instruments are classified separately as debt
component and conversion option derivative.
At the date of acquisition of investments in
convertible bonds, the fair value of the debt and
derivative components are recognised at fair value.
In subsequent periods, the debt component of
the convertible instruments is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The
conversion option derivative is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and
receivables (including deposit paid for acquisition
of subsidiaries, investments in film production,
trade receivables, other receivables and deposits
and cash and bank balances) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued) (p) EMIT AR (&)
(i) Financial assets (continued) (i) THEE (&)

3. TESBRBE(F)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, the objective
evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e Dbreach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation;
or

e the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such
as trade receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the average credit period of
30 to 180 days, as well as observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(ii)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance
amount. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance amount are recognised in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity
instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities and equity

3. TESBRBE(F)

(p) ERMT A (&)
(i) cMEEREZMTA

instruments (continued) (4&)
Equity instruments BamltTA

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and amounts due to related companies/
non-controlling interests, are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Financial instruments (continued) (p) €T AR (£&)
(iii) Derecognition (iii) A& IF FE R

3. TESBRBE(F)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. On
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

(iv) Offsetting financial instrument

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the company or the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Taxation (q) BiE

3. TESBRBE(F)

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before tax,
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Taxation (continued)

3. TESBRBE(F)

(q) B (&)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investment
in subsidiaries and interests in associates except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Impairment of tangible and intangible (r) BEEREFLEE (BERM)
assets other than goodwill =l

AEBRESHRERHRBTHAS
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3. TESBRBE(F)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the assets
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are

allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which Bl o
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
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KRR EEEEEE S /™5 E
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estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

(u)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it
is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured
reliably.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow
is probable, they will then be recognised as a provision.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
(continued)

(v)

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Group. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

Employee benefits

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leaves,
leave passage and the cost to the Group of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees of
the Group. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
contributions.

The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the share options
is recognised as an expense in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined
with reference to the fair value of the share options
granted. At the end of the reporting period, the
Company revises its estimates of the number
of share options that are expected to become
exercisable that become vested. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
and a corresponding adjustment to equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position will be
made over the remaining vesting period.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits itself
to terminate employment or to provide benefits
as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a
detailed formal plan which is without realistic
possibility of withdrawal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1)
(2)

3)

has control or joint control over the Group; or
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others); or

one entity is an associate or a jointly
controlled entities of the other entity (or an
associate or a jointly controlled entities of a
member of a group of which the other entity
is a member); or

both entities are jointly controlled entities of
the same third party; or

one entity is a jointly controlled entities
of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity; or

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group; or
the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (i); or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEGHBEBE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Related parties (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(7) a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); or

(8) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is apart, provides the key
management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources,
services or obligations between a group and a related
party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close members of a family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the management is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.

(a)

(b)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The provision of impairment loss on trade and other
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of accounts and on
the management’s judgement. In determining whether
impairment is required, the Group takes into consideration
the ageing status and likelihood of collection. When the
recoverability of trade and other receivables are called
into doubts, specific provision of impairment loss on trade
and other receivables is made on the difference between
the estimated future cash flows expected to receive being
discounted using the original effective interest rate and the
carrying value.

Impairment of film and TV programme rights

At the end of each reporting period, the management
performs review of the carrying amount of each of
the film and TV programme rights by reference to its
estimated total projected revenues from each film and TV
programme, which is based on the historical performance
and incorporating factors such as the past box office
record of the lead actors and actresses, the genre of the
film, pre-release market research, the expected number of
theatres that the film will be released to and the anticipated
performance in the home entertainment, television and
other ancillary markets, and agreement for future sales.
The residual values of each of the film and TV programme
rights are continually evaluated based on the changes in
consumer demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(c)

Impairment of film and TV programme
production in progress

The management regularly reviews the recoverability
of the Group’s film and TV programme production in
progress with reference to its intended use and current
market environment and its expectation of future income
to be generated from these films and TV programmes. In
determining the recoverable amounts of the film and TV
programme production in progress, the Group takes into
consideration of the distribution and license agreements
entered into by the Group or its co-investment partner and
the current market environment to project the expected
cash flows to be received through box office receipts and
distribution and licensing income. Impairment is recognised
when the recoverable amount is expected to be less than
the carrying amounts of the film and TV programme
production in progress.

(d) Impairment of investments in film

(e)

production

In assessing the recoverability of investments in film
production, the management assesses the credibility
of the counterparties, the progress of the related film
production and the market condition. The management
determines the provision for impairment of investments
in film production taking into account the estimation of
cash flows. Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group performs annual review on impairment of
goodwill in accordance with the accounting policy
of the Group. The recoverable amounts of CGUs
are determined based on value-in-use calculation.
This calculation requires the use of estimates and
assumptions made by the management on the future
operation of the business, pre-tax discount rates,
and other assumptions underlying the value-in-use
calculation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the
useful lives of property, plant and equipment in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expenses to
be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at the time
the asset is acquired based on historical experience, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well
as technical obsolescence arising from changes in the
market demands or service output of the assets. The
Group also performs annual review on whether the
assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.

Fair value measurement and valuation
processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
management is responsible for determination of the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for the fair
value measurements.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include
inputs that are not based on observable market data
to estimate the fair value of certain types of financial
instruments. Notes 5, 29, 31 and 32 respectively
provide detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets and
liabilities.

Current income taxes

The Group’s subsidiaries that operate in Hong Kong
and the PRC are subject to income tax. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.

Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax in the
period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & M B HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

THMEE

Loans and receivables (including

5. ®mIT A
@) 2RMIACSE
2017 PAONES)
HK$'000

TAET

HK$’'000
FTET

ERREWIR (B

cash and bank balances) B4 RBITES) 513,145 540,382
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREBHEIABEY
TREE 60,924 63,385
574,069 603,767
Financial liabilities tEmas
Amortised cost b TN 166,077 76,526

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include deposit
paid for acquisition of subsidiaries, investments in
film production, trade and other receivables, deposits,
contingent consideration receivable, financial assets
at FVTPL, cash and bank balances, trade and other
payables and amounts due to related companies/
non-controlling interests. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
include market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

2016 / 2017 F %R

(b) BB A EE B EMBE

AEEZIEcRTARFERENE
RAEANRE NEFRIEZKRE:
B REMBKR e EBREA
RE BAAEEFABZZEZRE
E-ReMRTEF BEHREMLE
T FRIA B AN BBt 2 ) SR PR AR M
KRB ZEFeRMTAZHBEHRBMN
HPRBE-EEZSTeRTIAZAR
BEMSAR (BFEINERER- A X
Rk M EMERRR) EERR R
BETER R AARRZ SRR
HERHENTX - EREEERERZ
FEf ERABSRERZTAE
TTRBEZIE-

ARERHS T AN EERRED
SAREEB R EREAR L H
g I

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 / 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

5. £ TR (£&)
(b) BIREMREEEZMEEK (&)

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

4 B
(i) SN R

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the
PRC, and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to Renminbi (“RMB"). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a
currency that is not the functional currency of the
individual group companies and net investments in
foreign operations.

The carrying amounts of the Group’'s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

AEBEI2EEFBRTELS
W A AR B E L 2 SME R
mo TREARE (AR®A
F-MNERBRBRREERS
EEBEERAEB (ABENEHE
RAIPEEEANINEEIE) -
AR BINER 2 FREEE -

AEBUSNETEZEBEEMN
ERABENBREMRRZREAE
LA

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

Liabilities Assets
a& BE
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET AT
RMB AR 41,983 18,677 81,277 78,693
Sensitivity analysis BRE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of
fluctuation in RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% increase or decrease in HK$ against RMB. 5%
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to the key management
personnel and represents the management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
year ended for a 5% change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number indicates a decrease in the
Group’s loss where the HK$ strengthen 5% against
the relevant currency. For a 5% weakening of the
HK$ against the relevant currency, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the loss, and the
balance below would be negative.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

% o 5 18

Profit or loss

5. ®mIT A

(%)

BEEREEEENMBE (&)

mEE kR (4)
(i) SRR (&)
BRENN (&)

Impact of RMB
ARBEE
2017 2016
HK$'000
FHET

(3,001)

HK$’000
FTET
(1,965)

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign
exchange risk as the year end exposure at the
end of the reporting period does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits
and also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits. The Group
currently does not have policy on cash flow hedges
of interest rate risk. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank deposits at the end
of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 10 basis points increase or
decrease for variable-rate bank deposits is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to
the key management personnel and represents
the management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

2016 / 2017 F %R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rates for the variable-rate bank deposits
had been 10 basis points (2016: 10 basis points)
higher and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s loss for the year would decrease by
HK$110,000 (2016: HK$238,000).

If the interest rates had been lower in an opposite
magnitude and all other variables were held
constant, the potential effect on the Group’s loss
for the year would be equal and opposite.

Other price risks

Equity security price risk relates to the risk that
the fair values or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than changes in interest rates
and foreign exchange rates). The Group is exposed
to equity security price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as financial assets at
FVTPL.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below indicates the
approximate change in the Group’s loss after
taxation and other components of equity in
response to the reasonably possible changes in
the relevant stock market prices, to which the
Group has significant exposure at the end of the
reporting period.

In response to the reasonably possible change
in the market price of the listed securities, if
the equity price had been 5% higher or lower,
the Group’s loss for the year would decrease or
increase by HK$2,622,000 (2016: HK$3,169,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

5. $RTH (&)
(b) HEEARESEEEMRE (£)

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk

As at 30 June 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise credit risk, the management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and debt investments at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 40%
(2016: 34%) and 93% (2016: 92%) of the total trade
receivables which was due from the Group's largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively
within film and TV programme production and
investment operation, event investment operation
and cinema operation (2016: film and TV programme
production and investment operation and cinema
operation). The Directors consider that there is no
significant credit risk on the trade receivables from
the five largest customers given their strong financial
background and good creditability. The remaining
trade receivables balances are spread over a number of
customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

5. $RTH (&)
(b) HEEARESEEEMKE (£)

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate bank deposits and cash, monitoring forecast

and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

As at 30 June 2017, based on the existing levels of
bank balances, the Group will be able to meet its future
cash flow requirements. Accordingly, the management
considers that the Group’s liquidity risk is minimal.

The following table details remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities that
will result in cash outflow. The table below has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
principal cash flows.

REBELERE
AEEZBERTCRITERLR
T ERFRALRERRSRENARE
HEMEELRBEZIMFER &
NEERBESRELR -

MR2017F6 A30H BIFH R ITE
RO REE KR M T R KE
emEX-A EREREAEE
ZhRBEREREM-

TRAMAEBRBBEHR SR ZIF
TEEBMBEZHRTANIMA-T
RRBASEAERNZRFARZEH
BEZATRRSBEFL - TRE

BRIBHERE-

Weighted ~ Within 1
average year or Total
effective  repayable undiscounted Total
interest rate  on demand  Within 2 to Over cash flows carrying
mEFE  SMEE 5 years Syears AHEEEL  amount
ERFE REREE 25258n  SENL  REAE  AKEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER Thn TEn Thn
2017 2017%
Non-derivative financial liabilities: ##74#@E®E
Trade and other payables BHREMERK - 105,158 - - 105158 105158
Amounts due to related companies & B8 2 7308 - 16,049 - - 16,049 16,049
Amount due to non-controlling  FEM SRR ERFE
interests - 44,870 - - 44,870 44,870
Total s 166,077 - - 166,077 166,077
2016 2016F
Non-derivative financial liabilities: ~ T4 £ BEE
Trade and other payables EHREMERT - 38,744 - - 38,744 38,744
Amount due to non-controlling  FEfIHERIER TR
interests - 37,182 - - 37,782 37,782
Total @5t 76,526 - - 76,526 76,526
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

5. @R TR (&)
() AREEHNE
RIEE BN A EENEZ
rEFMEBEEZ A REE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Fair value measurement

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as
well as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which
the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels 1
to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.

The following table shows an analysis of the financial
assets recorded at fair value by the fair value hierarchy:

AEBETEMEENSRE NN
KRR BEFE TREH#LKES
MEEZAABENMNEEZEHM
(LERARAZGEERT ka AR
&) ARBREBERAABEFEZBARK
BZRABEREAREEMEMFEA
ZAREBESR(F1234) -

TRINTERIARBEBHRED ZAR
REBEEAKRZEREEZ NN

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R EPE E38] b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THR TR THr
2017 20175
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAABEIAREZ
EtREE:
Contingent consideration receivable ERXARE - - 8,483 8,483
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong EEELMZRAES 52,441 - - 52,441
Total @t 52,441 - 8,483 60,924
2016 20166
Financial assets at FVTPL: BAREBEHAERZ
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong EEELMZRAES 63,385 - - 63,385

The fair value of the financial assets traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These financial assets
are included in Level 1.

2016 / 2017 F %R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

5. $RTH (&)
(c) DAEBESE (&)

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement (continued)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

As described in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, the fair value of contingent consideration
receivable in relation to the acquisition of Jade Dynasty
Multi-Media Limited (“JDMM"”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “JDMM Group”) are measured
at fair value under the income approach and are taken
into consideration of whether the Profit Guarantee
(as defined in note 29) is probable to be fulfilled. The
unobservable inputs used in respect of the valuation are
(i) expected future profitability for three scenarios and (ii)
probability distribution of three different conditions.

The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to
the expected results of JDMM Group.

The Directors have engaged with an independent firm
of valuers, Flagship Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited
to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the asset, the
management worked closely with Flagship Consulting
(Hong Kong) Limited to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model and
reported the findings to the Directors at the end of
reporting period to explain the cause of fluctuations in
fair value of the asset.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs
used in determining the fair value of contingent
consideration receivable are disclosed above.

The following table presents the changes in contingent
consideration receivable which is classified as Level 3
instruments for the year ended 30 June 2017:

HANER G B TS IRR M R 20PT - B
UBEEHRZHEBARAR(ELR
PEEE ) LEMBLAR (A TR
(EEFZHEBER]) 2 BEIAR
BZARBEDRWSEEARAER
8 WF FORMRE CE & B
E29) REFER - FEMEBMAEDN
EZERBABERO)=ERKROTE
HIRRBFEN (=B TRIBRL T
M &R GE N L

ANRBEFEERLSHZEREE L
EHEERAMBEREK-

EXCZRBEIGEMNEERR
(BB)ERRARIBERRAAER
AEZEERERD KB ARE-

REAEEZAREBER EEEER
mEA [EERRA (FB)ER QA
PARES 3 A R ) R E R T R A
B URBRERPRRAEFERER
U AZEEAABERBNERER-

REERKEAARERAABERER
EEE ST K A BURE B XX

==
B ©

TREVWEHZE2017F6A308 L FE
NEAEEIMMTEZERSAREZ

HK$’000
FTET

At 1 July 2016

M2016F7H1H

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries Wi FEs Bt JBB X R EE A (B9 EE39)

(note 39) 8,145
Gain on fair value change for the year FE QAR BEZE 2 k% 338
At 30 June 2017 72017568308 8,483
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & M B HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement (continued)

Due to the variety of basis of determination used
in profit forecast, it is not practicable to provide
any meaningful sensitivity in relation to the critical
assumptions concerning future profitability of acquired
business and the potential impact on the fair value
change on the contingent consideration receivable at
the end of reporting period.

However, if the probability of worst and best scenarios
is 5% lower or higher and the probability of normal
scenarios is 10% lower or higher, the resulting impact
to the fair value change of the contingent consideration
receivable will be within 1%. If the expected profit after
tax of the acquired business is 10% lower or higher,
the resulting impact to the fair value change of the
contingent consideration receivable will be within 1%.

During the year, there were no transfers between Level
1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the events
or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

Other than disclosed above, the fair values of other
financial assets and liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of all
other financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period
approximate their corresponding fair values, except for
asset classified as held for sale of which its fair value
is HK$47,600,000 and is measured at the lower of its
carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell.

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts (which
include amounts due to related companies/non-controlling
interests, as disclosed in note 36), net of cash and bank
balances and equity attributable to the owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

2016 / 2017 F %R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through issue of
new shares, new borrowings raising and repayment of
borrowings.

7. REVENUE 7.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations is as follows:

EXEBRER (&)
EFTEHRGBARE - FRUILRE 2 —
MO BEFEREAKARBZBERNZM
AER - REEFZZ AXESEBE
THRCHERERERBEFHEER
BARRE-

LN
REEZHEQEEB 2 MASTIT -

Cinema operation [k b & & 31,829 12,887
Film and TV programme production ~ B N EHRE B 2L /EE
and investment and others KENEAM 26,251 14,529
Event investment and others REHEBRENREAM 902 650
Investment in securities BHKE (14,057) (3,815)
44,925 24,251
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. DHEEHR

For the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance, information reported to the
Executive Directors, being the chief operating decision
makers (the “CODM"), focus on types of goods or services
delivered or provided.

In the manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the CODM for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the
business activities of the Group are organised into the
following operating segments:

— Cinema operation

- Film and TV programme production and investment
and others (including production, distribution and
licensing of animated TV episodes and theatrical films)

— Event investment and others (including artiste
management and music productions)

— Investment in securites

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED e B3k e e 4 WA PR A )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7HEHR (&)
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments AEBZRHBREEBIREDHEENE
from continuing operations is presented below: FanT
(a) Segment revenue and results (a) 7 EWARESE

Film and TV
programme
production
and
investment Event

and others investment
Cinema EZF¥KER and others Investment
operation HEEMEHE  KREEE in securities Consolidated
BREE RERHM RERHfM RHERE &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TEx

2017 20175
Segment revenue EL N 31,829 26,251 902 (14,057) 44,925
Segment results NELE (18,944)  (65,103) 902 (9410  (92555)
Interest income MEKA 862
Gain on fair value change in respect B AREBZ A A EE

of contingent consideration 28ln

receivable 338
Unallocated corporate expenses AENOERT (5,602)
Change in fair value of financial BRARBEIARRZ &R

assets at FVTPL BEZLnEEZ (7.115)
Loss from continuing operations BREREEBIBE (104,072)
Gain on disposal of associates HEBE Az 34,825
Finance costs BBRA (6)
Loss before taxation from SECEER BTAER

continuing operations (69,253)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

TRER (&)
(a) DERARER (4)

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(a) Segment revenue and results (continued)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

Film and TV
programme
production
and
investment Event
investment
and others Investment
E e Fﬁﬁ & in securltles Consolidated
?ﬁﬁ&ﬁm EHE e
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
:F, :ijéf[ :F/PJ'E :F/PJ'E :F/ETE
2016 20164
Segment revenue B 12,887 14,529 650 (3,815) 24,251
Segment results PEEE (16,401) (29,067) (50) 3,279 (42,239)
Interest income FEUWA 1,169
Unallocated corporate expenses RENPERT (3,997)
Change in fair value of financial BRARBEIABRZZER
assets at FVTPL BEZLABEED (21,640)
Loss from continuing operations BEGLERIER (66,707)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LENBAR Y 18,039
Finance costs BB A (12)
Loss before taxation from BERLERBHAIEE
continuing operations (48,680)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue
generated from external customers. There were no
inter-segment revenue in the current year (2016: Nil).
For the segment revenue in respect of investment
in securities, it represents the difference between
the total sale proceeds of HK$83,667,000 (2016:
HK$89,648,000) and the total investment costs of
those securities disposed of during the year.

Segment results represent the profit earned/(loss
suffered) by each segment without allocation of
interest income, central administration costs which
mainly include Directors’ emoluments and corporate
legal and professional fees, fair value changes in
respect of contingent consideration receivable and
financial assets at FVTPL, and gain on disposal of
associates and subsidiaries. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

SR AL AL A WA PR 2w
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. Z7EER (&)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities b) 7 EEERERE
Film and TV
programme
production
and
investment Event
and others  investment
Cinema EYRER  andothers  Investment
operation  HERAER KEEE  insecurities  Consolidated
BREE  RERSM  REREH B5RE B4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T T T TEn TExn
2017 WITE
Segment assets AEEE 91,616 45412 2,880 52,441 601,064
Unallocated assets KENEE 452,878
Consolidated assets GedE 1,053,902
Seqment liabltes ARAE 71,490 98,555 - - 170,045
Unallocated liabilities KENERE 3,003
Consolidated labilties Gegk 173,048
2016 0165
Segment assets HEEE 69,548 199,156 1,879 63,385 333,968
Unallocated assets AENEE 493 864
Consolidated assets GREE 807,832
Seqment liabiltes AERR 53,959 20,142 50 2 74173
Unallocated fabltes FEABE 2310
Consolidated liabilties Golk 76,543
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance RTERPBPERRER TR EFASERE
and allocating resources between segments: IR
— all assets are allocated to reportable segments - BRUEWNBARZENEZS REE
other than deposit paid for acquisition of NElZ R HEMAREDBRER R
subsidiaries, interests in associates and other DEEEREFEESZDEUIN BT
unallocated head office and corporate assets that BEEAIRERENE &
are not attributable to segments; and
— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments - BRRESLESHEBEREREER
other than unallocated corporate financial SN FTBEREEHEIRERS D
liabilities that are not attributable to segments. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(c) Other segment information

THER (F)

(c) Htbn EER
Film and TV

programme
production
and
investment Event
and others  investment
Cnema  E¥RER  andothers  Investment
operation AR REAR  insecurities  Unallocated  Consolidated
BREE RERHEH REREE  RERE 33 &8
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEx TExn T TR TR TR
2017 0178
Other segment information: EtAHEEH.
Additions to property, plant and equipment  FEWE - BRE Rk a1 532 - - - 2,654
Amortisation of fim and TV programme B/ R EEH B RiEESE
rights - 4,556 - - - 4,556
Amortisation of intangible assets BYAERH - 1847 - - - 1,847
Cost of investments in film production ~~ AEFEe 2 KER K - 18,586 - - - 18,586
Depreciation of property, plant and ng BEREENE
equipment 8,750 225 - - - 8,975
Loss on disposal of property, plantand  HEW% BERRELEE
equipment 1 kY] - - - b}
Impairment loss recognised in respect of: 5 5| & BT L BB
- goodil -HE - 2,636 - - - 2,636
film and TV programme rights -EYRERHAME - 2,485 - - = 2,485
- investments in film production -REFREIRE - 62,845 - - - 62,845
- other receivables -Efb NS - 3,000 - - - 3,000
Reversal of impairment loss in respect of -~ BB B Z BN HEFE
trade receivables - (69) - - - (69)
2016 0165
Other seqment information: Et7EEN:
Adaitions to property, plant and equipment  AENE - BE R % 66,464 - - - - 66,464
Amortisation of fim rights EUMERS - 157 - - - 1527
Cost of investment in fim production ~~ NEFEe 2 KER A - 8447 - - - 8447
Depreciation of property, plant and nx BERGENE
equipment 5,220 97 - - 195 5472
Impairment loss recognised in respect of: 5 RSB ERR 2 BESE:
- film rights ~EYMiE - 5,966 - - - 5,966
- investment in film production -NEFRE B - 20651 - - - 20651
- other receivables -Efb N - - 169 - - 169
Reversal of impairment loss in respect of -~ BB B ZEMF 2 HEFE
trade receivables - (351) - - - (351)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & M B HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(d) Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from
external customers by location of sales and information
about its non-current assets by location of assets are
detailed as below:

8. 2RENR (&)
(d) itbig & K

REBREE I DM 2 BAEHINE
PRIEBEEEEBZRARANEER
BEME D M2 IEREDEEE R
LIRNE

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets*

HIEEZBA FRBEE*
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TET THT
Hong Kong BB 2,890 7,425 121,140 114
The PRC H 40,848 16,624 72,204 59,317
Hungary %) 77 7l 1,177 139 - -
Others Hith 10 63 - -
44,925 24,251 193,344 59,431

* The above non-current assets have excluded the financial
instruments such as contingent consideration receivable and
deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiaries.

(e) Information about major customers

Revenue from one (2016: two) major customer(s)
contributing over 10% of the Group’s revenue from
continuing operations for the year was HK$20,697,000
(2016: HK$8,492,000 and HK$2,707,000), which were
derived from the segment of film and TV programme
production and investment and others.

2016 / 2017 F %R

* ERZERBEEYTEBEERMTA
(Plan: el s AR B R IE I E 2 A
ZefMiEE) -

(e) XEEXFEHR

RAFE HAEBEFBELCEER
WA10%A £z —% (20165 - W
HI)EEEF ZHWAK20,697,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

9. OTHER REVENUE 9. Hfbliz
2017 AONES)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Continuing operations: BERSEXER:
Bank interest income |ITH B A 862 1,169
Convertible bond interest income A]RE 2 M EWA
(note 32) (FEE32) - 5,734
Dividend income AR B A 4,860 1,940
Listed corporate bond interest EmRREHFZMEWA
income (note 31) (BEE31) 1,328 -
Advertising and related income & & KA A 751 365
Compensation income (note 28) wmERA (H28) 7,864 -
Gain on fair value change in respect EWEAKRBAALBEED
of contingent consideration Z Wz (B1EE29)
receivable (note 29) 338 -
Sundry income FIFKA 723 1,366

16,726 10,574
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

10.LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 10.i5 @R EK IR

Loss from continuing operations has
been arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

BEGEER ZEEEM
B (5t A) T5)&18 :

2017

HK$'000
FExT

2016
HK$'000
THBT

Auditors’ remuneration for audit ZE R 2 =BT B &

services 850 750
Amortisation of film and TV B R EARE B hi g # i

programme rights (included in cost (Bt ASEERA)

of sales) 4,556 1,527
Amortisation of intangible assets BICEE#HE (FT AT

(included in administrative )

expenses) 1,847 -
Cost of investments in film RERZRIEZIRE KA

production (included in cost of (T ASHEKAK)

sales) 18,586 8,447
Cost of inventories sold (included in B EHFEXAK (5t AHE

cost of sales) AR ) 626 244
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -HWEREEITE

equipment 8,975 5,472
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - HWERZEZ

and equipment B8 33 -
Impairment loss recognised in BB IEHER 2 BB

respect of: &8

- goodwill* — g 2,636 -

— film and TV programme rights* —EX NEHEE RE 2,485 5,966

— investments in film production* —“REZREZIRE 62,845 20,651

— other receivables* — At JE R 3,000 169
Operating leases in respect of rented FAEWE 7 KEHE

premises 7,702 5,461
Exchange loss/(gain), net PE N BB (e ) F8E 97 (436)
Reversal of impairment loss in B E B 5B ZRE

respect of trade receivables 518 (69) (351)

* The aggregation of these items are included in “Other operating * EIPR VB A G BEREMEE

mARNZ [EEE ] -

expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

11.FINANCE COSTS

The amount represents bank charges from continuing
operations.

12.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

11. B & AR

ERSRERERERLEEB 2RTTF

12.BE BRI X

2017 PAONIS
HK$'000 HK$’000
TR T
Continuing operations: BEEKEEK:

Salaries and other benefits e REMET 11,187 7,123

Retirement benefit scheme RRIE T ET 2] =k
contributions 757 359
11,944 7,482

Retirement benefit scheme RIKE R T2

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of independent trustees. The Group
and each employee make mandatory contributions of 5% of
relevant payroll costs with monthly cap of HK$1,500 to the
scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government. The Group is required
to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll to the
retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions under
the scheme.

Equity compensation benefits
Share Options

The Company operates a share option scheme, details of
which are set out under the heading “Share Options” in
note 38.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

13.TAX CREDIT

Tax credit for continuing operations comprises:

13. 5 EER
BT E Y BB G B 5E -

Hong Kong Profits Tax: R EF
Current tax REAFL 1B - -
Over-provision in prior year EEBRB A 12 -
12 -
Deferred tax: JEGE R IE
Credited to profit and loss T AEE 163 -
175 -

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years. No provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group has no assessable profit
derived from Hong Kong for both years.

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiary is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards. No provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
has been made in the consolidated financial statements as
the Group has no assessable profits arising in the PRC for
both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

Ullﬁ

13.HMEER (&)
FREREESRGABEEE 2 EYS

13.TAX CREDIT (continued)

The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the

loss before taxation from continuing operations per
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

RAKEFFERLZ X Z BB AR R

m

2017 AONES)
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Loss before taxation from continuing R BB L XI5 2B
operations A& 18 (69,253) (48,680)
Tax rate in relevant tax jurisdictions RAEBAREEER 2 ME
AEZHRIE 12,639 9,390
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR AST 2 M2
for tax purpose (6,522) (4,735)
Tax effect of income not taxable for ~ HERFKA 2B E
tax purpose 8,165 503
Tax effect of estimated tax losses not AR BEHAHBEEE Z
recognised B (15,180) (8,063)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAMBRERER Y
differences not recognised s 163 -
Utilisation of estimated tax losses B A ST AT AR HERR 2 TR BN
previously not recognised HEE 896 2,905
Over-provision in prior year K FHEERE 12 -
Others HAh 2 -
Tax credit for the year from REFBERKEEB 2FE
continuing operations GIREiive) 175 -

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

14.DISCONTINUED OPERATION 14.BRIEREETK
The Group had operated the post production service REEBREB NP EHKLLEBARERSE
business in Hong Kong and the PRC. As a result of the FomMNE 22016F6A30B FFEHE
disposal of 60% equity interest in Lucrative Skill Holdings Lucrative Skill Holdings Limited & H K1 & A
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as 7 (AT %78 [ Lucrative Skill&EE ] )60%
“Lucrative Skill Group”) during the year ended 30 June [k (R HsE41) REB DR IEZER
2016 (see note 41), the Group ceased this business and A ZREEDBEER B RIFKEE
therefore this operating segment constituted a discontinued 7 o
operation.
Loss for the year from discontinued operation up to the HEHEHHERIEEEEK FEFIE
date of disposal was analysed as follows: DT :
2016
HK$'000
FABTT
Revenue A 63,521
Cost of sales 8 65 B AR (58,075)
Gross profit EH 5,446
Other revenue H b U 2= 72,839
Distribution costs Pal =] DN (3,656)
Administrative expenses TR (23,919)
Other operating expense H &% (599)
Profit from operation 1w 50,111
Loss on disposal of Lucrative Skill Group ~ Hi % Lucrative Skillss B 2 &518 (M 7%41)

(note 41) (79,184)
Finance costs BF R AR (181)
Loss before taxation B 56 A 5 18 (29,254)
Taxation B8 507
Loss for the year FEEE (28,747)

(Loss)/profit for the period attributable to: &5 EAfT (&538) % F -

Owners of the Company ZAN/NESTE SN (64,728)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR HE A 35,981
(28,747)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

14.CRIEREER (&)

14.DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

Loss for the year ended 30 June 2016
from discontinued operation had been
arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Amortisation of intangible asset (included

HZE2016F6 A30H LFEDRILKEE
X 2EBBREMNR, (5TA) THI&E:

BREE#RE (FFATTHRRAX)

in administrative expenses) 3,397
Depreciation of property, plant and M- -BMEREZBEZITE

equipment 7,328
Impairment loss recognised in respect of E D EWHKER 2 BEEE

trade receivables 599
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME BERKEERE

equipment 1,133
Operating leases in respect of rented HEMEZKREHE

premises 10,489
Total staff costs (including a former BINAHEE(BRE—RBNES ZH M

Director’s emoluments of HK$678,000 678,000/ 7T (MI5E17) )

(note 17)) 47,811
Exchange loss b X &1 186
Waiver of amounts due to related 6 B T B3 N B RKIE

companies (20,508)
Waiver of amount due to non-controlling R B FETE AR M 55 SR IE

interests (52,331)
Cash flows from discontinued operation HEHERAHERIEKEEB 2 RERE

up to the date of disposal are analysed DT :

as follows:

Net cash outflow from operating activities — #£ & E8) 2 IR & 7 1 F 58 (5,698)
Net cash inflow from investing activities REEBZHERAFE 18
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEEH2REMAFRE 27,221
Net cash inflow REMAFEE 21,541

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

15.LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE 15. & A FEE AL ERERE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

(a) From continuing and discontinued (a) REFEKLERC KR UEREERL
operations
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share KATHEB NELGRERLEEE
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on BT &SRt E

the following data:

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TBT

Loss attributable to the owners of HESRERREEE
the Company for the purpose of BARAZARRIHE
basic and diluted loss per share AEIEEE (62,327) (106,015)

Number of shares

KRB
2017
‘000
TR
Weighted average number of HAESRERNREEE
ordinary shares for the purpose of BTz EmAR Ntk
basic and diluted loss per share A% & 2,487,313 2,213,341
For the years ended 30 June 2017 and 2016, the B E2017F %2016F6 308 IFF
diluted loss per share for continuing and discontinued B REFBELERDRIELEER
operations was the same as the basic loss per share as 2RSS BB REREEGE
there was no dilutive potential ordinary shares for both B ThARZMmEFE AL EAR
years. HMayg LBk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

15.LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
from continuing operations attributable to the owners
of the Company is based on the following data:

15.?2;1\%%*@*@{5%&%}%

N

(b) REFFECERK

KERFBREEB 2 AREEAR AR
HERERNEEE R TIR T 78R

=5 -
Al 7

Loss for the year attributable to the

ARBHEBANEIEFE

owners of the Company 518 (62,327) (106,015)
Less: Loss for the year attributable to J8: 5k B B8R IHE & %
the owners of the Company . N/NCIE S DN
from discontinued operation IR FEEE = 64,728
Loss attributable to the owners of 5T E TFRERNEEE
the Company from continuing BATRAZ KRB FHERL
operations for the purpose of EEBIRNATHEE
basic and diluted loss per share ANE(GEE (62,327) (41,287)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for both basic and diluted loss per share.

For the years ended 30 June 2017 and 2016, the
diluted loss per share for continuing operations was
the same as the basic loss per share as there was no
dilutive potential ordinary share for both years.

(c)

From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted loss per share for discontinued
operation for the year ended 30 June 2016 was
HK$0.03 based on the loss for the year attributable
to the owners of the Company from discontinued
operation of HK$64,728,000 and the denominators
detailed above for both basic and diluted loss per
share.

For the year ended 30 June 2016, the diluted loss per
share for discontinued operation was the same as the
basic loss per share as there was no dilutive potential
ordinary share for that year.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

16.DIVIDENDS 16.1R &
The Board does not recommend the payment of any BEECEEMREE2017F6A308 ILF
dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2017 (2016: EIREETAAR S (20164 1 ) o
Nil).

17.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 17.EEMERTEEBEEHFMAL
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM <
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the HE2017F6A30H IEFE ' B T3¢
Directors during the year ended 30 June 2017 are as ENEEEZMEOT:
follows:

Retirement
benefit
scheme

Discretionary contributions

Fees Salaries bonus BIREH Total

Name of Director we e  BRERE  HEER @it
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAx TAn TAR TAx ThET

2017 2017%

Executive Directors HITEE

Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa' LBt 38 - - - 38
Mr. Wong Chi Fai? ETELE 38 - - - 38
Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander’  BEELAE? 38 - - - 38
Ms. Shirley Percy Hughes? Rl 38 - - - 38
Mr. Albert Lee? B E 38 - - - 38
Mr. Direk Lim? Direk Lim# 42 201 - - - 201
Dr. Fan Rongzhang* PRYELT 81 - - - 81

Independent Non-executive Directors BU##H{TEE

Mr. Ng Hoi Yue hETEE 190 - - - 190
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene BERLT 180 - - = 180
Mr. Ho Tat Kuen® BT e 109 = = - 109
Mr. Li Fui Lung, Danny? SRS 87 87

1,038 - - - 1,038
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

17.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors
during the year ended 30 June 2016 are as follows:

17.EEMERTEESHFMAL

7=

N

(a) EEMi= ()

HZE2016F6 A30H IFFE Btk
EREESsMEnT:

Retirement
benefit
scheme
Discretionary
Fees Salaries bonus
Name of Director we e HER:
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAL TAL
2016 20165
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Direk Lim? Direk Lim# 3 200 - - - 200
Mr. Hui Yuet Man’ AR AT 132 - - - 132
Mr. Yeung Man Kit, Dennis® (note) #5382 (MfzE) 47 670 - 8 725
Dr. Fan Rongzhang* BRYET 63 - - - 63
Independent Non-executive Directors BV FFHTEE
Mr. Li Fui Lung, Danny® FRE RS 220 - - - 220
Mr. Ng Hoi Yue b 190 - - - 190
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene RERTT 180 - - - 180
1,032 670 - 8 1,710
Note: P &L

The salaries and retirement benefits scheme contributions paid to
Mr. Yeung Man Kit, Dennis for the year ended 30 June 2016 were
included under the discontinued operation.

! Appointed as Executive Director on 31 March 2017 and
becomes Chairperson of the Board since 20 April 2017.

2 Appointed as Executive Directors on 31 March 2017.

3 Resigned as Executive Director and ceased to be Chairman
of the Board on 20 April 2017.

4 Appointed and resigned as Executive Director on 16
November 2015 and 20 April 2017 respectively.

° Appointed as Independent Non-executive Director on 23

November 2016.

6 Retired as Independent Non-executive Director on 23

November 2016.

7 Retired as Executive Director on 12 November 2015.
8 Resigned as Executive Director on 18 December 2015.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

17.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 17.EEMERTEEBEEHFMAL
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued) (4&

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) BB HEMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included three
directors (2016: one) of the Company, details of
whose emoluments are set out above. The aggregate
emoluments of the remaining two (2016: four) highest

AEEAEBRAERSHFMALTEE
=H(2016F : —F) A RFES H
B s 1B TFIER E XX - RREFE X
NFATHEZ (20165 : ML) R %
BHA L+ 2B & 4@z

paid individuals for both years are as follows:

Continuing and discontinued BEKEDDRIEE

operations: i
Salaries and other benefits e KEMETR 1,473 5,818
Retirement benefit scheme BRI FET 2
contributions 27 163
1,500 5,981

The emoluments of those individuals are within the
following bands:

ZEANTEE 2RI

Number of individuals

AE
2017

£ 21,000,000/ 7T 2 3

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ L&
2,000,000/ 7T - -

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 87T &
2,500,000/% 7T - 1

For the years ended 30 June 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five

HE2017F K2016FE6 4308 |FF
B AEEMERNAEEARSFMAL

highest paid individuals, including the Directors, as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors
has waived or agreed to waive any emolument during
both years.

2016 / 2017 F %R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

18.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. % BERRKRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and
Construction  Leasehold improvement  equipment  Plant and Motor

in progress land  Building BE GE BT machinery  vehicles Total
EEIE HELH BF NEEE ZERRE HERHS RE it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Térn TEn TEn TEx TEx  TEn  TEn  TEn

Cost; A
At T July 2015 201557418 - - - 4899 13697 14868 M3 34207
Exchange realignment NERE - - - (157 (643 (1751) @) @)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39)  MEEM B (Ff3E39) - - - NBs 4 a3 - 55645
Reclassification from assets held for sale B {EHEEEEHAH - W 7558 - - - - N8
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) HERBLAF (W) - (43 (558 @I 953 (11.72)) (69)  (48,214)
Additions RE - - - - 3,1M 8,457 - 11,568
Disposals e - - - - %) ) -G53
At 30 June 2016 and 1 July 2016 201664308 201657417 - - - 29,180 111 28,933 - 65,830
Exchange realignment SERE - - - (402) (90) (396) - (888)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39)  WEMBAE (H3£39) - - - - 188 - - 188
Additions hE 21,474 - - 345 644 3 - 22,466
Disposals e - = - = (33) = - (33)
At 30 June 2017 R2017%6A30R 21,474 - - 29123 8,426 28,540 - 87,563
Accumulated depreciation and ZiFERAE:

impairment:
At 1 July 2015 0157418 - - - 805 2,203 2,20 80 5,308
Exchange realignment SERE - - - (375) (171) (600) ) (1,168)
Charged for the year I - 2 W s 3N 68 s 12800
Reclassification from assets held for sale BH{EHELEEH N E - 17 1,969 - - - - 2146
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) HERBAR (Mika) - (189 @111 (1.2%) (173 (3859 (03 (935)
Written back on disposals hEREM - - - - (150 (1.831) - 333
M0 e 20t6and 1y 2016 KO016E6AN0AR165TAIE - - -8 1905 2786 -6
Bichange realignment HERR - - - (15 B (34) - (52)
Charged for the year EEMiR - - - 2902 1,668 4,405 -89
At 30 June 2017 R2017%6A30R - - - 4,595 3,510 1157 - 15322
Carrying amount: R
At 30 June 2017 R2017%6A30R 21,474 - - 24,528 4,856 21,383 - 4
At 30 June 2016 2016564308 - - 1 1/ Y VR A V)] - 541

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED e B3k e e 4 WA PR A )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

19.GOODWILL 19. 58
FHET
Cost: AR
At 1 July 2015 7201547 818 145,783
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) HEME AT (Mstdl) (145,783)
At 30 June 2016 and 1 July 2016 7201656 H30H Kk20165F7H1H -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries W B Bt /B8 R P EE A (BT RE39)

(note 39) 98,250
At 30 June 2017 720176 A30H 98,250
Accumulated impairment: HETRE :

At 1 July 2015 201567 H1H 39,701

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) HEME Q[ (Mstd1) (39,701)
At 30 June 2016 and 1 July 2016 7201646 4308 201647810 -
Impairment loss recognised for the year — FE K E R 2B (EE B (2,636)
At 30 June 2017 720176 A30H (2,636)
Carrying amount: BREE :

At 30 June 2017 71201756 A30H 95,614
At 30 June 2016 120166 H30H -

Goodwill represents the amount attributable to the
acquisition of JDMM Group, details of which are set out in
note 39. The goodwill is primarily attributable and allocated BraEeENEE ol A EAL
to the significant synergies expected to arise in connection BEBARRANEZHESHELEENER
with the production, distribution and licensing of animated T BE BT REER-

TV episodes and theatrical films business.

BENEENBEEENSEKREEEMN
EfZeR EFBHNME3 A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

19.GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment test on goodwill

As at 30 June 2017, the management considered that
the profitability and the operating performance of the
production, distribution and licensing of animated TV
episodes and theatrical films business was affected by the
change in the market condition in the PRC which causes
the deferral of certain animation projects to be released
and have impact on their expected income since the date of
acquisition. Hence, the management took a prudent view
to forecast the production, distribution and licensing of
animated TV episodes and theatrical films business.

The recoverable amount of the goodwill was assessed by
the management with reference to the valuation carried
out by an independent firm of valuers, Flagship Consulting
(Hong Kong) Limited as at 30 June 2017. The valuation was
appraised on the value-in-use basis. The key assumptions
for the value-in-use calculation were those regarding the
discount rate and budgeted gross margin and revenue.
The Group estimated discount rate using the rate that
reflected current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the production, distribution
and licensing of animated TV episodes and theatrical
films business. Budgeted gross margin and revenue were
based on past practices and expectations associated with
the production, distribution and licensing of animated TV
episodes and theatrical films industry.

As at 30 June 2017, the Group had prepared 3-years cash
flow forecast derived from the most recent financial budget
of the production, distribution and licensing of animated
TV episodes and theatrical films business using a pre-
tax discount rate of 18% per annum and the projection
are extrapolated using a constant growth rate of 3% per
annum for subsequent years. Since the recoverable amount
of the goodwill was less than its carrying amount, an
impairment loss of HK$2,636,000 was recognised in profit
or loss during the year.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

SR AL AL A WA PR 2w

19.58 (&)

a2 R ERH

201756 A30H ERER R HEER
FRERBRER 2 8E BTRERER
ZBNEN REBRRAZE BTSN
MEEZTE BRARBABURET
HERBZHRTEERFZERBRA-H
- EEEREREERAPHEERAE
KRERER 2 BUHE BT RIRERT -

MR2017F6A308 ZEmE 2l E £ 58
MEREELEB L (GEMT [EEEE (F
B)BRAE | #ET 2 EEETIE - BE
REREEEEENTTGH -FREENE
ZARBRAZEEEINBAERBELEF
RIBA Z BR& - ANEBFE AR E AT 5
HEEEHEENDHEESEFENEBRE
FZBUE BT RBEER 2 FERRET
HZBRAFITRER - BEEHNRKATY
ERBHEERAENERET 2 ®E 2
TRBETEZBEBHRFERMBESE -

R2017F6 30  AEERHEER A
SEhEBREF CRIE BITREERER
U BEERF3FHESREEN  FAK
AR EFNRISHU MNEEFETFI%L
BECREXHEEMSH AREEZTK
O&BERRERAEBE AAFERER
N R R B E5182,636,000/8 7T ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & M B HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

20.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

20 BILEE

Production Customer
Trademarks rights relationships Total
[ BN EFB#% @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TRET TER TER
Cost: A
At 1 July 2015 #2015%7A18 81 - 40,758 40,839
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) &K BA ) (MiE41) - - (40,758) (40,758)
At 30 June 2016 and M2016%6 4300 20165

1July 2016 7A18 81 - - 81
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEE M B 2 R (BE39)

(note 39) - 27,336 - 27,336
At 30 June 2017 M2017%6H30H 81 27,336 - 27,417
Accumulated amortisation ~ B EHERFEE:

and impairment:

At 1 July 2015 R2015%7818 81 - 1,698 1,779
Amortisation for the year FENEH - - 3,397 3,397
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) &K BA =) (FizF41) - - (5,095) (5,095)
At 30 June 2016 and 1 July #2016%F6H30H 12016

2016 7A1H 81 - - 81
Amortisation for the year FENEH - 1,847 - 1,847
At 30 June 2017 201756 F30H 81 1,847 - 1,928
Carrying amount: fREE:

At 30 June 2017 201756 830H - 25,489 - 25,489
At 30 June 2016 20166 H30H - - - -

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of
amortisation:

Trademarks 5 years
Production rights Over the contract terms
Customer relationships 10 years

The above intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the relevant periods.

2016 / 2017 F %R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

21.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 1. ABE RN T 2R

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$°000

Unlisted shares, at fair value

LMD - BAREE

FET TR

As at 30 June 2016, the Group indirectly held 5%
shareholding interest in TVB Pay Vision Holdings Limited
("“TVBP") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“TVBP Group”). The associates were private companies
and there were no quoted market price available for these
shares. The associates were held as part of venture capital
organisation’s portfolio and were carried at fair value
in the consolidated statement of financial position. This
treatment is permitted by HKAS 28 (2011), Investments in
associates and joint ventures which requires investments
held by venture capital organisation to be excluded from its
scope where those investments are designated, upon initial
recognition, as at FVTPL and accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, with changes in fair value recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the period of change.

On 9 November 2016, the Group entered into (i) a sale
and purchase agreement in relation to disposal of 5%
shareholding interest in TVBP Group to an independent
third party at a cash consideration of HK$35,000,000;
and (ii) a termination agreement of the shareholders’
agreement dated 22 May 2012 pursuant to which the
rights and obligations bound to the shareholders under the
shareholders’ agreement were terminated. The disposal was
completed on 9 November 2016 and the Group recorded
a gain on disposal of HK$34,825,000 after deduction of
the carrying amount of the associates of HK$Nil balance
and the related professional fees of HK$175,000. Following
completion of the disposal and the termination agreement
became effective, the Group has no significant influence
over TVBP Group and TVBP Group ceased to be associates
of the Group thereafter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

22.DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF 2. BBHEARZEN RS
SUBSIDIARIES
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR
Deposit paid for acquisition of WEE B AT 2 B ike
subsidiaries - 30,000
Note: BT
During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Group entered into a sale HZE20164E68308 IFEE - ANE B ERBIERE
and purchase agreement (“S&P Agreement”) with Jade Sparkle AT REIRE LS ([ZEEH ) HNE S 28
Holdings Limited and Mr. Wong Chun Loong (the “Vendors”) in 2 B8 O BT IR AN #78.64% & T 2 B % 4 88 fE A~
relation to the acquisition of approximately 78.64% of the issued share HEh— s 4B vES s ([BEH
capital of JDMM, and the amount due by JDMM to one of the Vendors #]) B4 AREA142,600,0008 T REZEE R
at a cash consideration of HK$142,600,000. A refundable deposit of B 5t A B S X+ AT R 38 4209 30,000,000 7T © 2%
HK$30,000,000 was paid for such acquisition during that year. The WEERE 2 720167 B21H 586K ©

acquisition was subsequently completed on 21 July 2016.

23.INVENTORIES 23.7 8
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$°000
FTHET
Finished goods B2IRK 131 152
Inventories represent food and beverage, consumable and FEEERYCE R RNERE CEHB R R
other goods of cinema operation. Hirg e
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included M2 AET WA ASBERLERIEN Y
in “cost of sales” under continuing operations amounted to [SYERN] 277 ERK R A626,0007% 7T
HK$626,000 (2016:HK$244,000). (20164 : 244,000 7T) °

2016 / 2017 F %R ANNUAL REPORT 2016 / 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

24.FILM AND TV PROGRAMME RIGHTS 2. E N EREE e
FET
Cost: A
At 1 July 2015, 30 June 2016 and 1 July 20154781 - 201646 4308 &

2016 20165F7A1H 480,035
Exchange realignment SN HE 38 B (161)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39) We g Bt 8 2 7] (M9 5E39) 16,198
Transfer from film and TV programme EARIEFR v EF REREE

production in progress (note 25) (Mf5E25) 119
Written off i gH (27,454)
Transfer to asset held for sale (note 34) ERERHEHEERE (M5E34) (449,881)
At 30 June 2017 R201756A30H 18,856
Accumulated amortisation and R RRE :

impairment:

At 1 July 2015 7201547818 422,071

Amortisation for the year FERNEH 1,527

Impairment loss recognised for the year & [& N#ER 2B EEE 5,966

At 30 June 2016 and 1 July 2016 7201646 A30H %201647 A 1H 429,564
Amortisation for the year FRENEH 4,556
Impairment loss recognised for the year € NH#ER Z B EE 18 2,485

Written off 54 (27,454)
Transfer to asset held for sale (note 34) EBRERIEHEEE (M7E34) (402,281)
At 30 June 2017 7A201756 A30H 6,870
Carrying amount: ARMEIME

At 30 June 2017 7A201756 A30H 11,986
At 30 June 2016 72016596 A30H 50,471

As at 30 June 2017 and 2016, the Group reviewed its
library of film and TV programme rights regularly to reassess
the estimated recoverable amounts of the film and TV
programme rights with reference to marketability of each
film and TV programme and current market condition.
The estimated recoverable amounts of the film and TV
programme rights was determined based on either net
realisable values of film rights to be disposed of or a value-
in-use calculation which uses the present value of the
expected future cash flows arising from the sub-licensing
and distribution of film and TV programme rights and
subsequent to the completion of film and TV programme
production, which was derived from discounting the
projected future cash flows at a discount rate of 18%
(2016: 10.57%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

24.FILM AND TV PROGRAMME RIGHTS

(continued)

Key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflow/outflow which include
budgeted sales and gross margin, growth rate and discount
rate. Such estimation is based on past experience and the

24,

EER
BN

ERE A mAE(E)

EREEFE H/ZZF%EHUE““#/F&ﬁ“rIE
RN BEREHERER 4
RERFEEK- E%Eﬁﬁ%ﬁéi@%%ﬁﬁ&
ERERMcMISERMGH -

management’s expectations of the market development.

During the year, an impairment loss of HK$2,485,000 RNEE B A RERIBEE1E2,485,000/8 7T
(2016: HK$5,966,000) was recognised in profit or loss. (20164 :5,966,000/87C) - BERMEEXE
Such impairment was mainly attributable to certain films RSP REEERTEY (28W
to be disposed of subsequent to the end of the reporting 34) - HHEERZzERSBE RN ANEE G
period (see note 34), of which their carrying amounts HERKE ZIEEMSNTEARE A -
before the disposal were higher than the total sale proceeds MR2017F6A30H BB ZSEY
received by the Group for such disposal. As a result, the ZEMEBEABRETH IR % E-
management adjusted the carrying amounts of these films

to their net realisable values as at 30 June 2017.

FILM AND TV PROGRAMME 5. P s EEREREGH
PRODUCTION IN PROGRESS

HK$'000
FE& T

25.

At 1 July 2015 MK2015F7H1H 162,235
Additions NE 33,083
Amounts refunded during the year FENRESHE (38,000)
Transfer to other receivables 5% 5 H A JE YK (5,000)
Transfer to investments in film production EEEREFRIEZILE (44,145)
At 30 June 2016 and 1 July 2016 7201656 308 &2016F7H1H 108,173
Exchange realignment SN HE 55 B (53)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39) U BB B B~ 7] (Bf5E39) 9,041
Additions NE 202,678
Amounts refunded during the year FENREDRE (37,100)
Transfer to investments in film production EBEEREFRIEZILE (67,157)
Transfer to film and TV programme rights 82 # E= & &2 K B3 &0 B i (K15E24)

(note 24) (119)
At 30 June 2017 1201756 A30H 215,463
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

26.INVESTMENTS IN FILM PRODUCTION

REFRIEZEE

Investments in film production

26 NEFRFEZRE

2017
HK$'000

2016
HK$'000
THET
15,647

TR
1,683

The amount represents investments in a Hong Kong
production house for co-production of films. The
investments are governed by the relevant agreements
whereby the Group is entitled to benefits generated from
the distribution of these films based on the percentage of
capital contributed in the film production projects.

During the year, the Group recognised the cost of
investments in film production of HK$18,586,000 (2016:
HK$8,447,000) and an impairment loss of HK$62,845,000
(2016: HK$20,651,000) based on the expected future
revenue to be generated from the films with reference
to their marketability and current market condition. The
carrying amount of HK$1,683,000 (2016: HK$15,647,000)
is expected to be recovered within 1 year and therefore, the
amount is classified as current asset.

27.TRADE RECEIVABLES

E 5 W OFRE

Trade receivables, net

ZEBERRARREERM Fﬂ%ﬁé
HERRHER ZIRE - ?xéx*ﬁf%%

BB AEEARREREZRIER E
ZEEADHNZEEY 2 BT Em -

REAFE AEBERRELZHIELEKX
518,586,000 7T (20164F : 8,447,000/

JL) WREEMEEERER TN K%
LB BEEZTEHRRBAERBERS
862,845,000/ 7T (20164 : 20,651,000
EIr) o FEHABE 181,683,000/ 7T (2016
£ 115,647,000 70) A M EFE AL E - A&
LHZ uZi Aﬁﬁf’wm@)ﬁ?

27.E 3 LR

2017
HK$’000
FTERT
16,642

2016

HK$'000
THET
5,544

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 180
days (2016: 30 to 180 days) to its customers. The ageing
analysis of the trade receivables of the Group based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

KREEGK FHEREFFEH302180H (2016
F:308180H) 2 EEH-UTALREH

RS RIZEZAMA 2B F BRI
ZRRER DT

2017 AONES)
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FH&T
0 to 90 days 0£90H 9,992 5,544
91 to 180 days 912 180H = -
Over 180 days 1808 M E 12,822 6,241
22,814 11,785

Less: Impairment loss recognised in i : 5L & 5 & U 5K FE R
respect of trade receivables VERIEN SR (6,172) (6,241)
16,642 5,544

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

SR AL AL A WA PR 2w



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

27.TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 27.BE5EBF (&)

Trade receivables of HK$6,650,000 (2016: Nil) were neither
past due nor impaired. The outstanding amounts were
contract bound. The management have assessed the credit
history of the aforesaid trade receivables and concluded
that there is no adverse change on the credit quality of
these customers and considered these trade receivables are
recoverable.

Trade receivables of HK$6,172,000 (2016: HK$6,241,000)
that were past due for over 180 days were impaired. In
determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the
management consider any change in the credit quality of
the trade receivables from the date credit were initially
granted and up to the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, the management consider provision for
impairment in values be made in respect of trade receivables

B 5 & W 56,650,000 7T (20164 : &)
MEARBHMKRE ZEMREECES
BN R - ERBC TG Ll B 5 EIR K
JIERRS REZSEEF2EEEET
BEAREHERAZSTE I RBFR AT
@o

D EEIHEiE1808 26,172,000/ 7t (2016
%F:6,241,0008 7T) B ZEBAEHE-
FETEZRWR 2 WEI T RE MR T2
EEZREBESRUFRZEELRBVFED
EFEHHRBRREEREHBR2EMNE
BoE BEERAENRE S EWIER
ERE=EKEEE WAEBARE
EREEBZZBE—SIEHEERB-

to their recoverable values and believe that there is no
further credit provision required in excess of the allowance
for doubtful debts.

RIEEHBZEFSHMT

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts is as follow:

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FETT

At the beginning of the year RE ) 6,241 6,592
Impairment loss recognised FENEZRZ REERE

for the year - 599
Reversal of impairment loss during & B [E > i (EE 18

the year (69) (351)

Disposal of subsidiaries HEE AT - (599)

At the end of the year REXR 6,172 6,241

2016 / 2017 F %R ANNUAL REPORT 2016 / 2017



s

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

28.0OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

28. Hf B - BME R AN K

PREPAYMENTS
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH THT
Other receivables, net (note (i) H & W% B8 (BT REG) ) 7,246 5,516
Compensation income receivable JE i s 8 U A (B3R Gil) )

(note (ii)) 7,864 -
Deposits and prepayments (note (iii)) %4 & 8 2 ( B 3% (il ) 38,443 25,998
Promissory note receivable (note (iv)) & U7 H Z & (FiEE(iv)) - 65,000

53,553 96,514

Notes:

(i) As at 30 June 2016, other receivables included an amount
of HK$5,000,000 reclassified from film and TV programme
production in progress upon terminations of film production
contracts with production houses. During the year, an amount
of HK$3,000,000 had been impaired and the remaining
HK$2,000,000 has been settled subsequent to the end of the
reporting period.

(i) The amount represents the shortfall payment as at 31 December
2016 in respect of the profit guarantee given by the Vendors to
the Group in relation to the acquisition of JDMM Group (see note
39). Such amount has been settled subsequent to the end of the
reporting period.

(i) As at 30 June 2017, the amount included a deposit of
HK$18,000,000 paid for a potential film investment subject to
the fulfillment of terms and conditions of the relevant agreement.
Such amount has been refunded subsequent to the end of the
reporting period as the terms and conditions of the relevant
agreements were not fulfilled.

(iv)  The amount represented part of the consideration receivable for
the disposal of 60% equity interest in Lucrative Skill Group (see
note 41), which was interest-free, unsecured and repayable to
the Company within 1 year. During the year, the amount of the
promissory note receivable was fully settled.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED e B3k e e 4 WA PR A )

GEE

@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

R2016F6A30H « Efth FE U R B IR LE
HEERNRNEYREENEGREFRZ
B EHHIE 25,000,000/ 7T FIE o AAE
€ 4 583,000,000/ 7T B B E B & - 83K
2,000,000 7T BIl B A s 5 BREA R 45 SR 14 (&
K

HZEEARNBEER S EREEZETES
) 25 52 [ 3 1 27 e MU AR B AR 2 70 2016%F 12
H31B 228508 (2 A K539) - ZREE
RBERARERREN -

M2017F6A30H AR BRIEBEEZE
&7 2 12418,000,000 7T » B E
e 2 AR RARFEER B T A EE - AR
BB E 2 R R R ER - B L EZ
BFORHREHHREREBRE

% FRIE A & Lucrative Skill&E E60% X #E 2
BoEKKRE (RHEs) BB ERKIE
REMERNEBTFARARA - NAFE - B
EHBBRCEDEREN-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & M B HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

29.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION

RECEIVABLE

Contingent consideration receivable represents the profit
guarantee given by the Vendors to the Group in relation to
the acquisition of JDMM Group (see note 39). Contingent
consideration receivable has been designated as financial
assets at FVTPL upon initial recognition and is measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The movement
of the fair value of contingent consideration receivable is as
follow:

29. B ARKAE

AR ESRUEEEN L RESHE
RZEBTAAREEL ZENRE (2R
B RE39) © FE Yo 3k A B 10 ) 4h B SR B 4
ERBEARBHEFABRRZEMEE I
R|ERRARE L2 BERE - BEEHR
REZAABEEHNT:

At 1 July 2016

Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries

R2016%7H1H
A U BB B A | m E £ (MY EE39)

(note 39) 8,145
Gain on fair value change for the year RERFRAABEESH W 338
At 30 June 2017 71201756 A30H 8,483

Pursuant to the S&P Agreement in relation to the acquisition
of JDMM Group, the Vendors have given a guarantee to
the Group that the audited consolidated profit after tax
of JDMM Group for the three financial years ending 31
December 2016, 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2018 (each of the “Guaranteed Period”) would be no less
than HK$10,000,000 (the “Guaranteed Sum") for each of
the Guaranteed Period (the “Profit Guarantee”).

In case the Profit Guarantee is not fulfilled for the
corresponding year, the Vendors shall pay 78.64% of
the difference between the Guaranteed Sum and the
audited consolidated profit after tax of JDMM Group (the
“Shortfall”) to the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2016, the audited consolidated profit after tax of
JDMM Group did not satisfy the Profit Guarantee. Hence,
the Vendors are required to pay the Shortfall to the Group
in accordance with the terms and condition stated in the
S&P Agreement.

The fair value of the contingent consideration receivable
as at 30 June 2017 is determined based on the valuation
conducted by an independent firm of valuers, Flagship
Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited, by using the income
approach and a gain arising in fair value change of
HK$338,000 was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

2016 / 2017 F %R

BREKEEIEHZEEEEETHE EBH
FHREBEHFERASEERMEFRE
T ERZEEEENE Z=2016512A31
H-2017412H31H K%2018%12831H
F=EMBFE ([FEREZHA]) 2 &
BB GRS AFR S EREBBET
& 7210,000,000%8 ¢ ([RFESF|) (&
FRE]) -

WABEFE 2R MRFBERER  ZEBEH
BERECHEEIEHSERBEE K
BRGABRBBEMNE 2 =B ([Z8])
Z78.64% % T AL E - H E20169F12
A3BLHEE TEVZHEEE I KE
BRI ER A T W R A i FIRFE -
b ZEEHAREE B W& AT 2 53K
MIGHmAEB T FE5E-

MR2017F6 A0 B ARBZAAE
B DHIREBGEMEEBEM (F8)
ERARFERKRSEZETZHERTE
WA BEREMEZEKERABRR
R BB FH U 5338,0005 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

29.CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION
RECEIVABLE (continued)

As at 30 June 2017, the contingent consideration receivable
is analysed into current assets and non-current assets as
follows:

Analysed for reporting purpose as:

29. FE AR E (&)

7201796 5308 » S AR BRI
RIERBEER NOFTWAT

2017

HK$’000
FERT

SRERBEODFTWAT

Non-current assets ERBEE 485
Current assets mENEE 7,998
8,483

30.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed securities: FH&EFH:

— Equity securities listed in
Hong Kong at fair value

F AR E S

—BRARBEINERZEBE

30.%/&%%@%)&}%%2@%@

2017 2016
HK$'000

TR

HK$'000
FERT

52,441 63,385

As at 30 June 2017 and 2016, all of the financial assets
at FVTPL are equity securities listed in Hong Kong and
denominated in HK$, and were stated at their quoted price
in the active market at the end of the reporting period.

A decrease in fair value of these financial assets at FVTPL of
HK$7,115,000 (2016: HK$18,927,000) has been included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED e B3k e e 4 WA PR A )

20174 N20169F6 A308 » & ZIE A A7
BEFABRZEREEANES LT
BRAZES RABTTEHE - WikK WS
REERTIS 2 WMEFIIR -

ZEBRRAABEFSABZEZEREEZ
NABER 7,115,000 7T (20164 ¢
18,927,000 L) EFF ARG B m M EM
FEKER-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

31.INVESTMENT IN LISTED CORPORATE

BOND

On 19 September 2016, the Group acquired a listed
corporate bond with fixed coupon rate of 4% per annum
in a principal amount of US$8,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$62,240,000). The listed corporate bond
was initially measured at fair value and was subsequently
sold on 10 March 2017.

During the year, the Group recognised listed corporate bond
interest income of HK$1,328,000 in profit or loss.

On 10 March 2017, the Group disposed of the listed
corporate bond at a consideration of US$8,030,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$62,475,000) and a gain
on disposal of the listed corporate bond of HK$413,000,
net of related transaction cost of HK$5,000 was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

32.INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE BOND

On 20 January 2016, the Group acquired a convertible bond
with fixed coupon rate of 8% per annum in a principal
amount of US$10,000,000. The convertible bond was
subsequently sold on 20 June 2016.

2016 / 2017 F %R

1. LW RAREHFZRE

32.

2016F9A198 AEBB AL S HE
8,000,000 7t (#H & 1 4962,240,000/%8
) BETEEBRAETFIBEZ EHRARE
FoZz LM AREHFRIERIZA R B
ENEER2017F3810BEE -

MARFEE  NREBRBZAER
BEH A 2 U A 1,328,000 7T ©

[V

MR2017F3A108  AEEFBRRE
8,030,000 jt (A & M 4962,475,000/%
TT)HEETRARBESFTREGABERE
HEERERAERLE LT AR ES
U 25413,0007%8 7T (AL 0 BR 48 B8 2 5 A AR
5,000/ 7T ) °

ABREF2RE

R2016F 1208 REEE AKX &5
/£10,000,000E T AJ R E S BT R
BERLSEF8E - Z i MREHHEN2016
FE6H20BFHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

32.INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE BOND
(continued)

The fair values of the convertible bond and its components
on initial recognition are determined based on the valuation
conducted by an independent firm of valuers, Flagship
Consulting (Hong Kong) Limited. On initial recognition, the
fair value of the debt component of the convertible bond
is determined using the prevailing market interest rate of
similar non-convertible debts and is carried at amortised
cost subsequently. The effective interest rate is 15%. The
fair value of the embedded conversion options of the
convertible bond as at 20 January 2016 (acquisition date)
and 20 June 2016 (disposal date) are calculated using the
Binomial Model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price (&
Conversion price H]E
Time to maturity B HAHA R

B W

]

Risk-free rate
Dividend yield
Volatility

Key assumptions of the valuation are as follows:

(@) Risk-free rate is referred to the yield to maturity of the
Unite State Treasury notes with similar terms as at the
20 January 2016 (acquisition date) and 20 June 2016
(disposal date).

(b) Credit rating is based on a financial ratio analysis to
estimate the credit rating of the convertible bond
based on the Standard and Poor’s credit rating criteria.

For the year ended 30 June 2016, the Group recognised
a decrease in fair value of the derivative component of
the convertible bond of HK$2,713,000 and a convertible
bond interest income of HK$5,734,000 in profit or loss. In
June 2016, the Group disposed of the convertible bond at
a consideration of HK$82,088,000 and a gain on disposal
of the convertible bond of HK$1,533,000 was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED e B3k e e 4 WA PR A )

R2.REMBRKRES (4

(g

A

)

AR ESREAKXBY 2 AR EBERY]
REREIRB Y GERT [EEREMN (F
BIBRAR BT ZHEET -RIH
MR AIRBREFNABRBIZARE
BENERBUT A EREFNIRITMESF
KRBT WEBERBHEKAY R BEF
EBI15E - MR EHF IR AN IRARE
NREER20165F1A208 (WEBH) &
2016F6 A208 (HE B HWIZERBR —AR
RAGHE o ;2B A B A &9 8 A BUR E 5
URNE

PIVNET DETSAPN [ 20 June 2016

201651H20H 201656 H20H
HK$1.00/% 7T HK$0.97 8 7T
HK$1.26/8 7T HK$1.268 7T
2.49 years 2.07 years
2.49%F 2.074

0.95% 0.75%

0.00% 0.00%

50.04% 37.77%

FAREERREIDT:

(a) ERBRKEERIEEFBUBRRMNER
Bl E 472016918208 (WEHER)
}2016F6A208 (HERBH) MEIHE
Was & e

(b) ERFFRLIRIEMBLL RO EL
PR AR L B = A R A
BRESOE R

H Z=2016F6A30B It FE AEERIE
mAERABRBRESITES D 2 AAEE
42,713,000 7T K A A IR E 25 I B UL A
5,734,000 7T ° FA2016F6 A » AN £ & LA
R {E82,088,000/% Jr it & Al IR & 55 W A
reBakEMEAKRERAER LS
I {E % W 251,533,000 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & M B HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

33.CASH AND BANK BALANCES

BHEERBITEF

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THBT

Cash and bank balances WENIBTETF

452,616 398,515

Notes:

(i) At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$73,078,000
(2016: HK$8,884,000).

(i)  Cash at banks earn interests at prevailing market rates which
range from 0.01% to 0.73% (2016: 0.01% to 0.35%) per
annum.

(i)  The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of foreign currencies denominated
bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject to relevant
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government.

34.ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

() RBEHHR UARBHEZAEEHR
% KSR1T4 17 573,078,000/ 7T (20164 ¢
8,884,000/ 7T ) °

(i) $RITELILN F0.01/Z £0.73/Z (20164 :
0.01/2 £0.35/8) Z I IR 1T 5 F F K5t

B o
/T

(i) BAARBEZETHBRRBINERIAINE
FHEZRTEFRRSERTEE  RESF
B BT 4B A 2 SNEE B )2 AR B AR O B R
Bl

DERBELHEZEE

Film rights E R

47,600 -

During the year, the Group entered into certain sale and
purchase agreements with an independent third party (the
“Purchaser”) pursuant to which the Group would sell the
film rights to the Purchaser upon the terms and conditions
therein contained. Cash consideration for the disposal of
HK$47,600,000 had been duly received at the end of the
reporting period.

The aforesaid amount was the contract price for sales
representing the fair value less costs to sell of the film rights
which is categorised under Lever 2 of fair value hierarchy.
The sale of film rights was not completed as at 30 June
2017 and the film rights have been presented as asset
classified as held for sale in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with HKFRS 5.

2016 / 2017 F %R

RAFE AEBEH-—BBIE=ZH
(TBEFDINETEEHZ BUHAEE
BIREBEEMSGRRGEERNESHEER
Wr#E - B 7 L& 2R 2R {E47,600,000%
JCE R R 45 HAHR R IE = Y B -

RSB BHEZEHORE (BEZMR
BZAREBEREERS XEARALE
BEMRFE2H) - HEBERENR2017F
6 308 HARTEK  HEXREREE B
B EERESHRE I AR A MR K
ZOBRFIELEZEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

35.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 35. 2 5 & H i FE 4 X
2017 PAONNS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THET
Trade payables =0 Y ANEN 11,614 8,323
Accruals & A 12,613 12,531
Deposits received for disposal of BWEETEREY TS
film rights (note 34) (FH2E34) 47,600 -
Deposits received from customers gk & Sk 4 34,223 6,388
Other payables H b FE S 3R 5,837 11,502
111,887 38,744
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables of the AT B &£ B A R4 R ER R 1% 24 2 | HRET
Group based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting TEBENTZER DT
period:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$°000
THT AT
0 to 90 days 0%E90H 5,036 1,508
Over 90 days 90H A k 6,578 6,815
11,614 8,323
36.AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED 36. ENEEAR,FERESR
COMPANIES/NON-CONTROLLING g
INTERESTS
Members of the key management and shareholders of AREEFEEEEKRKENMIRERZEH
the Group have controlling interests over these related BT IR -
companies.
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on ZEFBAEEKW R NBIREKE
demand. 2 o

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED e B3k e e 4 WA PR A )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

37.DEFERRED TAXATION 37.EERF 1T
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) AREERBAFERAZITERIEFIBE
recognised and movements thereon during the current and E/S(BaE)REBEENT -
prior years.
Fair value
adjustment
arising from
acquisition of
Accelerated subsidiaries
tax ELE L
depreciation Tax losses ARE4EZ Total
MERERE REEBRE QAEERR @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TER
At 1 July 2015 201547318 443 5,975 (6,445) (27)
Credited to profit or loss st A2 - - 561 561
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 41) HERBAR (ME41) (443) (5,975) 5,884 (534)
At 30 June 2016 and 1 July 2016 18201664308 &2
2016F7H1H - - = =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 39)  “EEMIE A 7] (Hiz39) - - (405) (405)
Credited to profit or loss (note 13) & Az (HfEE13) - - 163 163
At 30 June 2017 R2017%6A30R - - (242) (242)
As at 30 June 2017, the Group had tax losses of R2017F6HA30B8 RSB M IEEIE
HK$496,278,000 (2016: HK$440,346,000) available for 496,278,000/ 7T (20164 : 440,346,000
offset against future profits. The tax losses of the Group PETT) A AR AR ARG A - AL 2 18
might be carried forward indefinitely, except for an amount E5 18 A PR HA 45 95 - M /2 #053,901,000%
of HK$53,901,000 (2016: HK$15,715,000) which will 7T (2016%F : 15,715,000/ 7T ) 2 B H
expire in 5 years from the year of assessment. No deferred ST E RS A E R o AT RETERI R 2K
tax asset in respect of the tax losses has been recognised ZmAMIEMR B R E T IEE R R
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. RERIBEE
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

38.SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

At 1 July 2015, 30 June 2016,
1 July 2016 and 30 June 2017

38. IR A<

Number of shares

R4 BB

ERE -

FRMEEC.01E T BB

#A2015%781H8 - 20164
6830H 201657818

Nominal value

A
HK$'000
Fi#

%201746H30H 50,000,000,000 500,000

Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ SR E(E0.01 BT 2 B
At 1 July 2015, 30 June 2016 and 720157 H1H 20164

1 July 2016 6H30H K2016F7H1H 2,213,340,890 22,133
Issue of new shares by subscription ®iBRIEIEITHD (M)

(note) 1,000,000,000 10,000
At 30 June 2017 R201756A30H 3,213,340,890 32,133

Note: B 5

On 19 December 2016, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Giant Lead which conditionally agreed to subscribe
for and the Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue a total
of 1,000,000,000 new shares at a subscription price of HK$0.19 per
share (the “Subscription”). The Subscription was completed on 23

March 2017 and the proceeds from the Subscription, before expenses,

amounted to HK$190,000,000.

Details of the Subscription were set out in the announcement jointly
made by Giant Lead and the Company dated 22 December 2016 and
23 March 2017 and in the circular issued by the Company dated 3

March 2017.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & M B HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

38.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Share options

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 8 November 2011. The major terms of the
Scheme are summarised as follows:

1. Purpose of the Scheme: To enable to Group to grant
options to eligible participants to subscribe for shares
in the Company as incentive or rewards for their
contribution to the Group.

2. Eligibility: Eligible participants include employees,
including any Directors, its subsidiaries or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds an equity
interest.

3. (a) Total number of shares available for issue as at 21
September 2017 (i.e. the date of this report) under
the Scheme: 221,334,089 shares;

(b) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents
as at the date of this report: 6.89%.

4. Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant
under the Scheme:

(@) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders;

(b) options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive Directors or their
respective associates in any one year exceeding
the higher of 0.10% of the shares in issue and
with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved by the shareholders.

5. Period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option: At any time from the date of acceptance of
the option to such a date determined by the board of
Directors (the “Board”) but in any event not exceeding
10 years from the date of grant.

6. Minimum period for which an option must be held

before it can be exercised: No minimum period unless
otherwise determined by the Board.

2016 / 2017 F %R
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(BIARSRE HHER) 7] F3817 2 215
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(o) MAHEBMEMDETRNOZ
BOH:6.89% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

38.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Share options (continued)

7.

(@) Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;

(b) The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of
grant;

() Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

Basis for determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Board (subject
to adjustment) and will not be less than the highest of
(a) the closing price of the share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for trades in one or
more board lots of Shares on the date of grant; (b)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (c) the nominal value of a share.

The remaining life of the Scheme: Approximately 4
years (expiring on 7 November 2021).

During the year, no option was outstanding, granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Scheme.

39.BUSINESS COMBINATION
(a) Acquisition of JDMM Group

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

On 4 May 2016, the Group entered into the S&P
Agreement with the Vendors in relation to investment
in production, distribution and licensing of animated
TV episodes and theatrical films in Hong Kong, the
PRC and overseas countries through the acquisition
of approximately 78.64% equity interest in JDMM
Group and the shareholder’s loan owned by JDMM
to one of the Vendors at a cash consideration of
HK$142,600,000. The cash consideration had been
settled and paid by the Group to the Vendors in the
following manners:

(i) a refundable deposit in the amount of
HK$30,000,000 was paid in cash within 1 month
after the execution of the S&P Agreement; and

38. R4 (4)

IR (E)
7. (a) AR ERIR NIRRT PR AN A
RAE : 1.00/ T ;

(b) @iZB 3 A] BE A SR AN 5K 2 B
PR & AR 28A A

(0 BEENFIBANKAENE
HHEIRR : NEA -

8. EBEITEEZEE:

TEE(NETHABR) I HEFSE
EHEAFERTIESE : @RER
THHEE —F ARG EB A
FRBERMRZBHKHE: O)R
ERRTHYNAERS AR EH
R AMERMRZFHRTHE:
K (B fn 1A °

9. TR FH 45 (R20214
MA7RER) -

PRS- 5T 1B T B AR
TR BT R RDE R
%o

39. (S8t

(a) WEEEEHRZHKEEEH

R2016F5 848 A& EF BRI
BEEB FEHERGINERBHEERS
SENEREE 2 BIE BT REENR
ZEBIRERAKNEIEHLKE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & M B HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

39.BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
(a) Acquisition of JDMM Group (continued)

(i) the remaining balance in the sum of
HK$112,600,000 was paid in cash upon
completion of the acquisition.

The acquisition was completed on 21 July 2016 (the
“Completion Date”) and had been accounted for
using the acquisition method.

The following tables summarise the consideration paid
for this acquisition and the fair value of identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
acquisition date.

39. X% & 6F (&)
() KBESHSHBEM (&)

(i) #r%8112,600,000/% 7T 7 78 AKX U
BRUREX (T

WEEEEE R2016E7A218 ([RA
BHEI]) SeA I B F R URBEE AR -

TREERZPBA N 2RERR
Uit B B R URRE 2RI 38R B B M P
BEaEZzANEE-

Consideration satisfied by cash UIReXZ M ZzRE 142,600
Less: Contingent consideration receivable & : FE ULk SRR (B (B 5E29)

(note 29) (8,145)
Total consideration RELE 134,455

Note: Shortfall payment in respect of Profit Guarantee

Pursuant to the S&P Agreement, the Vendors have given a
guarantee to the Group that the audited consolidated net
profit after tax of JDMM Group for each of the Guaranteed
Period would be no less than the Guaranteed Sum for each
of the Guaranteed Period.

In case the Profit Guarantee is not fulfilled for the
corresponding year, the Vendors shall pay the Shortfall to
the Group, and for the avoidance of doubt, if JDMM Group
sustained a loss for such financial year, 78.64% of the
Guaranteed Sum shall be payable by the Vendors to the
Group.

The fair value of the Profit Guarantee as at Completion
Date amounted to HK$8,145,000 and was recorded as
contingent consideration receivable in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

2016 / 2017 F %R

MisE: mARER M ZRNAK

REEERE REEHTERALREE
RE-IBRE NEEHZEREEE
REBERBHB 2 CERBRBRES
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e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R e M EHRRME

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

39.BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
(a) Acquisition of JDMM Group (continued)

39. W6 (&)
() WEEEHZHBEER (&)

2017
HK$'000
FERT
Fair values of identifiable assets Bz R EERMAEERS
acquired and liabilities assumed ZRREE
Property, plant and equipment Y% BERFZE 188
Intangible asset BIVEE 27,336
Film and TV programme rights B NERE A RE 16,198
Film and TV programme production in BUER 2B RERE B
progress 9,041
Investment in film production REZRIEZIRE 720
Trade receivables B 5 W 14,304
Deposits and prepayments e BRI 588
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFeEEY 867
Trade and other payables B 5 K E M E R (23,876)
Amount due to a shareholder of JDMM ENEEHAZHEE —BREZFIE (3,967)
Deferred tax liability EERIEEE (405)
Total identifiable net assets AR EERAFE 40,994
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR 2 (8,756)
Assignment of shareholder’s loan B RE R 3,967
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEE BT 98,250
Total consideration RELE 134,455
Net cash outflow arising from the BUWBEEZRERE FH:
acquisition:
Consideration paid in cash ENBEENKE (142,600)
Less: Deposit paid in prior year B EFENIES 30,000
(112,600)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrkiE s Re KRR EEY 867
(111,733)

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

39.BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of JDMM Group (continued)

The fair value and the gross contractual amount of
trade receivables as at the Completion Date amounted
to HK$14,304,000, of which no balance was expected
to be uncollectible.

In addition, the non-controlling interests of JDMM
Group was recognised at their proportionate share of
identifiable net assets acquired.

JDMM Group was acquired so as to complement the
Group’s expansion strategy and step into the rapid
expansion of animation market.

Acquisition-related costs of HK$465,000 had been
charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 30 June 2017.

Included in the Group’'s revenue and loss for the
year ended 30 June 2017 are HK$705,000 and
HK$7,628,000 respectively attributable from JDMM
Group since the Completion Date.

Had JDMM Group been consolidated from 1 July 2016,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income would show pro forma revenue
of HK$739,000 and loss of HK$7,257,000.

Acquisition of Sino Spirit Group (as defined
below)

On 7 December 2015, the Group entered into an
agreement with an independent third party in relation
to investment in a newly established cinema in the
PRC through the acquisition of 55% equity interest in
Sino Spirit International Limited (“Sino Spirit”) and
its subsidiary (collectively referred to as “Sino Spirit
Group”) and the respective percentage of sharing of
the shareholder’s loan due to such independent third
party at a cash consideration of HK$45,596,000. The
acquisition was completed on 7 December 2015. Sino
Spirit Group is principally engaged in cinema operation
in the PRC.

2016 / 2017 F %R
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(b) WEESino SpiritE® (EE & T

)

MR2015F 12878 AEB BB
£ B & & — B A S B Bk B B2
—EZBUBE=ZFRBBUWESINO
Spirit International Limited ([Sino
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

39.BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 39. (G560 (&)
(b) Acquisition of Sino Spirit Group (as defined (b) W B&Sino SpiritE@ (TR T
below) (continued) ) (&)

The following table summarises the consideration paid TREERZBBEAZ N 2 RERR
for this acquisition and the fair value of identifiable W B B B P 2 AT 38Rl B 2 R P
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the EaBEzAREBE:

acquisition date.

2016

HK$'000
THETT

Fair values of identifiable assets acquired FTUIEZ Al RIEEMFTEAEGE

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED

and liabilities assumed ZRAREE
Property, plant and equipment Y WERFZE 55,645
Inventories A= 283
Trade receivables B 5 WK 115
Other receivables, deposits and H b UK - & RIEN K

prepayments 21,624
Cash and cash equivalents ReRIBEEEY 52,467
Trade and other payables B 5 K H Ath &K (47,231)
Amount due to the shareholder of JE <t Sino Spirith& 3R 2 5K 1A

Sino Spirit (82,901)
Total identifiable net assets BRI BRI B ERE 2
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A (M
Assignment of 55% shareholder’s loan HE55% 2 R E X 45,595
Total cash consideration paid EfERENRE 45,596
Net cash inflow arising from the acquisition: BUWEEEEZ RS HMAFE:
Cash consideration paid BENEBEeRE (45,596)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired Friig s Re RIREEEY 52,467

6,871

SR AL AL A WA PR 2w



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

39.BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 39. (K E6 (&)
(b) Acquisition of Sino Spirit Group (as defined (b) Y B&Sino SpiritE@E (F&E R T
below) (continued) X) (#&)

The fair value and the gross contractual amount of
trade and other receivables at the date of acquisition
amounted to HK$4,103,000 of which no balance was
expected to be uncollectible.

In addition, the non-controlling interests of Sino Spirit
Group was recognised at their proportionate share of
identifiable net assets acquired.

Sino Spirit Group was acquired so as to complement
the Group's expansion strategy and to tap into the
rapid expansion of the PRC film exhibition market.

Acquisition-related costs of HK$60,000 had been
charged to administrative expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 30 June 2016.

Included in the Group’'s revenue and loss for the
year ended 30 June 2016 were HK$12,887,000 and
HK$16,322,000 respectively attributable from Sino
Spirit Group since the acquisition date.

Had Sino Spirit Group been consolidated from 1
July 2015, the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income would show
pro-forma revenue of HK$12,887,000 and loss of
HK$16,298,000.

2016 / 2017 F %R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

40.ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH

41.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 14 December 2016, the Group completed the
acquisition of 100% equity interest of Major Marketing
Communications Limited (“MMCL"”) (now known as
“Emperor Cinemas (China) Limited”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “MMCL Group”) from an
independent third party at a cash consideration of
HK$12,245,000. MMCL Group is principally engaged in the
cinema development and operation in the PRC while the
relevant cinemas were still under construction at the end of
the reporting period.

The acquisition has been accounted for as an acquisition of
assets and liabilities. The net cash outflow arising from the
acquisition of MMCL Group was HK$1,406,000.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
Disposal of Anyone Holdings Limited (“AHL")

On 11 April 2016, the Group disposed of its entire
interest in AHL to an independent third party at a cash
consideration of HK$38,000,000 which resulted a gain on
disposal of HK$18,039,000 for the year ended 30 June
2016. AHL is the legal and beneficial owner of a property
located in Hong Kong. Details of this disposal are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 8 April 2016.

Disposal of Lucrative Skill Group

On 14 April 2016, the Group disposed of its 60% equity
interest in Lucrative Skill Group to an independent third
party at a consideration of HK$95,000,000, which was
satisfied by cash of HK$30,000,000 and an issuance of a
promissory note in a principal amount of HK$65,000,000
to the Company. A loss on disposal of HK$79,184,000 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income for the year ended 30
June 2016. Lucrative Skill Group was principally engaged
in provision of post production services which includes
conducting post production work on advertisements,
featured films, TV programmes, music video, internet and
mobile applications content, visual matters on corporate
events, etc in Hong Kong and the PRC. Details of this
disposal are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
22 January 2016 and circular dated 24 March 2016.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

41.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Summary of the effect on disposals of the above HEFANB AR ZHERMRMT

subsidiaries and joint venture is as follows:

Lucrative
Skill Group
AHL Lucrative Skill& B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET TET
Property, plant and equipment nE- Bk k&G 19,579 19,280 38,859
Intangible asset BVEE - 35,663 35,663
Deferred tax assets ERREEE - 6,418 6,418
Goodwill HE - 106,082 106,082
Trade receivables EETLEN - 28,443 28,443
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments EHEYR - 7e RENK 52 4,552 4,604
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBRLEEY - 25,003 25,003
Trade and other payables ZHREMENR - (18,084) (18,084)
Amount due to a director EN—2EZHA - (235) (235)
Bank borrowings RITEE - (2,999) (2,999)
Tax payable ENHE - (1,651) (1,651)
Deferred tax liability BREHEEE - (5,884) (5,884)
Net assets disposed of HEEETFHE 19,631 196,588 216,219
Total consideration received, net (see below) BUAREFE(RTX) 37,670 94,180 131,850
Net assets disposed of HEEETE (19,631) (196,588) (216,219)
Exchange reserve realised BEBINERE - (1,066) (1,066)
Non-controlling interests RS - 24,290 24,290
Gain/(loss) on disposal LERBYE/ (58B) 18,039 (79,184) (61,145)
Consideration of the disposals are satisfied by: ATRAIARAMEERE:
Cash B 38,000 30,000 68,000
Promissory note ELER - 65,000 65,000
38,000 95,000 133,000
Less: Professional fees paid W ENEEER (330) (820) (1,150)
Total consideration received, net BlARESE 37,670 94,180 131,850
Net cash inflow arising from the disposals: BHEEECRERAFE:
Cash consideration received, net of the fees paid ~ BUBERE (K EBECNER) 37,670 29,180 66,850
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of LEZRERELEEY - (25,003) (25,003)
37,670 4177 41,847

2016 / 2017 F %R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

42. COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease commitments

The Group as lessee

42, 7K IfE

(a) HMEMEAIE
AEBERAEA

Continuing operations: HERe ik
Operating leases rentals paid or FEARHEEDEDA

payable for the year in respect of
rented premises

IERNZELEHERS

7,702 5,461

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases, in respect of
rented premises, which fall due as follows:

RBEHHPR AEERBEEBREEME
Z AR EHERARTT 2 AR &IEA
T RIBAER AT FHETR

2017 2016
HK$’'000

TAT

HK$’000
FTAET

Within one year 1R 12,317 6,189
In the second to fifth year inclusive 2= 54 (BIEERE

MELEA) 76,828 32,068

Over five years S5 150,499 48,441

239,644 86,698

The leases are mainly negotiated for an average term
of 1 to 15 years (2016: 1 to 10 years) and the rentals
are pre-determined at fixed amounts except for
certain leases of which contingent rentals are charged
based on the percentage of sales generated from the
cinema premises pursuant to the terms and conditions
as set out in the relevant tenancy agreements. The
contingent rental expense recognised during the year
was HK$152,000 (2016: HK$53,000). As the future
sales could not be reliably determined, the lease
commitments presented above is based on the existing
committed monthly minimum lease payments.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED e B3k e e 4 WA PR A )

KM MEXTEFH BB 1EI15F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & M B HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

42.COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) Capital commitments

Contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements, net of

amounts paid, in respect of: (MBRENFTE) -

- Acquisition of property, plant and

equipment
~ Investments in film production -REFHIEZRE
— Acquisition of subsidiaries YN

ANE R LR SN
M RE T A R

42. 7K ¥E (&)

(b) BEAERE
2017
HK$'000

2016
HK$'000
TRT

TER

-BENE BERRE

T8
61,781 1,062
- 83,587
- 112,600

43.MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a)

During the year, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties:

Printing fee to a related company
Professional fee to a related company
Rental expense to a related company (note)

Reimbursement of administrative expenses
to a related company

[ BR & 1 B Y EIRI & B
ABEARAXNERER
MEELRNEEER (ME)
ENBEEARZITHAX

A3 ERBEALRS

(@) RAFE AEEEMBEALTILT
FIERZS
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
23 -
80 -
713 -
1,117 -

The above related companies are controlled by the AY
Trust and the amounts disclosed above represent material
transactions between the Group and related companies
on and after 23 March 2017 upon completion of the
Subscription made by Giant Lead which is ultimately
owned by the AY Trust.

Note: Continuing connected transaction

On 5 May 2017, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company as tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement with
the related company as landlord which agreed to lease the
agreed premises to the subsidiary for a term of 10 years
from 5 May 2017 to 4 May 2027 with an option for renewal
of additional 5 years until 4 May 2032. The transaction
contemplated under the tenancy agreement constituted
a continuing connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further details of
the continuing connected transaction were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 5 May 2017.

2016 / 2017 F %R

A EEE A TIBRAY Trusti® sl - LA K BT
WEE 2 ©REIEN2017F3A23H R 2 B
Giant Lead ( HAY Trust&Z & H ) TR

BERRASBEZEMEARETZE
KRR
st : FERMERZ S

720175858 AR Al EE2EH B
AR (EAfP)E—fEERR (EA%E
F)FIUHEERZ BUHZBEARRER
ZM B AR LR EmE HAB201745
FASH#ZE2027F5 A48 1 AH10F (A%
BEHSFER2032F5A4R) - HHEW#
BTETZRSEK ETRAIE14AE
BRINARBIZ —HFHEBER S - ZIFE
MERGZE—FFHBRINNALQFBEH
B2017F5A5H 2 A& -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

43.MATERIAL RELATED PARTY A3.ERBEALRE (&)
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Details of balances with related companies/non- (b) M¥REHIEIAR - ERAE N 7], IFIE IR
controlling interests at the end of the reporting period R ERFBEEINEA TGN

=
are set out in the consolidated statement of financial F N HIE36 ©
position and note 36.

() The key management personnel of the Company are () XA ETBEEEBAEBAES -FE
the Directors. Details of their remunerations are set out NS S HTEE17 o
in note 17.
44.FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 44. 78 R B 2 B i E w
COMPANY
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FHTT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Intangible assets BVEE - -
Investment in subsidiaries RB AR ZIKE 537,073 480,228
537,073 480,228
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, deposits and EMEKG Re R
prepayments SCANE 251 312
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFAEBRZZ
through profit or loss TREE 4,165 5,286
Cash and bank balances Be MIR1THEF 364,300 291,357
368,716 296,955
Current liability =R
Trade and other payables 5 K& E b BT K 1,610 1,004
1,610 1,004
Net current assets REBEEFE 367,106 295,951
Net assets EEFE 904,179 776,179
Capital and reserves B R E#E
Share capital % X 32,133 22,133
Reserves (note) M () 872,046 754,046
904,179 776,179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & M B HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

44 . FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Note:

A, K QTR 2 HEER (&)

Accumulated

Capital profits/

Share redemption Contributable (losses)
premium reserves surplus ~ REHEA Total
RVEE EARERE  AWRK  /(BR) @5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET T T T
At 1 July 2015 R201557 A1H 733,016 50 58,658 70,608 862,332
Loss for the year FEFR - - - (108,286)  (108,286)
Other comprehensive income for the year £ £ 12 E U - - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE2ENELE - - - (108,286) (108,286)
At 30 June 2016 and 1 July 2016 12016F6 4308 1£2016%F7 A18 733,016 50 58,658 (37,678) 754,046
Loss for the year FEFE - - - (61,827) (61,827)
Other comprehensive income for the year ~ FE £ 2 E N - - - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year FERAFELE - - - (61,827) (61,827)
Issue of new shares by subscription BBRBEEITHRG 180,000 - - - 180,000
Shares issuing expenses BnBITHY (173) = = = (173)
At 30 June 2017 R2017%6A30A 912,843 50 58,658 (99,505) 872,046

2016 / 2017 F %R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

45 .PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 45. B AR FHE
(a) General information of subsidiaries (a) B AT —RER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 720174 K2016E6 H30H » KA A
30 June 2017 and 2016 are set out as follows: TEMBARZHBHEINMT
Place of Nominal value of issued
incorporation/ shares/registered Proportion of nominal value of issued shares/registered
Name of subsidiary operation capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
WEARER MR/ E$4%  BRORA/ERER ARRMERERAREA/EREAZ LA IBEH
Direct Indirect
E& [ F:
2017 2016 2017 2016
Corporate Fame Limited BYI US§1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
ABRNES (9 REBR
Dragon Animation Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - - 78.64% - Animated product development
EIERRAA Bk 1007 BEERRY
Emperor Cinema Group Limited (formerly BvI Us$1 100% - - - Investment holding
known as "Beyond Oasis Limited”) AERLES (E3 RERR

HEEYHERERAA
( 517 [Beyond Oasis Limited |)

Emperor Cinema Management Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100% - Cinema operation
AETTHERARAT Bk & BlkzE
Goldcore Holdings Limited BYI US§1 100% 100% - - Investment holding

EBRNES E3 REBR
JDMM Samoa US§14,000 - - 78.64% - Production, distribution and
EEE2 EED 14,000E T licensing of animations

EREZHE BIRER

Mega-Vision Pictures Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - - 80% 80% Film and TV programme
FIAERAT B3 187 production and distribution
SYRERHARE RERYT

Mega-Vision Productions Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - - 80% 80% Film and TV programme
("Mega Vision") B 10,000,007 production and distribution
HESARLA (8T8 SYRERHERE RERYA
Multi-Wide Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - - 100% 100%  Film and event investments and
ERERAR Bk 1T investment in securities
BYRRREARAS

MMCL Hong Kong HKS$2 - - 100% - Investment holding
ERmAE Bk 27 REER

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED e B3k e e 4 WA PR A )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fn & M B HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

45.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries
(continued)

Place of Nominal value of issued
incorporation/ shares/registered

FARAMGRERARE/ERER LA

45. KB A RS (&)
(a) MBAR—RER (&)

Proportion of nominal value of issued shares/registered
capital held by the Company

Principal activities

Direct Indirect
E# k4
2017 2017 2016

Name of subsidiary operation capital
WEARAR AMEL/EEnE ERGRA/ERER
See Entertainment Limited Hong Kong HK$1
EXLREERDA (30 187
See Movie Limited Hong Kong HK§1
EXEYERLA B A7
Sino Spirit BVI Us§100
AERIEE 10057
Yulang Film and Animation Culture Hong Kong HK$30,000,000
Limited Bh 30,000,000%
IPTRBENERAT
BREDBETENLARLT The PRC RMB15,000,000°
Gl AR#15,000,0007L¢
EERYNZHARLT The PRC RMB32,800,000°
41 AR32,800,0007°
AEEPALRARLT The PRC RMB30,000,000°
i AR%30,000,0007T¢
E2EPH(ER)ERAT The PRC RMB33,000,000¢
i AR#33,000,0007T¢
EEETHEDERLA The PRC RMB23,500,000¢
G AR23,500,0007¢

# Registered capital

All are ordinary share capital unless otherwise stated.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

2016 / 2017 F %R

- - 100% 100% Provision of event management
services
RERERAEERK
- - 100% 100% Film and TV programme
production and distribution
TYRREHERERES
= - 55% 55% Investment holding
BEAH
- - 78.64% - Production, distribution and
licensing of animations
HERE M BARERE
- - 78.64% - Film and TV programme
production and distribution
BYREROARGREN
- - 55% 55% Cinema operation
HhzE
- - 100% - Cinema operation
BhzE
- - 100% - (inema operation
BheE
- - 100% - Cinema operation
HheE

¢ EMER

RRAIIAEIN 2EHRERBRR
Ko

ERAIINZARRIMNBLAR HES
RAUAREZXEXEERERY
E7MBRAR -EERA —HIIH
HipE AR z# B EREHER
BRITE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

45.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)  45.K1 B A T 515 (&)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (a) MBAR—REH (&)
(continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Company RBEREAR AAREEHEHAEE
has other subsidiaries that are not material to the MEXTERZHMHTB AR ZF
Group. The principal activities of these subsidiaries are MEBAR EEXBBMIT

summarised as follows:

Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
FEEK ETEZEMT MEAREE
2017
Investment holding and others Hong Kong 3 -
WEER R EAM 5
BVI 6 5
REBEZHES
None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital subsisting P B R R F RS ANF E R E ] B
at the end of the year or at any time during the year. M EEREEEAR

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED e B3k e e 4 WA PR A )



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

45. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)  45.K1 B A B 15 (&)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) BEERFEZEREZ ZFZEM
that have material non-controlling interests BRE2#H1E
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TR EBERERER AR
subsidiaries of the Company that have material non- AIEREMB AR ZFHE:

controlling interests:

Proportion of ownership
interests and voting rights held ~ (Loss)/profit allocated to

Place of by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests Accumulated
Name of subsidiary  incorporation/operation FERERREZERERERR PRTFERER non-controlling interests
HEARAR AT/ EEY SRHA 2 (B8)/&H ZitkBRER
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TiEn BT TER BT
DMV Samoa, Hong Kong and the PRC/ 21.36% - (1,629) - 7,106 -
ISR Hong Kong and the PRC
BED FARRE/
EBR%
Mega-Vision* Hong Kong 20% 20% 32 (48) (15,352) (15,384)
FRE Bk
Sino Spirit? BVI and the PRC/the PRC 45% 45% (5,154) (7,345) (15,039) (9,504)

ARRAHERPE/HE

Representing JDMM Group " EEEHRZEESER

*  Representing Mega-Vision and its subsidiary, Mega-Vision *  BETHRAMBATEIHABRAA (5K
Pictures Limited (collectively referred to as “Mega-Vision BB ETHER])
Group”)

# Representing Sino Spirit Group # & Sino Spirit& &

2016 / 2017 F %R ANNUAL REPORT 2016 / 2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ME R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & E2017F6 A308 L F[E

45.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
that have material non-controlling interests

45. M B RFHE (&)
(b) EREARFERER ZHFEZEM
BARZHFE (&)

continued
JDMM Group Mega-Vision Group Sino Spirit Group
IEHSREEE HIHEE Sino Spirit&E
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tix T B
Current assets THEE 41,912 - 10,425 9,996 23,900 19,116
Non-current assets ENPEE 25,840 - 37 114 50,304 59,317
Current liabilities THaE (34,244) - (18,066) (12349 (107,623) (99,554)
Non-current liabilities e N (242) - (125788 (131312 - -
Revenue WA 705 - 4,574 4217 31,829 12,887
Costs, other revenue, expensesand ~ A(A EfE B
taxation RHRE (8,333) - (4,415) (4,455) (43,282) (29,209)
Profit{loss)for the year FEERl/ (F8) (7,628) - 159 (238) (114%3) (16322
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BETHIRERA/
operating activities (Rit) 8 247 - 10,251 (10323) (63100 (31,503
Net cash outflow from investing REED RERLEE
activities (345) - - - (584) (10,740)
Net cash (outflow)inflow from BEEH R (RL)/
financing activities MAFE - - (5,524) (5 12,753 476
Net cash inflow/(outflow) ReRA/ (Rit) 58 (98) - 471 (10.328) 5,859 (41,767)

The above details do not include the financial
information of Lucrative Skill Group which was owned
as to 60% by the Group before the disposal on 14
April 2016. Details of the financial information of
Lucrative Skill Group are set out in notes 14 and 41.

EMPEROR CULTURE GROUP LIMITED
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Lucrative Skill& &

ZEEER  RNEBR2016F4A14
B ERT#EA E60%HE s © Lucrative
SKillE B~ IS E BB SR K14

R41 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e MBI R

For the year ended 30 June 2017 & Z2017F6H308 ILFE

PERIOD
(a) Disposal of film rights

On 3 July 2017, the Group completed the disposal
of certain film rights to the Purchaser at total cash
consideration of HK$47,600,000 upon the written
confirmation made by the Purchaser to confirm the
release of the Group’s obligation in the sale and
purchase agreements. Since the carrying amount of
those film rights had been adjusted to the fair value
less costs to sell at the end of the reporting period,
the Group recorded no gain or loss upon completion
of such disposal. Details of the disposal were set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 30 November
2016 and 15 June 2017.

(b) Tenancy agreement

On 24 August 2017, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company as tenant, entered into a
tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement”) with a
related company as landlord which agreed to lease
the agreed premises to the subsidiary for a term of 6
years from 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2023 with
an option for renewal of additional 6 years until 31
August 2029. The transaction contemplated under the
Tenancy Agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Further details of the continuing
connected transaction were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 24 August 2017.

47.MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

The Group entered into the following major non-
cash investing activity which was not reflected in the
consolidated statement of cash flows:

On 21 July 2016, the Group completed the acquisition
of approximately 78.64% issued share capital in JDMM
at a consideration of HK$134,455,000 in which part of
the consideration was satisfied by a refundable deposit of
HK$30,000,000 paid during the year ended 30 June 2016.

48. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21
September 2017.

2016 / 2017 F %R

46.EVENTS AFTER THE END OF REPORTING 46.3 £ Bk =18

(a) HEEFTE

MR2017F7A38 REFE@EBEM
NERBRASBEREEHENE
B AEBEXNRMEFHESTE
SRR AE - 483R & (€ /47,600,000
Lo AR ZEE R RE 2 REER R
EHHREARE AR BEREER
N AEBRTERZE NSRRI EER
Sl EE - BEEEE ZFHIFHT
RAQNFBEA20165F11H30H &
2017F6A15B 2 RE e

(b) HEWHRE

R2017F8HA248 AR mz k2
BB AR (1EAEFR)BE—fHEER
Bl(EREX)IIYHEERZ ([HE
W) B ZEEARIRERZM
BARMEREWSE HEEH2017F
9A1H #£ £2023%8A31H I A H6
F (R EEHT HEI2029F8A31
H) HERRB NHETZR BN
EHRABUVAZEE T ARAIZ—1E
BREREER S ZFEREIHE
—HBHI N AR B A20174F
8H24B 2 R%&-

47. T EBFBRERF
AEEDETUATIERBSREEE.
HYARGOBERBE AR :

R2016F7A218  AEBEZRKELTE
P LI RE 478 64%E BITIHRA RE A
134,455,000 T  HFHHRE BB
H22016F6A30B ILFE 2 REF &
30,000,000/ 7T 2 f+f o

48. RETI R Z S M B WK

REAVBHRERN2017FE9A21BEES
SHOE R IR T -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFEMBHEER

RESULTS E
Year ended 30 June
HZ6A30HLEE
2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET FET TET TET
(Restated)
(&31)
Continuing operations BELEXY
Revenue WA 23,253 54,437 85,332 24,251 44,925
Loss before taxation BRI BB (54,695)  (65051)  (28354)  (48,680)  (69,253)
Taxation (charge)/credit BE (L) /B8 - - (17) - 175
Loss for the year from continuing operations #ELL£H 7 FEF#E (54,695)  (65051)  (28371)  (48,680)  (69,078)
Discontinued operation BAILEEEE
Loss for the year from discontinued BRIEEREB FEEE"
operation* - - (48,873) (28,747) -
Loss for the year FEBE (54,695)  (65051)  (77,244)  (77.427)  (69,078)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: mTIIATEEER (BR),/%F):
Owners of the Company ARAEAA (52,842)  (66,832) (75115 (106,015  (62,327)
Non-controlling interests TR ER (1,853) 1,781 (2,129) 28,588 (6,751)
(54,695 (65051)  (77,244)  (77.427)  (69,078)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEE

At 30 June
16A30H
2013 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
(Restated)
(E7)
Total assets BRE 304,482 529,597 956,210 827,832 1,053,942
Total liabilities BakE (63,997) (45,180) (98,307) (76,543)  (173,048)
Net assets BERE 240,485 484,417 857,903 751,289 880,894
Capital and reserves attributable to: mTFIATRERAR R
Owners of the Company ADEEBA 258,574 500,725 884,464 776,177 904,179
Non-controlling interests FERER (18,089)  (16308)  (26,561)  (24,888)  (23,285)
240,485 484,417 857,903 751,289 880,894

* The discontinued operation represented the post production service — *
segment which was disposed of by the Group during the year ended 30
June 2016.

ERIEEEXBEAREEE2016F6A300 1L
FEHEZERBEERB DR -
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